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Monday, 14 October 1996 

STANDING COMMITTEE ON ESTIMATES AND FINANCIAL OPERATIONS 
I 

The meeting commenced at 1 O.O~ am. 
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The CHAIRMAN (Hon Murray Montgomery): In June the Standing Committee on Estimates and Financial 
Operations decided it would hold a hearing when agencies that received funding from the commonwealth Budget 
would be called to appear before it, with the relevant Minister and departmental staff being questioned on the 
allocations from the commonwealth Budget. The committee decided to choose agencies that were not necessarily 
part of the normal budget round. It has chosen agencies that are not covered under normal consolidated funding. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I seek your indulgence, Mr Chairman. I wish to express my view and that of the other 
members of the Opposition about the spatial arrangements in this place. Although I have said this to you informally, 
I now wish to place on record that the layout and the facilities for this hearing are totally inappropriate. Two 
members of the Opposition will be forced to write notes by placing their papers on their knees as they are not sitting 
at a desk. Consideration should be given immediately to removing ourselves to the Legislative Council Chamber. 
I understand there may be some difficulties involved with that; however, this venue is totally inappropriate. I hope 
my suggestion can be considered. 

The CHAIRMAN: I thank the member for his comment. When the committee sat, we thought the hearing would 
be conducted here. I acknowledge that we must ensure that any change in venue facilitates hearings. We will note 
that matter in the committee's response. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: It should be a proactive decision, rather than a reactive one. 

The CHAIRMAN: We have already contacted the Clerk of the Legislative Council about this request, and he has 
given us a negative response. I now formally commence this hearing and ask the Minister whether he, or any of his 
officers, wish to make a statement. When officers are speaking, I ask them to identify themselves. I take it that the 
Minister has read the standing orders that relate to this hearing. 

Division 43: Family and Children's Services, $133 511 000 -

[Hon Murray Montgomery, Chairman.] 

[Hon E.J. Charlton, Minister for Transport.] 

[Mr R. Fisher, Director General.] 

[Mr P.M.A. Birchall, Assistant Director, Family and Community Support.] 

[Mr M. de Mamiel, Acting Divisional Manager, Financial Services.] 

[Mr A. Kyron, Acting Assistant Director, Industry Services.] 

[Mr S. La Piana, Manager, Financial Planning and Budgeting.] 

[Mr G. Watt, Director, C6rporate Management.] 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: As I understand it, the main reason - it is not the only one - for this hearing is for the 
committee to report to the House and to give members the opportunity to determine the Government's response to 
the impact of the recent federal Budget and the ongoing decisions of the State Government as a result of that Budget. 
I am on the Cabinet Estimates Committee, a subcommittee of Cabinet This morning we discussed a number of issues 
relating to the federal Budget. The bottom line is that we still are not in a position to determine the outcomes on 
agencies as a result of the federal Budget. Since the federal Budget was brought forward, the implementation of it 
and the consequences of decisions arising from it on the various areas still have not been determined. The 
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Government and, therefore, the departments are not in a position to report accurately about the financial outcomes 
as a consequence of the federal Budget I mention that to start with because it will not be possible for departmental 
officers to answer specific questions about the impact of the federal budget decisions where there is interaction 
between state departments and their federal colleagues for services that are provided by federal funding. 

The CHAIRMAN: As a result of the federal Budget the departmental officers would no doubt be talking with their 
federal counterparts. I ask Mr Fisher to respond directly, or through the Minister, about the cuts that this department 
expects in its budget and how it proposes to meet them. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: He certainly will respond on the current negotiations; however, as no outcomes have been 
determined so far, in this forum he is not in a position to speculate about what may, or may not, happen. He can bring 
the committee up to date with the current position about what issues the negotiations are centring on. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: The Minister said there have been no outcomes. When Treasury briefed us a fortnight ago 
on this issue, it indicated there would be a 1.4 per cent cut across the board in agency budgets. Is the Minister saying 
that the 1.4 per cent cut is not the outcome the Government expects? 

Hon E.J . CHARLTON: I am saying that the effect of the reduction has not yet been taken to the ultimate changes 
in delivery of services that will be made. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: Does that mean the departments have not decided how they will implement the 1.4 per cent 
cut? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: As the member will appreciate, in most cases these allocations from the Federal Government 
are joint arrangements. As a consequence we must work with the Federal Government to decide how the delivery 
of those services will take place. It is not as though there is a bucketful of money, with fewer dollars than before, 
so that is it: There are joint arrangements, and the departments must work through the programs with their federal 
counterparts. The final outcome for the delivery of services is yet to be determined. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: I believe the Minister is talking about the tied grants. I ask him to come back to the financial 
assistance grants. Western Australia suffered a reduction of $6Om in this federal Budget in untied grants. Treasury 
indicated to us that there will be a 1.4 per cent reduction, across the board, in agency budgets. That has nothing to 
do with tied grants and joint arrangements. What does the Minister say about that 1.4 per cent reduction? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: It has everything to do with the delivery of the services and there is an opportunity to assist 
in a greater area in some directions, rather than simply take it across the board. I invite Mr Fisher to outline any 
specifics that he wants to touch on. 

Mr FISHER: To this time we have not had any cut at all in the department's funding from the state Budget. 
Negotiation is occurring between departments and Treasury. In terms of the 1.4 per cent cut across the board, at this 
time we have not suffered any reduction in our budget, but discussions will be ongoing about that. In terms of the 
changes that have occurred, the commonwealth Budget has not meant a reduction at this time in our funding from 
the state Budget. 

[10.20 am] 

Obviously some of the initiatives which have been undertaken in the commonwealth Budget will have an impact on 
joint clients of our department and commonwealth departments. There has been an impact on the budget in the child 
care area, as has been well publicised, and in which we have a direct interest. The Commonwealth Government has 
increased the budget in the emergency relief program area, which will have a positive impact. In the area of Family 
Court counselling, as the Minister said a moment ago, negotiations are still occurring with the Commonwealth 
Government. We have not been able to identify final budget figures with regard to our Family Court counselling 
service. 

There have been changes with regard to commonwealth support for parenting initiatives, which again will impact 
directly on the State Government. The Commonwealth initially had a child abuse and neglect community education 
program where it had set aside a certain amount for a media campaign. That campaign was originally approved by 
the Federal Minister in 1993. However, the Commonwealth Government at that time had a committee which was 
looking at overall advertising, and it was not in favour of the concept that had been developed. The new Federal 
Government said when it came into power that it wanted to look at that concept as well. As a result, the money has 
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not been spent. As I understand it, the Commonwealth Government indicated in its Budget that it does not want to 
go ahead with the community education campaign but wants to negotiate bilaterally with each State to see what 
positive initiatives to assist with positive parenting programs can be negotiated on a state by state basis. 

The other area where we expect some positive developments from the Commonwealth Government is an initiative 
that was announced in the Budget - a youth homelessness pilot program '- where an amount of $8m has been set aside 
by the Commonwealth Government over a three year period. A committee is looking at that program. Western 
Australia is one of two States that bhs a departmental member on that committee. Expressions of interest for youth 
homelessness pilot programs were called on 31 August, and they will be targeted specifically at young people aged 
15 years and over. We hope that Western Australia will be successful in getting one of those pilot programs. 

It is a mixed bag with regard to what the commonwealth Budget has done with our joint clients in this State. Weare 
still working our way through the initiatives involving child care. That has meant that we will have to renegotiate 
the Commonwealth-State Child Care Agreement and, given that the previous agreement took a long time to negotiate, 
that will not happen overnight. The bottom line for our department, and I am sure for the Government and the 
Opposition, is that we want to ensure that we maintain the highest possible quality of child care. We think we have 
that in Australia at the moment and we want to continue that into the future. 

Hon CHERYL DAVENPORT: I want to talk about the effect on the family crisis program of some of the policy 
decisions made by the Federal Government. The first matter is the introduction of a two year waiting period before 
migrants can qualify for social security assistance. Has the Government assessed the degree to which that change 
may impact on poverty levels and calls for emergency financial assistance from non-government agencies? 
Obviously not all migrants will be in that situation; I am talking about migrants who would qualify for social security 
benefits were it not for that two year period. The other matter, which would fit into the same category, is the changes 
to Austudy benefits. Will young people who will not now qualify for assistance be able to access the family crisis 
program? Has the State given any thOU5i'lt to that matter, given that federal benefits will no longer be available? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Both of those decisions are totally the responsibility of the Federal Government. I will invite 
Bob Fisher to comment on the effect on state funded and managed services. It is associated with the cutback in the 
funding to Western Australia and the other Federal Government direct responsibility decisions. Of course these 
changes will make a difference. We intend to ensure that we marshall our resources and our capacities in the most 
efficient manner, to not only respond to the changes in the funding but also, as we have done since we have been in 
government, try to make changes to those areas where we think we can deliver, from the resources that are available, 
a service that has the best result in looking after the interests of the people. There has been pretty much a bipartisan 
arrangement with the Government and the Opposition in those areas, because obviously things are different today 
than they were 10 years ago, and some areas of family support and assistance are more urgently required than others, 
so it is a changing scene. We are trying to put the emphasis on those areas that need it, and to get the most 
advantageous result from those energies and funding and the programs that are put in place. 

Mr FISHER: The first thing that must be repeated is that the areas that Hon Cheryl Davenport outlined are 
commonwealth responsibilities. The Commonwealth Government would probably say it has increased the emergency 
.relief program this year. In Western Australia, we understand there will be an increase of some $600 000, from a 
base of $1.5m to $2.1m, so it is a significant increase. That money will top up the income support system in the two 
areas the member mentioned; both would fall within the category of income support. With regard to the 
commonwealth Budget, there has been a significant increase of about 30 per cent in emergency financial relief which 
will flow through to recipients of commonwealth income security benefits in this State. That will be the best avenue 
for getting support in those areas. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Mr Fisher said that Family and Children's Services has not as yet agreed to a 1.4 per cent 
across the board cut. I can accept that. I read with some interest the comments ofMr Harris when he was previously 
before this committee. When he was asked by Hon Bob Thomas whether the starting point was a universal 1.4 per 
cent cut, he said, "That is correct". What percentage are you negotiating and are you proposing to meet that universal 
requirement by way of delayed maintenance of capital works, recruitment or contracting out? 

[10.30 am] 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: When Mr Harris made the statement that the cut would be universal he did not mean to say 
that there would be a 1.4 per cent cut to every agency. It is up to the Government to determine how funding 
allocations will be delivered in the state Budget. As explained by Mr Fisher, increases have been made in a number 
of specific areas of social services in the federal Budget. 
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Hon JOHN HALDEN: In all fairness, that will not impact on the reduction for FAG, which is a specific purpose 
grant. It will not impact on the 1.4 per cent cut. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: The member knows as well as I do that Governments have a responsibility to make 
allocations in the best way they can. Governments decide how programs will be funded. We may consider the need 
is greater in some specific areas and that a change in circumstance requires an increase -

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Where is that? I want to know. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: You want to know a lot of things. You must be patient! 

The CHAIRMAN: Order! The Minister is trying to answer the question. The member will have another opportunity. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Members may not agree with the answers, or even want to hear them. We are currently 
dealing with a $6Om reduction in budget allocation from the Federal Government. We must determine how that will 
fit into our current state Budget. While there are two separate funding streams for programs that have been identified 
this morning, we still have responsibility, in conjunction with the department, to determine which programs must 
receive funding. That is being worked through now. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I understand the Minister's exalted position at this Estimates Committee hearing-

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: I make my comments as a result of being appointed to this position - at least I am not relying 
on someone giving me that advice. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I mean it no more than in the sense that I seek some clarification, bearing in mind the 
Minister's exalted position. The Premier has announced a $4Om saving, but has not told us where the saving will be 
made. Can·the Minister explain? 

Hon E.J . CHARLTON: I would love to, but I am sorry -

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I thought so! 

The CHAIRMAN: Order! 

Hon BOB THOMAS: The Minister indicated that the 1.4 per cent cut will not necessarily be universal. Is he saying 
that it will be an average cut across departments, and that some departments may face more than a 1.4 per cent cut, 
and others no cut? 

Hon E.J . CHARLTON: That could be the result. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: Is it just simply that the Government is waiting to get the election out of the way and will 
then tell the departments about the 1.4 per cent cut, or is it something less tricky? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: This Government does not have anything to hide-

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Show us the $40m saving! 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Members opposite believe that as a Government we have ongoing programs which cost 
X dollars and that any cut in that funding will mean that we cannot deliver every service across government by that 
percentage. However, that is not right. Anyone who has been in business will know that we want to achieve the 
maximum result from our Budget. Of course, there will be reductions in allocations; that is obvious. However, the 
effect of the cutback will depend on how government business is administered. People will make judgments based 
on where the reductions are made. The people will be the judge. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: I take that as a yes. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: The member can take it how he likes. I wish to place on record that Hon Tom Stephens has 
responded by saying that the answer is yes. He can make his judgment, but that does not mean I agree with him. 

Hon CHERYL DAVENPORT: I want to talk about the effect that some of the federal cuts will have on youth 
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programs. A number of our youth programs are operated in conjunction with commonwealth government programs 
that provide young people at risk with work and training opportunities. If the work or training opportunity is removed 
- that is anticipated by the youth sector - the program will become less effective. Does the State Government plan 
to undertake an audit of how the youth programs will be affected or undermined by the loss of commonwealth 
employment programs? If that is the case, when; and, if not, why not? 

Mr F1SHER: I am not in a position to comment on the commonwealth education and training programs. It is not 
my responsibility. I can commel\f on the youth homelessness program. This is a personal initiative of the Prime 
Minister. He is very concerned about youth homelessness. This follows debate over the past three or four years 
about the youth homelessness allowance and the concern that many federal and state politicians have about young 
children of 15 years and upwards who are roaming the streets in all capital cities without access to permanent 
accommodation. A task force has been established consisting mainly of non-government sector members. It also 
has two state government representatives - one from Queensland and one from Western Australia from our 
department In a short time the task force has developed guidelines and called for expressions of interest, which will 
be examined by the group with a view to establishing pilot programs. Weare talking about $8m over three years. 
Even though there has been no guarantee of money in future years, it is generally felt that if the pilots are successful, 
ongoing funding will be provided by the Commonwealth Government for those successful programs. It has not been 
determined whether the pilots will be allocated on a state or territory basis. We do know that those pilots that can 
show a close working relationship between the non-government sector and the relevant government department - in 
this case, ourselves - will have more chance of being successful in winning a pilot than those that are non-government 
or just government. 

I am not in a position to comment regarding the education and training program, but I can say regarding youth 
homelessness that we are quite excited about the pilot program and we will be keen to see Western Australia 
successful in winning one. We are working closely with a number of non-government agencies to bring that to 
fruition. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Mr Chairman, I have asked the Minister directly to indicate where the $40m saving will be 
achieved in the Budget. He refused to answer. Mr Chairman, I ask you to ask him the question directly. 

The CHAIRMAN: Why ask me to ask him directly, before you have asked the question? 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: If a person is asked a question when appearing before a committee of the Parliament, that 
person is required to answer. That person is not required to avoid the question. I ask you, Mr Chairman, to ask the 
Minister directly to detail the $4Om saving. It is incumbent on you to ask the question, or Hon Bob Thomas might 
ask him that question directly. It is a question that deserves an answer. Let us have it! 

[10.40 am] 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: I am very comfortable about your picking up the extreme emotional response ofHon John 
Halden and asking that question, Mr Chairman. 

The CHAIRMAN: We are talking about Family and Children's Services. The Minister has been asked a global 
question about Family and Children's Services, but I suggest that if he feels comfortable answering the question, that 
is fine. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Although you, Mr Chairman, were right to remind everybody that I am representing the 
Minister for Family and Children's Services in this portfolio, I took it that the question was about the Government 
overall. As I said to the member before, he and I can do a bit of grandstanding about whether I answer the question 
directly and what are the terms of reference and standing orders of this committee as a committee of the Parliament. 
However, the fact is that the Government, as Mr Bob Fisher has already indicated in describing his administration 
of the department, will find that $4Om. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: It is $6Om. The Government has already committed to $4Om. I want to know about that 
$4Om. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: I know the member does. I am telling him, sadly, that he will not find out today because 
I do not have that information with me. He can ask me for as long as he likes and refer to the standing orders. 
However, it is not a matter of not answering the question: If I do not have that information, I cannot answer it. 
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Hon JOHN HALDEN: Minister, you told me in the transcript that you knew where the $40m was. Where is it? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: In this morning's transcript? 

HonJOHNHALDEN: Yes. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Hon John Halden can interpret it that way if he likes. I said that the Government would 
deliver those changes. That was explained this morning in answer to a question by Hon Cheryl Davenport and it is 
something the Opposition has trouble coming to terms with. It believes every program is in place and any change 
to it will deliver a negative result in the future. It refuses to acknowledge that the change in the Federal Government's 
allocation of funding does not mean that a reduction will be made to every service across the board as a consequence, 
because the amount of funding that was already identified this morning in one particular area is being significantly 
increased. That is the sort of management that is being put forward. That is why I agree with the federal Budget, 
and that is why I like to think I have an input into where the $4Om will come from and how a range of other services 
will be delivered. Many changes have taken place since this Government came to office in 1993, and there will be 
many more. That does not mean the Opposition will agree with them, or that all people in the community will agree 
with them. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: If we knew what they were, we might be able to discuss them. 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: The member will get to know about them when the people who deliver the services have 
been properly consulted about the end result of those changes. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: The Minister talked about significant increases. How much are they in this department? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Hon John Halden was just told that the answer to a question from Hon Cheryl Davenport 
was that there would be an increase in that area. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I know that, Minister. I am asking this: Globally in this department, what is the increase in 
funding in specific purpose grants? 

Mr FISHER: As I indicated at the beginning of the committee in response to a question by the Chair about whether 
cuts had been made in our budget, no cuts have been made to Family and Children's Services' budget at this point 
as a result of the commonwealth Budget. Similarly, there have been no increases in our budget. Our budget is 
obviously appropriated by the State Parliament and has not changed. I was making the point that the commonwealth 
Budget introduced new initiatives that ID'pacted on the department's clients. That relates to the increase in funding 
in the emergency relief area and to youth homelessness. 

Hon JOHN HALDE~: Will that go through your budget? 

Mr FISHER: No, thc~c are not tied grants; the money is commonwealth appropriated. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: If the Minister does not know now how the Family and Children's Services budget will be 
affected by the S40m cuts of which we are already aware, and have been for some time, when will he know? Can 
the Minster telI us that with any precision? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: The end of this financial year is 30 June next year. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Is that when you will tell us? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: I did not say that. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: You are implying it. 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: I am not implying anything; I am giving a few statistical facts that Hon John ~alden seems 
to forget. When the Opposition was in government, for example, the state Budget did not come down until later than 
this, and a quarter of the year, and sometimes nearly half the year, had already passed. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: The year before last this Government's Budget did not go through until December, so let us 
not go on with that nonsense. I have never heard such drivel. 
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Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Is Hon John Halden suffering as a consequence of last week's activities? 

The CHAIRMAN: Order! 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I have one thing in my favour: I will always have you there to nail, Minister. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: In answer to the question about when it will happen: It will happen when the Government 
has properly consulted with the departments on the programs that must be delivered to the people of Western 
Australia in the most efficient manner. When the Government has done that, people will know about it. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: I refer specifically to the $6Om cut to general purpose grants. The Premier indicated that 
$4Om of savings had been found. Are any of those savings from Family and Children's Services? 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: As the member was told this morning, at this time no decision has been made to cut any of 
the programs in Family and Children's Services. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: A further $19.9m must be found to make up that $59.9m reduction in the state Budget. Is 
Family and Children's Services negotiating with Treasury for a reduction? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Every department is negotiating with Treasury on the sorts of services each department 
provides. The Government will ensure that the services this department and every other department are required to 
deliver will be provided in the most efficient manner. The Federal Government made changes due to financial 
necessity for the future of this nation. They are changes that all members opposite should acknowledge and adhere 
to, rather than describe as a burden on future generations - the very people that members opposite sometimes make 
out they are concerned about. 

The Government cannot give it to those people with the one hand, but then take twice as much off them with the 
other. Rather than look at the disease that has been caused by the financial mismanagement of this nation over a long 
period, we must attempt to look at the prevention of the disease. That is what the Federal Government's Budget and 
the State Government's Budget are about; that is, ensuring that we deliver to the people of Western Australia in the 
most efficient and cost effective manner the sorts of services that Governments are required to deliver. That will 
ensure they get the best value for money and will not simply be taxed. As Hon Bob Thomas knows, Governments 
do not have money; it comes from people in the community. 

[10.50 am] 

Hon BOB THOMAS: The Minister indicated that all departments are negotiating with Treasury to identify more 
savings as a result of the $19.9m federal grants cut. What savings are likely to be made within Family and Children's 
Services? 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: It is not considering savings as a result of the $20m to which you have just referred. That 
is an overall government responsibility. At the end of the day the federal cutbacks may not have any financial impact 
on departments. Other avenues can be explored; for example, the opportunity is always available to realise 
government assets. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Which ones are you considering selling? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: The Government will consider that avenue. It should not be assumed that the Government 
will make cuts across the board or in one or two areas. Main Roads is an example we will talk about later in the day. 
I still have no indication from the federal Department of Transport of what final allocation will be made to this State; 
nor has any indication been given by some of the other services. We cannot make final decisions until we know 
whether assistance may come in the form of say, a program from someone who delivers services or as a result of 
funding from the private sector or Government. I am not making excuses. The Government is not happy about this 
state of affairs, but it is working its way through it. We respect the Opposition's right to ask questions. As I said, 
nobody wants to hold on to answers any longer than past March, I suppose, by which time we will probably have an 
election. 

Hon CHERYL DAVENPORT: Mr Fisher mentioned earlier that the State-Commonwealth Child Care Agreement 
would have to be renegotiated. The Cornmonwealth has decided to remove the operational subsidy from community 
based child care centres. To what extent will that decision lead to more informal child care arrangements? To what 
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extent will it lead to neglect of children by parents under financial pressure? Will the State provide financial 
assistance to community based child care centres in light of that decision to cut the operational subsidy? 

Mr BIRCHALL: It is difficult to estimate how many parents will remove their children from child care. 

Hon CHERYL DAVENPORT: Many children will be removed from child care centres if fees increase to the degree 
that has been predicted. 

Mr BIRCHALL: It is the State's role to ensure that quality child care is provided particularly through regulation of 
services. That will continue. Knowing the difficulties some community based child care centres may face, we are 
preparing to assist in any way we can with advice on both restructuring organisations and on continued provision of 
quality care. That is not only the State's role but also the Commonwealth's role. We will play our role should it be 
necessary. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Is the Opposition allowed to put on notice some questions? 

The CHAIRMAN: They can be tabled. A transcript will be made available which should be corrected and returned 
to the committee. Questions on notice should be answered within five working days and returned to the research 
officer. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I take issue with answers provided by the Minister for Transport and his advisers; for 
example, the Minister said, "There will be more money provided to this budget in this area." We then asked 
Mr Fisher if his budget had been decreased. He replied, "No." We asked if it had been increased. He again replied, 
"No." That sort of nonsense answer will not inform us of anything. The Government should be serious about this 
or there will be some stroppy people here all day. We will not tolerate answers that say one thing but which are 
contradicted by the Minister or his official directly afterwards. It is incumbent on the Chairman and the committee 
to ensure consistency in answers. Weare not here to have government propaganda pushed down our throats. 

[11.00 am] 

Division 91: Aboriginal Affairs, $24122 000-

[Hon Bob Thomas, Chairman.] 

[Hon N.F. Moore, Minister for Employment and Training.] 

[Mr C. Wyatt, Chief Executive Officer.] 

[Mr B. Warner, Director, Corporate Development.] 

The CHAIRMAN: Welcome to the post June hearings of the Legislative Council's Standing Committee on Estimates 
and Financial Operations, which will deal with the changes to the state Budget caused by the federal Budget. I expect 
all the questions to relate to the impact of the federal Budget on this year's state Budget allocation to the Aboriginal 
Affairs portfolio. I ask the Minister to give a brief overview of any changes. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: We are here to respond to the committee's questions about the effect of the commonwealth 
Budget on the state Budget. We are not here to defend, or otherwise, the federal Budget. The committee will 
appreciate that in respect of Aboriginal Affairs and the decision making process, the Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islander Commission arrangements are an important element. The way in which Aboriginal Affairs money is spent 
is determined by ATSIC. Mr Wyatt will explain that in more detail. It is fair to say that a number of decisions on 
the way in which ATSIC will spend its funds have not been made. It may be difficult to answer the more direct 
questions because the decisions have not been made by the appropriate organisation. It could mean that we do not 
know the effect on some areas at this stage. 

The CHAIRMAN: The committee understands that. 

Mr WYATT: At the standing officers' committee of the Aboriginal Affairs Ministerial Council in Adelaide four 
weeks ago an attempt was made to obtain from ATSIC accurate details of the funding cuts it has made because of 
the federal Budget. It will be a major agenda item for Ministers at the council meeting next month. Currently we 
are trying to assess the impact of the cuts on Aboriginal organisations, although we do not have sufficient information 

-
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from ATSIC. It does not impact on the department as such, but it certainly impacts on the mainstream agencies. I 
have with me a paper titled "Commonwealth Budget Decisions - Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Commission 
Affairs - Implication for Member Jurisdictions", which was given to the officers' working party in Adelaide. I am 
happy to make it available to the committee. 

The CHAIRMAN: The paper will be tabled at the conclusion of this hearing. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: Is there direct funding to the Aboriginal Affairs Department by the Commonwealth? 

Mr WYATT: We have been carrying out joint projects with ATSIC in three areas. The information is detailed in 
a letter that was in response to a letter from the Chairman, Mr Montgomery. The committee already has that 
information. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: What are the three program areas? 

Mr WYATT: The remote community essential services maintenance workers pilot project; commonwealth 
contribution towards the implementation of regional justice councils; two instalments of remote community essential 
services under a pilot project; and a final two instalments of funding towards a regional justice council. I am referring 
to 1996-97 - the previous two were in 1995-96. Finally, the transfer of mission lands - commonwealth contribution 
that matches the State contribution - falls within the land program. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: What is the total of those programs? 

Mr WYATT: The total is $837 000 this year. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: Is that unaffected by the cuts to this point? 

MrWYATT: Yes. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: Is that the only direct funding to the Aboriginal Affairs Department? 

Mr WYATT: We entered into an agreement with ATSIC for a five year term to implement the recommendations 
of the report of the Royal Commission into Aboriginal Deaths in Custody. We will not know until next year whether 
ATSIC intends to honour this agreement. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: At what point - for the next budget? 

Mr WYATT: For the 1997-98 budget. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Will the $837 000 impact on this year's or next year's budget? 

Mr WYATT: The $180 000 for remote community essential services will not be affected next year. The $407 000 
for setting up regional justice councils will not be affected. The $230 000 is the total of all the finished projects for 
this year. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Will you get all the money for them this year? 

Mr WYATT: We have the money. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: There has been a 1.7 per cent cut to the State. What will be the impact of that cut on the 
department? 

Mr WYATT: Very little, if any. 

Mr WARNER: In relation to the three items -

Hon TOM STEPHENS: I am referring to the 1.7 per cent cut. 

Mr WARNER: In relation to ATSIC there will be no effect. 
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The CHAIRMAN: We are talking about ATSIC. 

Mr WARNER: We have made $337 000. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: What will be the effect on the department? 

Mr WARNER: Very little. The department was established two years ago on 1 November and we can see 
opportunities for regional strategies. We can also see that they will be guaranteed. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: Is the Aboriginal Affairs Department coordinating that effort? 

Mr WY A IT: That is correct. 

[11.10 am] 
Hon TOM STEPHENS: Cuts to ATSIC funding will impact significantly on the community youth support program 
particularly in the south west. What is the Department of Aboriginal Affairs' response to the cuts by ATSIC to those 
programs? 

Mr WY A IT: We have not really seen the impact of cuts although we have had much communication with Aboriginal 
organisations that will be affected by those cuts, most of which will falloff the hook in March next year. In the 
meantime, we are talking to the mainstream agencies about what support they can give to those organisations that 
are providing a worthwhile service to the youth area particularly and also to the youth training area. Until we have 
the information we are unable to determine exactly what the impac~ of those ATSIC cuts will be. We are without 
that detail but have been attempting to get from ATSIC information about where those cuts will impact in Western 
Australia. yv e still do not have that information, although ATSIC will ensure that the implications of all those cuts 
will be on the table as a major concern for all Ministers to consider at the ministerial council in Adelaide in 
November. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: ATSIC has advised the organisations that they are about to have removed from them funds 
for the community youth support program. I am given to understand that the States have been advised also of the 
programs that have been cut as a result of ATSIC withdrawal from such things as the community youth support 
programs. You must now know that coming on stream is a range of programs that are about to be shut down. Have 
you prepared a response? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Are you referring to commonwealth funded and run programs? 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: Yes. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: That does not affect the state Budget. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: Except that it has always been the task of this state agency, being the coordinating agency, 
to respond to the needs of Aboriginal people on behalf of the Western Australian Government. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: It is another question if the member is suggesting that the State should pick up every program 
that ATSIC decides not to fund. That will be considered down the track. However, it is not appropriate, as I said 
at the beginning, for us to be defending or rejoicing in the federal Budget. We are trying to explain the effect it is 
having on our Budget. I understand that the programs to which the member is referring are commonwealth funded 
programs. The commonwealth cuts will be considered when we know the final circumstances. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: Many of programs that will be cut are focused on programs associated with youth and in 
particular with keeping Aboriginal youth away from the juvenile justice system. The State will see an impact on that 
area of activity if the programs are shut down. IfI understand Mr Wyatt correctly, no state program is ready currently 
to pick up programs that are about to shut down and we are about to see a major impact on the state Budget in other 
areas; that is, the statistics will now reflect the number of people who were kept out of the juvenile justice statistics 
by programs aimed at targeting their needs. One way or another, the State will have to be more proactive, which 
seems to be indicated by Mr Wyatt's answers. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Mr Wyatt is here to describe to the member in technical detail the effect of the commonwealth 
Budget on the state Budget. He has said that commonwealth cuts to programs will not have a direct effect on the state 
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Budget in a technical sense. Whether the State picks up some of these programs and what it does in other areas which 
might be affected are matters which are being worked through as we find out the circumstances. Right now we do 
not know all the circumstances, as Mr Wyatt has pointed out. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: In answer to a question by Hon Tom Stephens, Mr Warner referred to a general cut across 
the board of 1.4 per cent to financial assistance. Is that a universal cut across all departments? 

Mr WARNER: It was conveyed tIlat way, yes. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: That is interesting; thank you. In relation to the same issue, you referred to $300 000 in 
savings as part of administrative arrangements and operational efficiencies. Will you detail how you have defined 
administrative arrangements and operational efficiencies? 

Mr WARNER: They are overhead costs that are involved in maintaining eight separate sites. We have seven 
regional offices and a Perth central office, and 106 staff moving about and consulting with Aboriginal people. There 
is a requirement for staff to undertake a fair amount of travel and to exercise discretion in the travel need and the 
travel cost. We are a new organisation. We will have been in operation for two years on 1 November. We have 
established seven regional offices in the last 12 months. Forty-eight per cent of our total staff is entirely new, and 
is not from anyone of the three originating agencies. We see much opportunity for a continued management effort 
to resolve the overhead costs associated with just doing our business, and we see $300 000 being used from our 
budget of $l.4m in just keeping regional offices open and running with telephones, vehicles, power and leasehold 
costs together with the office overheads involved in the Perth central office. The travel budget of $300 000 is 
achievable across all those items of expenditure. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: How will the sales tax exemption abolition affect you? 

Mr WARNER: The sales tax exemption has some impact on only five people participating in the executive vehicle 
scheme. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Do you know what that is? 

Mr WARNER: I do not have the exact dollar figure. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I understand you said there are eight regional offices with one in Perth, if I can call that a 
regional office, and 106 staff and their travel costs. Are you considering the closure or relocation of one of those 
offices? You are nodding. Will there also be a reduction in the travel costs for those 106 people? 

Mr WARNER: The decision about the closure of any office is a policy decision. However, in our planning, we are 
looking at a downsized central office and relocation of staff to the regional centres as a means of performing our core 
business more effectively. In answer to the question about total staff travel, one of the reasons for establishing the 
regional offices was, first, to get closer to the customer and, secondly, to recognise that locating staff in the regions 
can defray some overhead costs, travel being one of them. We see a continuing scrutiny of travel. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: How many staff are in head office currently? 

Mr WARNER: Approximately 70. One-third of our staff is in the regions. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: The estimated capital expenditure for the coming year is a little over $1.4m. Will any of that 
$300 000 be sourced from within the capital expenditure budget? 

Mr WARNER: I do not expect so. I expect it to be concerned mainly with the operational efficiencies from our 
current operations. 

[11.20 am] 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: Is the $3m allocation that I understand you have for Jigalong and Oombulgurri still 
unaffected by commonwealth cuts? 

MrWYATT: Yes. 
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Hon TOM STEPHENS: Will $1.5m be going to each community? 

Mr WYATT: There were three communities in the benchmarking. Bunnengarra. Oombulgurri and Jigalong. We 
are still negotiating with the consultants at ATSIC as to what must be done this year. Whether $1.5m is allocated 
to each community remains to be seen. We would like to see some things done at Bunnengarra at the same time. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: So the all up allocation is $3m? 

MrWYATT: Yes. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: Will that be split between three communities. if you can achieve matching ATSIC 
contributions? 

MrWYATT: Yes. 

Hon TOM.STEPHENS: Dollar for dollar? 

Mr WYATT: We are negotiating that with ATSIC. It has not been finalised. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: Does that mean that if you do not receive ATSIC funds. you will not allocate funds to those 
communities? 

Mr WYATT: No. commitments have been made during a long process of consultation with the communities through 
the CEO's working party group. Those projects are now on the drawing boards. The consultants that have been 
appointed are the same consultants that ATSIC used under the HIT program. so there is no duplication. They will 
proceed. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: For what program are the Bunnengarra funds? 

Mr WYATT: Bunnengarra has had quite substantial funds from ATSIC under the HIT program. It would be nice 
to tidy up something to ensure that the demonstration project was seen in the community as a real and positive project 
that will improve living conditions. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: That means housing? 

MrWYATT: Yes. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Does the department propose to cover any amount of the 1.4 per cent reduction by asset 
sales? 

MrWYATT: No. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: We have resolved that you see the application of the 1.4 per cent reduction as an instruction 
to your department among a universal instruction to departments. Is it your understanding that the application of the 
1.4 per cent reduction applies to recurrent funding and not a combination of recurrent and capital expenditure or do 
you see capital expenditure as being part and parcel of the total figure to which the 1.4 per cent reduction applies? 

Mr WARNER: I am not sure that I ever applied my mind to it. For a range of reasons we saw the application of the 
1.4 per cent reduction being achievable because it was consistent with our management program to look at the 
discretionary costs that go into business overheads. We saw it as consistent with the life cycle of the department. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: The sum of $300 000 in absolute terms does not represent 1.4 per cent of either figure exactly: 
I wonder how that figure was arrived at. 

Mr WARNER: The figure of $300 000 is a round figure. I do not have the exact figure with me. It probably 
requires clarification. I can check and supply further information. I assume that it has been calculated on recurrent 
expenditure. 

The CHAIRMAN: That question is on notice. 
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Hon TOM STEPHENS: As part of my preparation for this committee I contacted a large number of organisations 
to find out how they would be affected by ATSIC budget cuts. A whole series of organisations indicated that those 
cuts will leave them in crisis. I will give the Minister a quick flavour of them, so that he has the opportunity of 
commenting on whether the State Government can respond. They include the Baulawah Aboriginal Community, with 
Denis Davey, the Chairman, saying that the absence of ATSIC funds will leave them hard pressed to find funds for 
the Bardi airstrip to be upgraded and maintained, together with the lights which are necessary for the Royal Flying 
Doctor service. 

\ 

Hon N.F. MOORE: I do not know whether I can raise a point of order. Obviously the member is about to give us 
a long list of problems caused by some real or imaginary cuts in the ATSIC budget, which is not what we are here 
to debate today. I do not think that I am here to explain what ATSIC or the Commonwealth Government mayor may 
not do. 

The CHAIRMAN: Your point is taken. Let us listen to the question to determine whether it should be accepted. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: It is a policy speech. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: I will endeavour to keep it brief. Aboriginal community organisations that have contacted 
me have highlighted an alarming situation as a result of commonwealth funding cuts through ATSIC. It seems to me 
to be worth listening to, Minister. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: You may send me a copy of the list any time you wish. We are here to discuss the state Budget. 

The CHAIRMAN: Order! The member should come to the kernel of the question or I will give the call to somebody 
else. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: The gist of the question is, will the Aboriginal Affairs Department be in a position to 
respond to the needs of Western Australian citizens who are currently dependent on ATSIC funding for essential 
services across remote and regional Western Australia when those communities experience the impact of the cuts in 
ATSIC budget allocations? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: In general terms the State will react when it knows the full ramifications of any ATSIC 
decisions. We must bear in mind that the number of dollars going to ATSIC has not been reduced as there has been 
a carryover from the previous year, which was not agreed to. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: Nobody accepts that analysis. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: You can argue that, if you wish, but the suggestion has been made that the number of dollars 
is the same as the amount spent last year. I will not go into that. We are not here to debate the commonwealth 
Budget. If there are any ramifications in which the State believes it should be involved, I have no doubt that the 
responsible Minister will come to the Government with some propositions. Nobody is more enthusiastic than the 
State Government to ensure that its citizens are well and truly looked after. The department, through good 
housekeeping. has managed to save funds. The member might applaud that. The department will respond to the 
consequences of the federal Budget when they are fully known. One of the problems is that some of the ramifications 
of the federal Budget are not yet that obvious, and no more so than with ATSIC because, as the member will know, 
it is an elected body that makes its own judgment about these matters. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: Basically your analysis does not accord with the facts. The budget allocations from ATSIC 
to the Aboriginal organisations have been made known to those organisations. Organisations have indicated that they 
are experiencing budget cuts. They include the area of training funds. In answers in the House you indicated that 
your department would try to step into areas such as those where training funds were removed and programs were 
appropriate to be maintained. 

A whole range of organisations have had their community and youth support and other programs slashed. The 
department has been advised, yet there does not seem to be a state government response through this coordinating 
department that would leave us with any confidence that there is a coordinated response to the needs of citizens, not 
just in the area of training but also in essential service areas that government has responsibility for, such as power, 
water, roads and transport. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: As I have repeatedly said, the Government will respond when the total situation is known. If 
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the member is saying that wherever the Federal Government cuts expenditure the State Government must make it up, 
maybe he could say in which areas we should cut back or where we should increase taxes to increase our revenue to 
pick up the difference. The decision was made at a national level. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: You should not be acquiescing. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: The Federal Government decided at the commonwealth level. We provided support at the state 
level. We had to try to wind back some of the excess debt and overspending of previous Governments. The situation 
we inherited in Western Australia is the same as that inherited by the Federal Government. We cannot keep spending 
more and more money on the basis that the deficits are irrelevant. So, decisions have been taken at the state and 
federal levels to wind back expenditure in some areas. 

[11.30 am] 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: That includes removing basic services from the poorest section of the Australian 
community. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: That is a very unfair statement in respect of what we are doing in Western Australia. 

Mr WYATT: The member mentioned Bardi, which is quarantined. Most of the infrastructure health funds have been 
quarantined by the Federal Government in its relationship with ATSIC. There should not be any real cause for alarm 
in that area. It will impact on Aboriginal organisations in the Murchison, Gascoyne, metropolitan and south west 
regions and some of the organisations involved in other than mainstream activity. 

Hon Tom Stephens interjected. 

Mr WYATT: Yes. At the end of this month the Minister will receive and consider an essential services report as 
a result of Dr Hames' report and the Premier's social justice report. Once we have the accurate figure for the ATSIC 
cuts we will be able to give the Minister advice about airstrips and health and the impact that the cuts will have on 
health. However, those funds have been quarantined. 

Hon TOM STEPHENS: They are dependent upon the training funds that have been slashed. Those functions work 
when one has the whole cocktail. When there are cuts, the whole structure falls down - there are not enough funds 
in the whole system to maintain the community infrastructure. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I want clarification of some information, and I accept that the answers may well be in the 
tabled document. The Minister said that there have been no commonwealth cuts to his department. Is that correct? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: That is correct. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: What commonwealth department cuts to the Western Australian budget does the Minister 
envisage as a result of his discussions? Does he have a likely ballpark figure? 

Mr WYATT: I do not have any accurate figures. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: What is Mr Wyatt being asked to speculate about - the total effect of the federal Budget in 
Western Australia? 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: The information may well be in the tabled document. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Mr Wyatt does not need to speak about that. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: If it is in the document, what is the number? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: It is not there. The member is asking an officer to quantify the effect of a federal budget 
decision bearing in mind that much of the funding is allocated through ATSIC, which is independent-of the Federal 
Government to that extent. It is an unfair question. 

The CHAIRMAN: I will give the member the opportunity to rephrase the question. 
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Hon JOHN HALDEN: We know from evidence from Treasury that the Minister is liaising with his federal 
counterpart in relation to this measure. Does he know the figure being contemplated for cuts to Western Australia? 

Mr WYATT: Not at this stage. 

The CHAIRMAN: Hon Tom Stephens will table his remaining question. Hon John Halden also has a number of 
questions that will be placed on notice. Departmental officers will receive a copy of the transcript from Hansard. 
We ask that it be checked to ensUfe that it is accurate and that it be returned within five days. We thank officers for 
their participation. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I notice that reference is made to a number of specific purpose grants. However, when one 
looks at the Consolidated Fund one sees that many of the grants referred to are not detailed under the heading 
"Specific Purpose Grants". That is particularly negligent. We should know what they are, assuming the Budget 
Papers specify what they are. Reference is now made to a whole range of other specific purpose grants. Will the 
committee consider making a recommendation to the Government to ensure that specific purpose grants are detailed 
appropriately? 

Hon MURRAY MONTGOMERY: I have been looking through the Program Statements and have also found that 
interesting. The member's comments reinforce what I have noticed. 

[11.40 am] 

Division 12: Conunerce and Trade, $58 100 000 -

[Hon I.D. MacLean, Chairman.] 

[Hon Norman Moore, Minister for Employment and Training.] 

[Mr B. Sutherland, Chief Executive Officer.] 

[Mr R. Bremmer, Director, Corporate Services Division.] 

[Mr A. Webb, Financial Analyst.] 

Mr MOORE: My advisers will provide information that the committee requires. I will repeat what I said on the last 
occasion: We are not here to debate the federal Budget, but to provide whatever information we can about its effect 
on the state Budget. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: We have come to a common view. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: I am pleased. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I understand that Treasury wrote to all government departments asking for a universal 1.4 per 
cent across the board budget cut to offset the reduction in financial assistance grants to the States. Has the department 
acceded to that 1.4 per cent cut? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Treasury has required departments to look at the 1.4 per cent cut, which is the State's 
contribution in a roundabout way to reducing the federal deficit. That 1.4 per cent is not a very large percentage. 
We have already heard from the previous department how good housekeeping has covered that 1.4 per cent. No 
decisions have been made by this agency on how that 1.4 per cent might be arrived at. The Minister has advised me 
that he is discussing the matter with his department. However, no decisions have been made on that. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: It is clear from Treasury's comments and what we have heard already today that a number 
of departments have acceded to this cut. What areas are being looked at to achieve that sort of efficiency? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: I am at a bit of a disadvantage. I do not know what Treasury has told the member. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: It is in the transcript. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: I have not seen that, so I am at a slight disadvantage. The Government is seeking from its 
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agencies some tightening of the belt to fund the number of dollars that are necessary to overcome the reduction in 
funds from the Commonwealth. When the agencies have had a good hard look at what they can do, collectively the 
Government will make decisions about the totality of the exercise. The member must understand that some agencies 
are affected differently from others by the commonwealth Budget as opposed to the FAG's question. That must be 
considered at the same time. It may be that some agencies are better placed to find that 1.4 per cent than are others. 
Collectively, Treasury's job is to look at what the agencies can deliver and ultimately work out how the State 
Government's contribution will be funded. I think Mr Halden is asking Mr Sutherland to speculate on where he might 
find the money. I do not know whether that is appropriate. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Treasury has told this committee that agencies must decide where that 1.4 per cent cut will 
be made. As no decision has been made, and it is an in-house responsibility, I ask the Minister and his representatives 
in what areas they will make the cuts? I think that is totally appropriate bearing in mind what Treasury has said. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: It is not only appropriate but the whole purpose of this committee. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: There may be a number of areas we are looking at that, ultimately, will not be affected. It would 
be unfortunate if somebody made mischief of what was being considered when that may never happen. Members 
must take any information from Mr Sutherland on the basis that it is speculation and no decisions have been made. 
They are options. Perhaps Mr Sutherland might like to run through a couple of those options 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Perhaps all. 

Mr SUTHERLAND: As Mr Moore has stated, Mr Cowan, the Minister for Commerce and Trade, has not made a 
determination with Treasury on this issue of the 1.4 per cent. It is under consideration with him. Our budget is 
roundly $52m, including the capital program, which will not be affected by this issue. The effect of the 1.4 per cent 
cut will be $600 000 or $700 000 across that budget. We do not regard nondiscretionary areas of expenditure, such 
as salaries, as areas for cuts. However, areas in discretionary programs throughout the trade investment and regional 
development programs might be finetuned, for example, with consultants etc. The department is a significant user 
of consultants and contractors. That probably would be the major area for consideration. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: Your department would not consider deferring any capital works programs? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: At this stage we do not intend to prune our capital works program, which is roundly $11m. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Is it an in-house decision that capital works be excluded? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: That was from a discussion between the Minister and me. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: That is although Treasury says it can include capital works? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: It can include anything. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Is there any likelihood that the 1.4 per cent cut that is proposed could be achieved by any 
increase in revenue to your department? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: Not in any realistic expectation. We have responsibility for Technology Park sales, which have 
a budget component. Obviously that must be considered 12 months in advance of what is likely to occur based on 
historical trend lines. By pure accident the sale of a block of land could make a difference; however, we would not 
be projecting that. The other revenues to the department are very limited. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I wlderstand there is some ambiguity in the extent of cuts in specific purpose grants from the 
Commonwealth to your department. From discussions with your federal counterparts what areas do you believe may 
be cut, and by how much? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: The most significant specific purpose grant of any substance is the AusIndustry program 
payment we receive from the Commonwealth, which was budgeted and agreed to before the cuts to be of the order 
of $2.3m. That is matched by an equivalent state contribution to that program. 

[11.50 am] 
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Hon JOHN HAlDEN: Has that been cut totally? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: No. The program has a federal component of $2.3m, which has been reduced as far as the State 
is concerned by between $650 000 and $700 000; that is, roundly down to $1.7m from $2.3m. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Are there any other examples? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: They are the only specific payments received from the Commonwealth. Any other payments 
made already are not under the budget cuts. Those would be program payments not directly made to our department, 
but relating to cooperative research centres and the like; they are continuing. 

Hon JOHN HAlDEN: Briefly, will you indicate for what that AusIndustry money is used? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: That program is a joint commonwealth-state program used for enterprise development. All 
States participate. Exercises such as business planning, financial planning and export market planning are performed 
by a private consultant contracted by the small or medium sized business to improve its international competitiveness. 
The program's objective is to improve the competitiveness of small to medium export-orientated businesses. 

The CHAIRMAN: You said to Hon Kim Chance that the AusIndustry program is conducted by private consultants. 

Mr SUTHERLAND: The funds are spent through private consultants, which are delivering services to the firms. 

The CHAIRMAN: Does that money come from the Commonwealth to the private firms to which the State 
contributes, or does it come to the State? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: It comes from the (:ommonwealth to a Treasury account which we administer and from which 
payments are made by the State. The State is the sole administrator of that program in Western Australia. The 
Commonwealth puts in 25¢, the State puts in 25¢, and the private company puts in 50¢ for a consultancy; it is usually 
a dollar-for-dollar program. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: With the enterprise development nature of Auslndustry funds, would it be fair to say that a 
reduction in Auslndustry funds will have some impact on, first, the services delivered by the business enterprise 
centres and, second, the services delivered by the development commissions? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: To take the latter question first, it will have no impact on services delivered by the development 
commissions - they do not deliver this program. There will be a nominal impact, if any, on business enterprise 
centres. They are a referrer to the department. These programs are generally directed not to the micro-enterprise, 
start up companies, but to those companies entering the first stage of growth into export markets. They are more 
likely to be found in our marketplace and in the Small Business Development Corporation direct marketplace, not 
in the business enterprise centres as such. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: That is the case even though it could occur in some circumstances? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: It could occur. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: It would not handicap them? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: It would not impact on the basic role of the BECs. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Is the revocation of the wholesale sales tax exemption likely to affect you in any tangible 
sense? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: I do not believe it will directly effect our service. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: How many executive vehicles do you have? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: I will take that on notice. 

Hon JOHN HAlDEN: Once you have told us that figure, what is the dollar implication of the revocation of the 
wholesale sales tax rebate on cars? 
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Hon MURRAY MONTGOMERY: Through the Minister to Mr Sutherland, the Department of Commerce and Trade 
views itself as being export-orientated to a great degree as it pushes into various overseas markets. We have opened 
four offices in Asia. Is there any chance that those offices' resources will be cut in any decision you make to reduce 
the budget by 1.4 per cent? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: No plans have been discussed with the Minister which will affect those offices' operation this 
year. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Returning to the three broad areas identified as those in which some cost saving could be made 
- namely, trade investment, regional development and the use of consultants - how do you see those savings being 
made in respect of regional development? Would the savings be directly within the budgets of the development 
commissions, for example? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Before Mr Sutherland answers the question, one should consider the historical context. A 
massive increase in support for regional development commissions has occurred over the last couple of years. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: The South West Development Commission would not agree with you. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: The South West Development Commission was a one-off; it was an interesting creature in its 
early days. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: What about the Great Southern Development Commission? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: We have expanded the commissions throughout Western Australia - they are everywhere now. 
The question needs to be contemplated in that context. 

Mr SU'fHERLAND: The regional development commissions' budgets are not included in the Commerce and Trade 
budget. We have no responsibility for their budgets. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: But you fund them. 

Mr SUTHERLAND: We do not fund them directly. We fund the occasional request for consultancy work done by, 
or for, them through the Regional Development Council. A departmental function is more to service the council, 
which contains the chairpersons of the nine commissions. Certainly, requests can be and are made for consultancy 
work on various aspects for that council within the Department of Commerce and Trade. That has a $1 Om budget. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I do not wish to get into the same argument with the Minister as Hon Tom Stephens had; 
however, can any information be provided on the cuts in federal government departmental programs provided in 
Western Australia but not administered by your department? Can some reasonable figure be provided to give some 
idea of the situation? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Again, I raise the question of relevance. We are not here to talk about the federal Budget, other 
than its impact on the state Budget. If the honourable member wants to know the effects of the federal Budget on 
Western Australia, sources of information other than this committee are available; the federal estimates committee 
has that role. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: In fairness, the Minister answered his own question, and Treasury has answered it for us. 
At the moment negotiations are taking place between the state and federal departments, which are informing each 
other on these matters. Nobody outside the departments knows this information. It is most appropriate for me to ask 
these questions. I do not want to argue the point. Where are the cuts likely to be, and how much will be involved? 
The question is most appropriate. Whatever we do with that information, more than anything else it is only 
information for us to consider bearing mind our responsibility for the State. If it is suddenly outside the term of 
reference for this committee to have an interest in, and responsibility for, what is happening in this State, I guess I 
will be ruled out of order. 

The CHAIRMAN: I agree with Hon John Halden that he is ruled out of order. The requirement for departments to 
know the exact impact of the federal Budget on them by way of some trickle down effect, when it is not directly 
related to the services and programs they are supplying, is a little difficult at this point. I am sure when the budget 
statements come down for this year, any flow-on effects from o.ther services will be shown in the budget figures. It 
would be wrong to ask the departments to supply broad outlines or guesstimates in this forum. 
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[12 noon] 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: That is right. The Minister said that when the budget papers come down this year I will be 
better advised. The fact of the matter is that the budget papers are down, and I am in the dark. No further budget 
papers will be brought down so the only opportunity I have to get this information is right here. I do not mind what 
the committee does. I might go away and sulk for two seconds. However, this is a very simple question, and I cannot 
understand the reticence of either the Minister or you, Mr Chairman, in this matter. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: As I understand it, the member is asking what is the effect of the federal Budget in the area in 
which this department is involved in Western Australia. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Yes, in terms of programs that exist that are currently funded and administered by the Federal 
Government. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: We are here with all the information at our fingertips -

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Has the Minister had any discussions with the federal Minister, or not? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: That is quite irrelevant. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: It is totally relevant. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Let us not get into an argument. This agency has responsibility for administering the budget 
of the Department of Commerce and Trade, interestingly not the development commission, which I should have been 
awake to earlier. These gentlemen are not here to advise what the Federal Government is doing with its money, other 
than how it affects the State's Budget. T,:.e member can find out from any other federal sources that he wishes about 
what is happening with respect to the federal Budget and how the Federal Government is spending its money. In fact, 
meetings like this go on ad nauseam in the Senate to look at what is happening with the federal Budget. If the 
member wanted us to tell him what is happening with the federal Budget at the same time as the state Budget, we 
should have been given a little more notice and perhaps the terms of reference of this committee should have been 
extended. We have come along today with the sole purpose of making available as much information as we have. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: In fairness, that is almost nothing. It has been almost a waste of time. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: The member has come along with an expectation of ascertaining that the State will go bankrupt 
as a result of the federal Budget and he wants to tell the media about it. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I have just come along with an expectation of getting an answer. 

The CHAIRMAN (Hon I.D. MacLean): Order! I c;:all Hon Kim Chance with a question on a different subject. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: This question is not quite on a different subject, because it would be out of order. We do know 
a $4Om cut has been flagged by the Treasurer in response to the change in the financial assistance grants. Surely the 
departments and agencies can tell us with some precision about that $4Om cut or, at least, where the cuts will occur. 
Given the time since the federal Budget, it is quite a reasonable question to ask, as Hon John Halden did, where the 
Government believes the changes may be made. If the Minister does not think that is appropriate, that is fine. I can 
see that it might be difficult to give an answer in fine detail; however, it is reasonable to ask whether we will see cuts 
involving the expenditure made to this agency. If we are to see cuts, in which areas will they be - in part, that 
question has been answered; what are the cuts; and how will the people of Western Australia be affected by the 
translation of the changes - that is, the impact of the budgetary allocation of the Commonwealth on the State's 
allocation? They are reasonable questions. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: I think we have answered them. The previous agency that appeared before the committee for 
which I was the representing Minister was the Department of Aboriginal Affairs. It found $300 000. The Department 
of Commerce and Trade has not made the decisions about how the cuts will be translated into what it will do. Once 
the whole of Government is looked at, some agencies will bear a greater brunt than others, or some might not bear 
any brunt at all; it will depend on the circumstances that will prevail in a specific agency. That decision has not been 
made yet; therefore, I cannot say what the situation is. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: That, in itself, is interesting. 
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Hon N.F. MOORE: I have no doubt the member wi11learn when it happens. We are not even halfway through this 
financial year. We brought down a Budget that has been affected by the federal Budget. We are adjusting our 
expenditure and revenue to meet these new circumstances. Unlike the previous agency, this agency has not worked 
out how it will deal with the 1.4 per cent cuts, if it is to be affected by them. I just cannot tell members how the joint 
programs that the Commonwealth and State fund might affect us at the moment If the federal Budget directly affects 
Western Australia through our Budget in some other way, we are happy to try to answer those questions. What the 
federal Budget does beyond the State's jurisdiction or its financial resources is none of our business on this occasion. 
We will take an interest in it, but we are not here to answer questions on that. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: I can understand that. 

Hon JOHN HAlDEN: I am going to pursue this matter. I am getting annoyed. The previous agency detailed to this 
committee the implications of the cuts to the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Commission. Many have criticised 
ATSIC as not being a financially accountable organisation to the highest degree; yet, it came here and presented us 
with a document which went through items setting out how many jobs were affected and the increases in certain areas 
and so on. 

My question is exactly the same for this department. I am being refused an answer to it. This question was allowed 
an hour ago. Weare debating whether it can be asked now of this department. It is a very reasonable question. The 
Minister should be asked to answer this question or should ask one of the advisers to answer it. I have here the 
answer to the same question that was asked an hour ago. Can we have some consistency on this matter? Is it good 
enough for the Minister to allow the Department of Aboriginal Affairs to provide an answer about the implications 
of the Federal Government's cuts throughout the State, in programs that the Federal Government does not administer, 
and yet, an hour later, the Minister will not allow this department to answer the same question? 

What game is the Minister playing here in not providing us with answers? Must we go to our federal government 
colleagues: that is the suggestion - to get the answers to this issue, which do not exist in budget papers? Let us get 
on with this. Let us stop hiding. Let us stop this obfuscation of responsibility. Let us not play silly games with each 
other. Here is the proof of the pudding. If the committee wants me to read out the answer and to go through the 
implications of ATSIC cuts on Western Australia, dollar for dollar, I will. This is nonsense. I ask the Minister to 
answer the question. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: I have answered the question. IfHon John Halden wants to get annoyed, that is his prerogative. 
If the chief executi vc officer of the Department of Aboriginal Affairs is happy to provide information to him, which 
he provided at thc very beginning of the session, that is his decision. I am simply saying that it is not within the 
jurisdiction of this committee -

Hon JOHN HALDEN: The jurisdiction is there to ask. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: - to ask me, representing the Minister for Commerce and Trade, to tell the member what is in 
the federal Budget -

Hon JOHN HALDE!'1: I am asking the Minister to ask the advisers who have discussed it with those people. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: - and how it affects Western Australia, as opposed to the effect the federal Budget is having on 
the state Budget. 

Hon JOHN HAlDEN: Just answer the question! . 

Hon N.F. MOORE: We are happy to provide the advice. 

Hon JOHN HAlDEN: That would be nice. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Mr Sutherland has answered the member's question very well. 

Hon JOHN HAlDEN: He has not answered this one, because you will not let him. You are between me and the 
answer. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Can I have some protection, Mr Chairman? Hon John Halden made a long speech earlier. I 
do not know why he is doing that today. 
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The CHAIRMAN: To ask the Minister to advise this committee on the federally funded and federally run programs 
is outside the jurisdiction of the committee. If Hon John Halden wants to know about federally funded, federally 
administered programs, he must go to the federal people. I am quite happy to approach the chairman of the 
committee to see whether we can arrange a Senate hearing in Western Australia that the member can attend. 
However, that meeting would be on the basis that the Senate committee would be doing us a favour by holding its 
hearing here. We cannot insist that should occur or that a Minister should answer a question relating to a federally 
funded program that is not adminj.stered by a state department. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I understand this ruling. I understand the departmental representatives could give me an 
answer. The Minister refuses that. I accept that. I want to point out very clearly that this meeting is a charade in 
terms of getting available information; we all know that. I will bet that the three gentlemen sitting to the right of the 
Minister have discussed the implications offederal funding on Western Australian industry in this area. I ask the 
Minister to please provide me with an answer. I accept the ruling, Mr Chairman. I do not wish to pursue the matter 
any further. 

[12.10 pm] 

Hon BOB THOMAS: The State Government has had a reduction of $60m in financial assistance grants this year. 
The Treasurer said that was not much of a problem because $4Om worth of savings had already been identified. Will 
any of those $4Om savings be made by your department? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: I think that has been answered. That is the 1.4 per cent you are talking about. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: No. The 1.4 per cent is the $59.9m. The Treasurer said $40m worth of savings had already 
been identified. Has your department made any of those $40m worth of savings? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: I do not think it varies from the response I made earlier. The 1.4 per cent that all departments 
have been asked to look at we have looked at with regard to our budget. We have had discussions with the Minister 
for Commerce and Trade. He has yet to make a determination about what areas of our budget, if any, should be cut. 
I think that supports my earlier statement. No figures have been taken out of our budget with regard to that issue. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: An amount of $4Om has already been identified. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: That is not for Mr Sutherland to answer; that is for the Treasurer to answer. Mr Sutherland said 
that the request put to him was that he look at savings of 1.4 per cent, which he is looking at now, and no decisions 
have been made about that. 

The CHAIRMAN: Are you saying, Mr Sutherland, that your department has put a series of proposals to the Minister 
and the Minister has yet to respond? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: The Minister has discussed the issue with the department, having received a directive from the 
Treasurer to do so. The department has given him the types of areas in which we could make cuts if we were required 
to make cuts, which I have mentioned as being the consultants and contractors. The Minister has not determined 
whether we should proceed with those cuts. 

The CHAIRMAN: You have identified areas, but they cannot be made public because they have not been 
determined? 

Mr SUTHERLAND: They have not been determined. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Mr Sutherland did give some areas where he thought cuts would be made. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: The Treasurer has announced that the Government has identified $40m worth of savings 
across various agencies. I wanted to know whether any savings that you might make would be included in that $4Om. 
I am no wiser. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: You must ask the Treasurer that. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: We asked Mr Charlton, who is on your Cabinet estimates committee. He refused to give us 
an answer. Who will give us an answer? 
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Hon N.F. MOORE: The Treasurer, if you put Treasury on your list of agencies -

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Treasury is not corning. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: I cannot answer on behalf of the Treasurer in that context. All I am here to do is answer for you, 
to the best of our ability, what this department has been required to do, and it has been asked to find 1.4 per cent 
worth of cuts. It is looking at that, and no decision has been made. It is as simple as that. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: We accept that. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: I hope your colleagues will also. Whether the Treasurer has found $40m and is looking for 
$S9.9m, or whatever it is, is irrelevant to this agency. You should ask the Treasurer about that. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: I do not think it is, because if the Treasurer has said that $40m has been found and we are 
looking for only another $19.9m, and this department is required to make some savings which are included in that 
$40m and it does not know what savings it is expected to make, it is a pretty poor way of going about it. I had 
expected the CEO to know about that. 

Mr SUTHERLAND: With respect, the CEO would not know what the Treasurer had in his $40m worth of savings. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: Are you telling me that your department has not agreed to any savings as yet? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: That is right, and I tried to explain to you that the process is one oflooking at-

Hon BOB THOMAS: I know the process. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: I am sure you do; you are an intelligent fellow. All agencies across government have been asked 
to see whether they can find these sorts of savings. The Treasurer has identified $40m -

Hon BOB THOMAS: Which the departments do not know about, obviously. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: I am sure they do. This agency is being asked to find what it is required to find. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: I would like to know on what basis he made that statement. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: It was a good i.iea at the time! 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Are we answering questions or are you going to interrupt? 

Hon BOB THOMAS: It is a pretty shoddy state of affairs. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Are we answering questions or are we going to have a debate with Hon Bob Thomas about his 
version of events? 

The CHAIRMAN: If you want to know where the $4Om is coming from, you must ask the Treasurer. I do not think 
you can ask individual agencies where the $4Om worth of savings is corning from, unless the $40m is corning from 
that agency. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: I am asking what its contribution is. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Mr Chairman, it is most unfortunate that we should have the agency before us when we 
discuss this matter. We would like to discuss this matter with you the moment this agency leaves. Today we have 
received three different answers about this issue from three different agencies. I agree with my colleague Hon Bob 
Thomas that it is bizarre, to say the very least. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Point of order -

Hon JOHN HALDEN: You do not know. You were not here. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: We are not here for debate. If you want to have a debate, that is what your committee is for. 
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Hon JOHN HALDEN: I suggest we end this session and discuss it informally for two minutes. 

The CHAIRMAN: It is 12.15 pm. I will conclude this session. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I would like it to be formally on record that we know and this committee knows that there 
has been an instruction by Treasury to reduce departmental funding by 1.4 per cent. That has been confirmed in your 
committee by the Assistant Under Treasurer. Today, we have received four different answers about this issue. One 
is that it was a global instruction ktd the department accepted a 1.4 per cent cut in its budget. We have just had a 
situation where the Minister is discussing this issue with the department. I accept that. Prior to that, Mr Charlton 
and representatives from Family and Children's Services told us there was no cut to the budget, and Mr Charlton told 
us that there could be an increase in the budget. 

With regard to the protocol of how this committee is to be treated by government agencies, those four answers are 
an appalling disregard for the status of this committee. We know what Treasury has asked, we know what responses 
should be given to us, and we are not getting them. 1 suggest also that with regard to federal government cuts, either 
Hon Kim Chance or I asked the previous department what was the impact of the revocation of the wholesale tax 
rebate, to which we received the answer, til did not even know it had an impact. tI It will be $10m with regard to the 
State's Budget, and the CEO of a department does not even know its implications, and he then tells us he does not 
even know how many cars will be involved. 

If the Parliament and this committee system is to have any status, those sorts of answers are a disgrace. I was 
annoyed with Mr Charlton earlier, but I am now becoming increasingly annoyed by the absolute fantasy that is being 
progressed here. Either we get some decent answers, some consistent answers and some progress with regard to what 
should be a decent arrangement, or we stop this facade, Oecause it is no more than a facade. The Government clearly 
does not want to answer questions about its budgetary outcome. That was exemplified by the Minister for Transport, 
who said to us we could have answers to our questions in July next year. That is not what was agreed to by you and 
me and by the Parliament, Mr Chairman, and you know it is not. I am not blaming you, Mr Chairman, but today has 
been an absolute farce. When dealing with $100m or amounts of that kind, I expect far more professionalism from 
people paid more than you or I, Mr Chairman. 

[12.20 pm] 

Hon KIM CHANCE: To put the other side of the coin, the Treasurer has said that there has been identification of 
cuts which can be made as a result of the $40m reduction in financial assistance grants. I am sure those were the 
words used. Later, in evidence to the committee, we were told that the process of identification has been a 1.4 per 
cent cut globally across departments. As Hon John Halden said, two of the three departments appearing today have 
given us reason to doubt that. They seem to directly contradict the Treasurer's statement. Only one department has 
provided evidence which could be said to fully endorse the Treasurer's view. Frankly, that is the answer I expected 
from every department. This is the last thing I expected to happen. I share the concerns expressed by Hon John 
Halden, but for slightly different reasons. Who is telling the truth? 

Hon MURRAY MONTGOMERY: Not even I can answer that! I am not about to try. Both members have made 
their point. These hearings are to find out what we can, and that is what we are trying to do. The Committee will 
consider the answers in an overall sense, and report to Parliament. 

The CHAIRMAN: It is unfair to ask each department where the $40m saving will come from. Obviously 
departments will contribute at some point, but it is unfair to ask where the savings will be made in individual 
departments. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: We concede that-

Hon KIM CHANCE: We want to know what the share will be. 

The CHAIRMAN: I want to know that too. I make a commitment to ask the rest of the Committee to bring in 
Treasury officers at our next sitting to clarify some issues. When we spoke to Treasury officials I was under the 
impression that they had asked for a 1.4 per cent global cut, but that each department would not necessarily 
contribute. Some would contribute more and some less. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: It is a matter of whether the cut will be global or universal! 
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Hon BOB THOMAS: When I asked questions specifically of Treasury officials regarding the quantum of cuts for 
each department I was referred to each agency. I disagree with Hon Ian MacLean. We have the agencies here today, 
and we should direct questions to them. 

Division 37: Western Australian Department of Training, $324 872 000-

[Hon Murray Montgomery, Chairman.] 

[Hon N.F. Moore, Minister for Employment and Training.] 

[Mr I.e. Hill, Chief Executive Officer.] 

[Dr S.E. King, Director, Training Resources.] 

[Mr L. Davies, Director, Employment Initiatives.] 

[Mr M. Sykes, Manager, Financial Management.] 

The CHAIRMAN: Minister, do you or your advisers wish to make an opening statement? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: I have said twice already that we do not want to debate the federal Budget. We are happy to 
try to explain the effect that the federal Budget may have on the state Budget 1996-97 and beyond; and to explain 
any other effects that Federal Government activities have on our Budget. However, I repeat that I am not necessarily 
here to answer questions about the federal Budget, except as it impacts on our Budget. 

The CHAIRMAN: A cut has occurred. It has been assessed at 1.4 per cent across the Budget. Under which 
programs in your agency can savings be made? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: With the 1.4 per cent cut the Department of Training is required to maintain effort in order to 
continue to receive funding from the Commonwealth Government through the Australian National Training Authority 
arrangements. Over the years, this has meant that the department has been able to retain the same number of dollars 
in each Budget, plus an inflationary factor in areas measured for maintenance of effort. Therefore, in respect of the 
1.4 per cent cut, Treasury has quarantined the areas which are assessed for maintenance of effort. What is left is a 
saving of about $200 000 by this agency. I think it was $219 000, to be precise. 

The agency has a very large budget, bUi to maintain effort it is necessary to continue to spend the same number of 
dollars as in previous years, plus an inflationary factor, to get the growth funds from ANT A. That aspect of the 
budget has not been touched by the 1.4 per cent cut, but the remainder of the budget has resulted in the department 
needing to find $219 000 across the system by efficiency measures and things of that nature. Mr Hill will be able 
to provide further detail. 

Mr HILL: I have nothing further to add other than perhaps to flesh out those comments. The Minister has articulated 
why the department's budget is preserved from the cut of 1.4 per cent. Maintenance of effort is the ANTA agreement 
between the Heads of Government. It is that component of administration and programs that does not link directly 
to training delivery. The Treasury's assessment letter mentioned that our contribution was $219 000. I do not wish 
to make it sound easy. However, our overall budget runs to $300m, so it is not difficult adjusting. We have done 
that. It has not come from specific programs. 

[12.30 pm] 

Hon BOB THOMAS: What sorts of savings will the department make? 

Mr HILL: We just do not do things that we planned to do. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: Like what? 

Mr HILL: For example, we may have decided to put out a -

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Hon Bob Thomas said, "Like what?" We are now going back to the problem we had earlier. 
The Government is saying, "We may be doing." It is all speculative. Has the Government decided to do this or not? 
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Does an agreement exist to do it that way? Surely we must know what the department is going to do, not what it may 
be going to do; what is on the table, not what may be on the table? Let us be clear about that. 

Mr HILL: Yes, the $219 000 is being made available to Treasury. That is not a factor which is still up for debate. 

Dr KING: Once we have our bottom line budget figure we go through an internal process of making allocations 
between the different program ar~as. The biggest allocation, of course, goes to colleges to support delivery. We then 
look at remaining amounts and the corporate executive in consideration of the remaining budget looks at allocations 
to, say, central area divisions. We expect efficiencies in that; for example, in travel costs and consultancy costs, and 
even the occasional position that might fall vacant for part of the year and not be filled. Therefore, an amount of 
$219 000 can usually be absorbed. It is not easy, as we said. However, if the remainder of the budget is divided up, 
protecting the delivery areas, it is left to local managers of divisions to make savings in areas such as travel or the 
quickness or slowness with which a vacancy is filled. That is all I can add at this stage. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: My question is outside the scope of the committee, but I seek advice from the Minister or his 
advisers. I understand that ANT A funding comprises largely industry contributions and matching funds. From 
where does ANT A source its funding? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: The Federal Government. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Is there no industry contribution at all? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: No, ANTA is the Australian National Training Authority. It is a statutory authority set up under 
the ANT A legislation, which is federal legislation. It is a body that makes decisions about funding to the States from 
the Commonwealth. It makes decisions about federal funding. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: I understood that ANT A received industry funds from the Research and Development 
Corporation? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Not that I am aware of. 

Mr HILL: Its appropriations are from the commonwealth Budget. 

The CHAIRMAN: Perhaps that question could be placed on notice and we could find that out. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: It is probably not a question in order, even on notice. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: As a matter of interest, we will find out for you. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Does the department propose to increase its revenue size to meet the 1.4 per cent cut? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: That has not been put to me, and I presume it has not been considered. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Which specific purpose grants from the Commonwealth to the department have been cut or 
reduced, and by how much? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: When Treasury did the state Budget for this financial year it took the view that there may be no 
growth funds from ANTA, and it budgeted accordingly. Fortuitously the growth funds have become available, and 
are still being made available through ANT A. To a large extent that has offset the reduction in specific purpose 
grants that the Commonwealth has brought about. In broad terms, we have not been effective. One is balanced with 
the other: The unexpected growth funds are extra revenue and the reduction in the specific purpose grants has been 
offset by that. 

Dr KING: Unfortunately the commonwealth funding is transient throughout the year; therefore, any figures we give 
you are as we know them. There is also a difficulty in talking about the printed budget papers because we can work 
only from the estimates for the specific purpose programs in those papers. The best estimates were given to Treasury 
at the time the papers were printed. When the Budget went to print the 1995-96 commonwealth specific purpose 
programs totalled approximately $33.4m. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Does that include commonwealth specific purpose grants for TAFE? That is $55.41m. 
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Dr KING: Most of that base funding comes through ANT A as a general grant. We are talking about commonwealth 
sourced specific programs, direct from the commonwealth. For example, the Aboriginal education strategic 
initiatives program is specifically from the federal Department of Employment, Education, Training and Youth 
Affairs to the Department of Training for specific purposes. The prevocational places program is again straight from 
the Commonwealth with tight constraints on what it is spent on and on reporting. Various programs feed in from both 
DEETY A and the Department of Immigration and Multicultural Affairs for adult migrant education. There are 
specific labour market programs, such as Jobtrain, the regional employment program, the landcare and environment 
action program, and some employment services functions. 

In the 1995-96 printed estimates they made up about $33.4m. Our estimate at that stage was that in 1996-97 those 
same programs might bring us in just under $33m. Therefore, a slight decrease is already foreshadowed. For 
example, we had already assumed that the landcare and environment action program would drop by about $2m. 
Since then we have become fairly confident that the programs that comprise the adult migrant education component, 
which in both years we foreshadowed at about $5.7m, will be consistent; there are no plans to do much with that 
during the 1996-97 financial year. There is a plan to tender that out. In other words, instead of giving the money 
to us in a block, the Commonwealth will competitively tender it. The money may well corne to Western Australia, 
but how much and through what mechanism is uncertain. We understand that that would not happen until July 1997, 
so it would be in the next financial year. We may end up with no impact at all on the State. It is probably in a steady 
state. Our understanding is that the funding for the Aboriginal education strategic initiatives program, which is $3.2m 
to $3.4m, should be unchanged in 1996-97. The prevocational program is usually about $4.2m to $4.3m. We have 
received already from the Commonwealth about the half year funding for that. The Commonwealth has indicated 
that that program may end up reshaped into an access program under the new modem Australian apprenticeship and 
traineeship system. At this stage we do not know what will happen with that program in the second half of the 
financial year. It could mean that some $2m will not corne to the department for tendering out; it may corne to the 
State in some other guise. It may still corne to us because the MAATs developments are taking time to take shape. 
We cannot. be certain at this stage of the prevocational program. 

[12.40 pm) 

Mr DAVIES: The regional employment action program and the landcare environment action program have been 
cashed out in the commonwealth Budget. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: What does "cashed out in the commonwealth Budget" mean? 

Mr DAVIES: That is the term for the funds ceasing. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: The regional employment program and the landcare environment action program have been 
cut. What else has been cut? 

Mr DAVIES: The Employment Services Regulatory Authority is continuing but by December 1997 will probably 
be taken up under the new arrangements. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: It involves only $100 000, does it not? 

Mr DAVIES: Yes. That is one of the uncertain allocations for which we must tender on an ongoing basis. 

The CHAIRMAN: You said those programs were cut, then you indicated that they had gone to another area. I take 
it you do not know whether the funds have been taken out of the overall commonwealth Budget but you know that 
they will not corne to your department any more - the money could still be there? 

Mr DAVIES: The Commonwealth has changed the focus; we do not know what amounts have gone where. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Are the specific grants to Australian traineeships, Australian vocational certificate training, 
the Industry Employment and Training Councils and TAPE funded by ANT A? If not, what is the status of those that 
are not? 

Dr KING: Most of those are funded by ANT A. I do not think that industry training council funding for W A has 
changed this financial year. Some of the traineeship funding is base funding and we understand there is also a 
commitment to provide top up funding. I have focused mainly on the commonwealth direct specific purpose 
programs. Most of the ANTA programs are unchanged. The Minister earlier alluded to the fact that the 
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commonwealth Budget indicated a commitment to 1997 ANT A growth funding for all States. That was not factored 
into our printed budget. I have treated it for this purpose as general funding, although we are required to increase 
our delivery for it. That means that about $3m will come into our budget that was not shown in the printed estimates. 
As the Minister alluded, that will help offset some of the downward adjustments, some of which are uncertain at this 
stage. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: To clarify the situation: The ANTA funding has increased by roughly $3m? 

Dr KING: It is for the first half of 1997, which impacts on the 1996-97 Budget. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Will we see a reduction of $4.5m to specific purpose commonwealth grants? 

Dr KING: Also foreshadowed in the commonwealth Budget is $2Om for vocational education and training nationally 
in schools. Based on the usual rule of thumb allocation of 10 per cent to W A, that could mean we will receive $2m 
not shown in the estimates for 1997 or $1 m in 1996-97. In other words, there are still many funds that could move 
either way. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Could the Minister provide me with the implications of the revocation of the wholesale sales 
tax exemption on executive motor vehicles in the Department of Training and how many cars are involved? 

Mr HILL: We will take that on notice; we do not have that information available to us. 

The CHAIRMAN: Regarding the unaudited information Mr Hill sent to the committee, which is on both the financial 
statements and performance indicators, has the Auditor General issued his opinion on the department to 30 June 
1996? If so, what is the status of that opinion? 

Mr HILL: We sent it here on the basis that it was unaudited. We expected the Auditor General to pass on his opinion 
directly to the Minister on 15 October, which is why we were trying to reschedule our appearance here today. 
However, we were advised this morning that for the first time the performance indicators, which the Chairman has 
in front of him, are unqualified. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Can the Minister provide me with information about proposed federal government cuts? For 
instance, it is expected that the unemployment rate for indigenous people is likely to increase from 38 per cent to 
42 per cent by the year 1999 as a result of federal government cuts in that area. What initiatives is this department 
taking, as the state body. to address what will be a significant problem in the Aboriginal community as a result of this 
Federal Government's Budget? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: The problem with Aboriginal training and education did not begin in 1993. 

Hon JOHN HALDE:"\: I did not suggest it did. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: I take some pride in the way in which this Government has tackled Aboriginal training, 
particularly in the Kimberley. I have mentioned it in the House ad nauseam. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: We have not disagreed with you. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: I must do that because one of the opposition members does not acknowledge that a college is 
in his electorate. We have made a significant contribution to training in regional Western Australia The aim of both 
the c.Y. O'Connor College and particularly the Kimberley College, whose main clientele will be Aboriginal people, 
is to provide education in the regions where there are many Aboriginal people. I made that decision as the Minister. 
I directed funds, which.were earmarked by my predecessor for other places such as metropolitan colleges, into those 
two areas. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I thought you were pork-barrelling your electorate! 

Hon N.F. MOORE: It is interesting that I am being accused of pork-barrelling the Kimberley when the chances of 
our winning seats in that area are extremely remote. I spent money there because the previous Government refused 
to, knowing it was a safe seat. It is not pork-barrelling; it is a question of responding to a need. I presume the 
member's question that has prompted this response was based on the fact that there is a need for significant 
improvement in training and educational opportunities for Aboriginal people. That is what the Kimberley College, 
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and to a lesser extent the C. Y. O'Connor College, are about. As we have explained, as a result of the maintenance 
of effort, the effect of the Federal Government on what we do is quite minimal. 

[12.50 pm] 

I am the first to acknowledge that all of us must make a contribution to the financial circumstances of both this 
country and this State. This is not one area in which there will be a detrimental effect. When the ultimate impact 
of the Federal Government's training budget, the. ultimate outcome of .the F~deral Government's labour market 
programs and the plans for the Commonwealth Employment Service and the programs it provides are known, the 
Government will assess its position. It is ongoing and there is a lot of change at the national level. The modem 
Australian apprenticeship and traineeship system is new and we are not certain of what will be the outcome. We will 
monitor the situation to make sure that Western Australian citizens are not adversely affected, to the extent we are 
capable of making sure it will not happen. The committee has already been told that the number of dollars has not 
changed much, and that one of the Government's initiatives is to get training into the regions. From a training 
perspective Aboriginal people are better off than they have ever been. Perhaps one of the officers will outline some 
of the programs available to Aborigines. 

Mr DAVIES: A number of training programs speciRcally target Aboriginal people to try to get them into 
employment programs. We have revamped the group schemes resource agreement to make sure that group training 
companies around the State are now obliged to meet targets for Aboriginal employment. Some innovative programs 
have commenced. An employment program in Geraldton is a case in point. Twelve Aboriginal trainees are building 
houses for Homeswest. It is anticipated that these people will complete an apprenticeship in thi-ee years. The 
department has been·running the in-work program which pla~es young Aboriginal people into traineeships with 
Aboriginal organisations around the State. One hundred of these places are operating. Western Australia has had 
nearly one-third of all placements in Australia because it has been successful in maintaining these people in their 
positions apd getting them into positions at the end of their traineeships. Success has been achiev~ in refocusing 
on what are now the Joblink programs and linking them more closely with industry to directly place people in jobs. 
The Aboriginal people who have been involved in this program hav~ benefited. I have outlined some of the areas 
in which the Aboriginal economic and employment development officer program continues to be successful in 
helping Aboriginal communities to come up with enterprises which provide work in areas where generally there is 
no work. There has been quite a growth in the traineeshiparea and some in the apprenticeship area. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: The comments of both the Minister and Mr Davies have been most interesting. I note that 
the Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Commission suggests that the recent jobs growth in Australia has 
predominantly been caused by the expansion of the community development employment program and little else. 
Based on what has been said, I do not know whether the Minister agrees with that. It appears that ATSIC has a clear 
view. Does the Minister agree with it? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: The member is seeking an opinion. The CDEP is a commonwealth funded exercise . 

.. 
Hon JOHN HALDEN: I know. I compare that with what the Minister said; that is, significant improvement has been 
brought about by the State. Government. ATSIC suggests that most of the employment is based on federal 
government initiatives. Does the Minister agre~ with that? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Traditionally, labour market programs are funded and run by the Commonwealth. I would prefer 
it to give the money to the States and let it get on with the business of running them. I am the first to compliment 
Peter Dowding for the action he took when he was Minister. He was responsible for the Joblink program which was 
very successful. This State is running a job market program which is unusual because it does not normally do that. 
We will respond to the federal Budget as best we can, bearing in mind we have limited resources. However, where 
programs need to be picked up by the State we will look at them carefully. The CDEP is an Aboriginal program 
which is funded by the Commonwealth and is not directly related to this agency. The member, in seeking an opinion, 
is moving into the realm of speculation. 

The CHAIRMAN: As there are no further questions I thank the Minister and his advisers for attending. 

Sitting suspended from 12.55 to 2.20 pm 

Division 31: Agriculture, $98121000-

[Hon Bob Thomas, Chairman.] 
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[Hon EJ. Charlton, Minister for Transport.] 

[Dr G.A. Robertson, Chief Executive Officer.] 

[Mr K.H. Wilson, Manager, Financial Management and Analysis.] 

The CHAIRMAN: We are considering the impact of the federal Budget on the Department of Agriculture. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: On a point of order. I draw the committee's attention to the standing orders relating to the 
starting time for a committee meeting. I am not sure of the standing order, which is why I seek the committee's 
advice. It is my understanding that if a quarter of an hour elapses before the beginning of a session of the committee, 
the committee will be out of order in continuing. Would you advise me on that? 

The CHAIRMAN: The member is entirely correct, but the committee started this meeting at 10 o'clock. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: I wanted to ensure that for the protection of witnesses. 

The CHAIRMAN: That is okay. We adjourned the committee at one o'clock and reconvened as soon as we had a 
quorum. Will the Minister give us a brief overview of the department's budget? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Agriculture Western Australia receives a significant amount of private funding as well as 
allocations from the State Government. Some administrative rearrangements have been put in progress. However, 
as I said this morning, no final decision has been made about what changes will be implemented. 

The CHAIRMAN: Does Dr Robertson have anything to add to that overview? 

Dr ROBERTSON: No. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Carrying on from the Minister's reference to the influence of industry sources of finance on 
the department's budget, are you able to give me a round figure estimate of the proportion of the budget that is 
attributable to the consolidated fund; that is, not the proportion of the final budget, because we understand how they 
differ, but the proportion of those figures shown in the Estimates as has been the department's budget for the year? 

Dr ROBERTSON: I do not know the percentage terms off the top of my head. 

Mr WILSON: I do not know the percentage either. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: A round figure would do. 

Dr ROBERTSON: Approximately 70 per cent. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: That helps us. Now that we have established that fact and we know what we are talking about, 
has the agency received an instruction from the Treasurer relating to the requirement to bring down a 1.4 per cent 
reduction in the agency's costs? 

Dr ROBERTSON: Yes. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Is the agency complying with that instruction? 

Dr ROBERTSON: Certainly. The agency will be able to make changes. At this stage they are not one hundred per 
cent finalised. However, we look like being able to protect the total of the operating side of business. We have 
looked at our capital program and made some minor changes in the timing of our capital works program. Therefore, 
over the three year period we will end up in the same position with the same outcome. We should be able to meet 
Treasury requirements in that context. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Does a 1.4 per cent reduction apply to the whole figure as indicated in the program summary 
as the department's estimated budget, or does it apply to that 70 per cent or thereabouts of that figure which is deemed 
to be CF sourced? 

Dr ROBERTSON: It is the CF expenditure. 
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Hon KIM CHANCE: So you have gone through the process of calculating the privately sourced funds out of it? 

Dr ROBERTSON: Yes. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: What does that reduction sum come to in dollar terms? 

Dr ROBERTSON: $1.462m. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: You have indicated that that will be met in part by an adjusttnent or deferral in the capital 
works areas. Can you tell me where or is that being too specific? Is it a generic thing that you have designed or a 
specific thing? 

Dr ROBERTSON: No, it is still being finalised. It really is looking again at some of the costs of what we intend to 
do over the next three to five years. We think we will be able to accommodate that without any change in outcomes. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: It is a matter of adjusttnent? 

Dr ROBERTSON: Yes. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Are you affected at all by the revocation of the wholesale sales tax concessions on motor 
vehicles that apply to agencies? 

Mr WILSON: Only for the senior executive. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: How many vehicles would that amount to? 

Mr WILSON: Seven vehicles. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: So it is not a huge number of vehicles? 

Dr ROBERTSON: No. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Will you be able to provide the answer in dollar terms if I give notice? 

Dr ROBERTSON: Yes. 

The CHAIRMAN: That question is on notice. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: In terms of the adjusttnents that you have proposed to meet the Treasurer's instruction, are you 
considering increasing revenues to any extent to help make that up? 

Dr ROBERTSON: No. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Will it be met from the expenditure end? 

Dr ROBERTSON: Yes. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: What specific purpose grants from the Commonwealth does your departtnent use, rely on, 
benefit from, get? 

Dr ROBERTSON: We have three direct areas from the Commonwealth and one area that is indirect. The direct 
areas are the quarantine and inspection service program, the nationallandcare program, and the brucellosis and TB 
eradication program. The latter now is quite small. The indirect money is the Commonwealth's contribution to 
matching industry funds on a dollar for dollar basis through the research and development corporation network. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Will the indirect funds be affected by any changes in the commonwealth Budget and will the 
matching system remain as it was? 

Dr ROBERTSON: That is the stated intention of the Commonwealth at this stage. 
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Hon KIM CHANCE: We would be very disappointed if that were not the case. Do you expect to see any cuts to the 
three areas of direct specific grants, one of which you have identified as almost finished anyway? 

Dr ROBERTSON: We are not expecting cuts in those areas. However, the outcomes are still a bit diffuse. The 
nationallandcare program and a number of things that may be funded under that in the future are related to the sale 
of Telstra. That, of course, is an issue for the Commonwealth Parliament and may take some time to be resolved. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Did it come as a surprise to you that the nationallandcare allocations were to be related to the 
Telstra sale? 

Dr ROBERTSON: We have been aware of that for some time. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: You have an advan\<lge over the rest of us. 

Dr ROBERTSON: I will explain that further. The nationallandcare program was allocated over 10 years. This year 
it started to taper off. That was the original decade for landcare funding. The understanding was that this year the 
funding would be less than last year, and next year it would be less again and so on, to the year 2000 when the 
funding would finish. 

[2.30 pm] 

Hon KIM CHANCE: That is the nature of the original program, which is unrelated to the current Government? 

Dr ROBERTSON: Yes. Given the importance of the area we would have expected there to be some program to pick 
up on that. Therefore, the heritage framework was not a surprise but was a way of redressing that issue. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Most of us believe that the commitment to landcare as a component of the total environmental 
package was presented as something separate from the sale of Telstra. That would be an unfair question to put to 
you, Dr Robertson. My understanding of the election policy statements is that it was separate from Telstra. I was 
a little surprised to hear you say that you felt it was linked. 

Dr ROBERTSON: I am sorry. Perhaps I did not make myself clear. The funding profile was in the three year 
commonwealth Budget which is out. Additionally, there were commitments in the context of the election. The 
question was how they have flowed through. There are initiatives in the area which are not Telstra linked at this 
stage. Nothing has been declared by the Commonwealth at this stage. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: When do you expect to conclude your discussions with the Commonwealth Government on 
quantifying how landcare moneys are to come through? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: As soon as the Greens and Democrats agree to proceed with legislation. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Do you mean as soon as they let the sale of Telstra through? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Yes. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: That is probably a fair answer but I will have to think about that one for a fair while. 

Dr ROBERTSON: I did not quite finish the previous answer. The other area involved was the Australian Quarantine 
Inspection Service which is also currently under review. The Federal Government has appointed Professor Malcolm 
Nairn, formerly of the Murdoch University veterinary school, to review the quarantine arrangements. Funding for 
this year has been maintained at a similar level of activity to that of the last quarter of the last financial year. If one 
were a punter, one would suggest that funding in the area is likely to increase rather than decrease, because there is 
quite widespread concern about the effectiveness of the quarantine barrier. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: I agree with you. If Professor Nairn is running the inquiry, we all have a great deal of 
confidence. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I am a little concerned we are being advised that $1.5m can be capped off the capital works 
budget without any detail from where. There must be some knowledge about that. It need not be specific but you 
cannot just take out $l.5m and not have the slightest clue where it will come from. Can that be quantified? 
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Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Before there is any further speculation on that, it is pretty important to get the ground rules 
right. Prior to 1993 something like a 25 per cent cut occurred in the Agriculture budget. On coming into government 
we set about trying to ensure that the agricultural and the mining sectors, which were the two departmental areas that 
suffered similar reductions in allocations in the preceding years, would obtain adequate funding so that they could 
continue to provide the back up service to those two key areas of the Western Australian economy. That has been 
done. As members will know, agriculture has been significantly restructured in this State since 1993. As a 
consequence, there have been many changes each year to redefine and reallocate in order to ensure the available 
funding reaches the ground in the most efficient way possible. Obviously, all members will be aware that 
restructuring has meant that rather than Agriculture Western Australia doing a lot of work on its own, it has been in 
a partnership arrangement with the industry itself. Any comments by Dr Robertson must be taken in the context of 
the delivery of the service to agriculture being done in a different way year by year. That process has not finished 
yet. The 1.4 per cent reduction, which represents almost $l.4m, is part of an ongoing program of change and 
modernisation in the way the services are delivered. An administrative combination of Agriculture Western Australia 
and the Agriculture Protection Board has meant substantial savings in the way services are delivered. Therefore, at 
the end of the day the services are not affected as one might believe by the proposed reduction. Every agency has 
been given the direction. At the end of the day it is up to government overall to determine whether reductions in each 
area of government come to fruition or whether, as I said this morning, there may be greater reductions in some areas. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: The Minister has advised us that the Agriculture budget was reduced by 25 per cent. I 
presume he meant in the life of the previous Labor Government. Agriculture funding last year was $116.3m and this 
year it will be $98.lm, which is a reduction of nearly 20 per cent in one year. This is an important issue because 
$1.462m is roughly 15 per cent of the capital works budget of Agriculture Western Australia. It is important to be 
specific, bearing in mind the size of the budgetary area. 

Dr ROBERTSON: At the previous hearing we dealt with the issue of the apparent budget cut. This is an accounting 
process within Treasury which has caused us some concern for a long time, and it will be addressed in future budgets. 
It arises because we rely on external industry funding for a large part of our budget. That money is not guaranteed 
when we begin any financial year. We are unable to bring it to account as an income item in our budget. We expect 
this year to pick up in the order of $15m of industry funds. We have never had a year go by without an increase in 
our industry funding. Because we have no commitments to it at this stage we are unable to include it in the budget 
papers. 

I need to clarify another point. I believe I said that the 1.4 per cent cut represented approximately $1.462m. That 
figure was for the three agriculture agencies which are managed as one at the moment; that is, the Rural Adjustment 
and Finance Corporation, the Agriculture Protection Board and the Department of Agriculture. In this hearing we 
are dealing with the Department of Agriculture budget, so the figure is significantly less. With regard to capital 
works, we have a budget allocation for the next three years to undertake significant regionalisation. We looked in 
some detail at what we intended to achieve and how we could achieve it. We have come up with a couple of novel 
ways of dealing with that. We believe we have ways of achieving those savings. 

In last weekend's newspaper we advertised a tender for some of the design for the new sites we are building 
throughout regional Western Australia. Using a modular approach and similar designs in different places, and by 
slightly adjusting the time line over the three years that the money has been allocated, we believe the program will 
come out exactly as it was and as quickly as is feasible. I emphasise that we are quite able to handle that without any 
changes in the facilities we will have for the number of people in the various areas. 

[2.40 pm] 

The CHAIRMAN: Will there be savings as a result of deferring some of the capital works to another year? 

Dr ROBERTSON: No, there are a number of things. Weare talking about submitting estimates for a building that 
might house 25 staff or replace 50 staff. There were uncertainties when we did the budget in February. We have 
gathered more information and some of the sites will be slightly different. Cost estimates came in and when we 
revised the capital program we were able to accommodate them without changes in the outcome. 

The CHAIRMAN: The department has identified $1.462m in savings. 

Dr ROBERTSON: That is across the three agencies. 

The CHAIRMAN: In July this year the Premier indicated that the Government had identified $40m in savings and 
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that it was looking for the other $19.9m to make up the shortfall in general purpose grants. Was the $1.462m part 
of the $40m that the Premier indicated? 

Dr ROBERTSON: I cannot answer that. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: The previous answer given by Dr Robertson identifies and substantiates the fact that as a 
Government we said that we think we can make these savings administratively and deliver the services more 
effectively - and we have demortstrated that we can do that. We are getting the same service for less money -

The CHAIRMAN: There is no need for the Minister to finish that comment because I understand what he said 
previously. I asked a very specific question: When the Premier indicated that the Government had identified $40m 
in savings, was the $1.462m part of that? Dr Robertson has said that he does not know, and that is all the information 
I need. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: The Minister indicated that there had been a 25 per cent cut in the department's budget in the 
years prior to 1993. Which years? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: That was a long time ago. When I was on this committee and questioning the previous 
Government I clearly remember progressive cuts being made on a continuing basis over those years. I will be very 
happy to respond later. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Over a lO-year period? 

The CHAIRMAN: That question is on notice. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: I do not know what period it was, but when we came to office that was the situation. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Does the Minister recall whether it was a shortfall in CRF funds or industry funds? Certainly, 
industry funds took a pounding. 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: I was referring to CRF funds. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Is any of the 1.4 per cent cut to be raised by asset sales? 

Dr ROBERTSON: No. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I have reference to only two items, but obviously there are three as announced in the specific 
purpose grants from the Federal Government. My documentation shows the tuberculosis eradication program and 
the national landcare program. What are the indicative figures in terms of what will be provided by the Federal 
Government? 

Mr WILSON: The figure for nationallandcare is $5.401m, the figure for the tuberculosis eradication program is 
$3.647m, and other projects total $4.195m. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: What are the others? 

Mr WILSON: I do not have the full details, but the total is $13.243m. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: What was the expected allocation in those areas in the state Budget? 

Dr ROBERTSON: Our approved projects in those three categories total $16.561m. Therefore, we have had a 
$3.38m increase over the estimate at this stage. As indicated, a number of the funding decisions by the 
Commonwealth Government have not been conveyed to us at this stage. 

Hon JOHN HAlDEN: The budget figures we were provided with show an allocation for the tuberculosis eradication 
program of $2.694m and for the nationallandcare program of $5.596m. If the department has those figures, why 
does the Parliament have totally different figures? 

Mr WILSON: I am not sure. 



828 [COUNCIL - Estimates Committee] 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Why has the other $4.19m not been identified under specific purpose grants in the 
consolidated fund? 

Mr WILSON: I do not know. 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: There is obviously a discrepancy in the correlations. I will take that question on notice. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I am not trying to make a point with the department; I am making a point about the quality 
of the documentation we are presented with as "The Budget". We are being repeatedly presented with figures that 
do not correlate to the consolidated fund, which is not worth the paper it is printed on. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: We will take that question on notice. It has been demonstrated before that it is about 
inclusion of some other allocation in some other documents and, while there are inconsistencies, we should get the 
facts to present to the committee. 

The CHAIRMAN: If that does not come to hand readily, the question will be taken on notice. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: It could be a difference between net and gross figures - there is money moving in both 
directions. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Dr Robertson described to us something in the order of $ 13m or $14m worth of specific 
purpose grants. However, the Budget shows an allocation of $8.6m in specific purpose grants to the Agriculture 
Department. There is an enormous hole. We need this clarified. 

Hon MURRAY MONTGOMERY: In the session dealing with the Department of Training we were told of cuts to 
landcare pr.ograms. Has the department picked up any additional funding in that area? 

[2.50 pm] 

Dr ROBERTSON: Not at this stage. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: What will be the tentative bottom line cut in specific purpose grants? We expect there have 
been discussions between you and your federal colleagues. 

Dr ROBERTSON: We do not envisage that there will be cuts. In fact, we anticipate increased revenue from the 
Commonwealth to projects. I am confused about Mr Halden's previous questions. The figure in the Program 
Statements for commonwealth direct purpose grants is $13.243m. 

Hon JOHN HALDE!'\: You are referring to the Program Statements. Pages 19 through to 25 of Budget Paper No 2, 
Consolidated Fund Estimates. list specific purpose grants in alphabetical order. The only grants identified there are 
bovine tubercul(l~i~ and national landcare. That list of specific purpose grants does not correlate with the Program 
Statements. I am not !->aying there is anything wrong with those programs; I am complaining about those documents. 

Dr ROBERTSON: The issue is the interpretation of the quarantine inspection service funds and whether that is a 
specific purpose grant or a contractual arrangement. However, the department will provide information on that. 

Division 34: Fisheries, $21 995 000 -

[Hon LD. MacLean, Chairman.] 

[Hon EJ. Charlton, Minister for Transport.] 

[Mr P.P. Rogers, Executive Director.] 

[Mr J.e. Nicholls, Director, Strategic Planning and Corporate Services.] 

[Mr B. Mezzatesta, Manager, Financial Services.] 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: I have nothing special to relate as far as Fisheries is concerned. The most important thing 
for members to remember is that the last time we met was shortly after significant changes had been made in the 
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operations of the Fisheries Department, which included a substantial increase in the financial commitment to the 
fishing industry. That has a bearing on a number of the outcomes in the industry and its management that are 
significantly different from previous years. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Has Fisheries received an instruction from the Treasurer to implement a 1.4 per cent saving 
in expenditure? 

Hon E.J . CHARLTON: EverY department received that circular as a consequence of the federal budget changes. 
The Fisheries Department is significantly different from all other government departments as a consequence of the 
changes to which I referred. The 1996-97 Estimates are pretty much unrelated to previous budgets and the different 
nature of the funding arrangements makes a comparison difficult. 

[3.00 pm] 

Hon KIM CHANCE: I thank the Minister; I understand that point. With the Chairman's assistance, I might even go 
into that a little further later. 

The 1996-97 Estimates indicate a total expenditure expressed in net terms, after taking into account revenue from 
operations - which is that to which you refer in respect of the fundamental changes in the system - of almost $22m. 
Has the Minister for Fisheries instructed the chief executive officer of the Fisheries Department to implement a 
1.4 per cent cut in the $22m expenditure? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: I think the department made one change which I will ask Mr Rogers to explain. 

Mr ROGERS: The only change we have made was a deferral in the timing of the replacement of one of our patrol 
boats; it impacted to a minor degree on ..he department's operations. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: I did not quite receive an answer to the question I asked, although you have probably answered 
my next question. Has your Minister instructed you to implement a 1.4 per cent cut in the $22m consolidated revenue 
allocation to your department? 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: No. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Nevertheless, the department is making savings? This was the question you have just 
answered. I take it that the savings you are making are an adjustment in the area of capital expenditure. 

Mr ROGERS: Yes. 

HON BOB THOMAS: Is that in relation to the timing of the expenditure? Will it carry into the next financial year? 

Mr ROGERS: Yes. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: The Treasurer indicated in July some time that the State identified $4Om worth of saving from 
the $6Om saving required in Western Australia. At the time the Treasurer made that statement, had the department 
indicated that it would make this saving? Was this saving part of the $4Om identified? 

Mr ROGERS: The issue, as I understand it, was from the Treasurer to the Ministers. At this stage, the answer to the 
question is no. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: Do you mean that when the Treasurer made that statement regarding the identification of a 
$40m saving, your saving was not included in the $40m? Had you not made that decision at that time? 

Mr ROGERS: I do not know - I presume not. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: What is the quantum of your saving? 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: In the deferral of the vessel. 

Mr ROGERS: It is about $160 000. 
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Hon KIM CHANCE: That is roughly 0.6 per cent of your CRF allocation. I do not have a calculator with me either! 
It would not be far short of that anyway. 

Mr ROGERS: No. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: Is that the only saving you will make? 

Mr ROGERS: Yes. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Continuing with this issue of the 1.4 per cent saving, my understanding is that the instruction 
went from Treasury to the CEO of each department. I presume that you would have taken the instruction on board, 
come up with a proposal, and then had that proposal clarified or approved by the Minister as being appropriate. Did 
that process occur? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: The only process which occurred was this: I discussed it with the Minister. So that we all 
know the facts - yes, both the Minister and the department had that information relayed to them. In the final analysis, 
it is being addressed. I am sorry if this does not assist the people asking the question, but the Government continues 
to work through a number of alternatives and options to see how best it can achieve those results. It might be difficult 
to accept, but again the facts are that we had to deal with a real reduction of $60m to the State and in the initial 
discussion which took place with Cabinet and the departments, a round figure of $40m-odd was identified as the 
amount we believed we could save without changing or reducing any of the services directed to the people of the 
State. This had already been done in the previous year. Although people will speculate on whether it is a good 
decision, they need look no further than my department for an example of this as I am often reminded that all the 
decisions made in that portfolio have been bad -

Hon KIM <;HANCE: Not all of them, just most of them! 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Only the ones you have made; the technical ones have been okay! 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: I take that positive from Hon John Halden: The technical ones are good; that is, the ones 
the department implemented without interference from the Minister. In this case, the Government, along with the 
departments, is dealing with the issue by considering the delivery of services to industry and the community and ways 
of implementing the Government's plan to bring together the expertise in each department to make changes to 
produce the benefits. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: I suppose, to be fair, this is a general statement, but I should be able to respond to what the 
Minister has said. The Opposition is not without sympathy for the point of view expressed, but the Minister must 
also take into account our position. The public has been told by the Treasurer that $4Om of cuts have been identified 
and that an instruction for a 1.4 per cent reduction in expenditure has gone to the CEO of each department. It was 
a universal global commitment, and the public were led to understand that the CEOs had "identified" - using the 
Treasurer's word - the $40m reduction. 

One of the key functions of today's proceedings was to determine the effects of the $40m saving and how it will be 
executed. What we have learnt so far today, Minister, is that far from each CEO providing that information to the 
Treasurer, some Ministers are yet to instruct their CEOs even to prepare the paperwork to show how the 1.4 per cent 
reduction can be made. The Minister can understand our confusion and that of the public, some of whom were 
expecting today to learn something about how the $40m saving will be made. I accept the Minister's position. 
Nevertheless, he is an important Minister in the process. As he has told us before, he is a member of the Cabinet 
Estimates Committee. I think he can understand our disappointment, to say the least, that we cannot determine more 
on the matter. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: I acknowledge that disappointment. We would all like to wave the magic wand and say, 
"Here is where the cuts will be made." We have recognised and obviously accepted - each State agreed to the 
proposal - the respective cutbacks, and in the final analysis it comes down to how they are delivered. Regarding our 
responsibility in delivering the $60m reduction and how the Federal Government then implements those other 
changes, the matters must be very carefully worked through. 

Returning to the member's central point, the Treasurer said we have identified $40m worth of savings to be delivered 
without any problems -
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Hon KIM CHANCE: Which clearly has never been done. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: You need to take this point on board: If the member puts himself in the Treasurer's or the 
Government's position, he can identify $40m of savings. This process did not start the day after the federal 
government agreement with the States was announced. Obviously, we were told that severe cutbacks were to be 
expected. As the member knows, a change was to be made in sales tax and all the States fought successfully and 
converted the proposal to the alternative mechanism. In the lead-up to that we were aware of the cutbacks. It is not 
unlikely that future Federal Goyernments will come out with similar decisions. We would all like to believe this is 
the end of it and that the allocations in the future will get bigger so that we can achieve a few more things for this 
State to enable it to prosper for the good of Australia We must put this in perspective. We can identify that we can 
get $40m by all agencies getting 1.5 per cent less. 

[3.10 pm] 

Hon KIM CHANCE: That has not been the case. That is the issue I raised. 

Hon EJ . CHARLTON: That is right. Instead of slicing off the same amount from every agency and saying that one 
program is out or another has been reduced by a certain percentage, we are trying to do it another way. We are saying 
that instead of constructing a building in a certain way, perhaps we can do it in another way. We are going back to 
Treasury saying that there are other options to achieve this result without simply taking a cut in funding right across 
the board. However, that means that I, or for that matter anybody else, cannot give a straight answer about the 
changes that will be made. They have not been made yet. At the end of the day we want to deliver the most efficient 
means of making those changes. 

Hon MURRAY MONTGOMERY: Some information was provided to the committee about the financial statements 
as well as performance indicators, which were not in an audited form. Can Mr Rogers tell us whether the Auditor 
General has provided any opinions on those two issues and, if so, what is the status of those opinions? 

Mr ROGERS: The current status is that the Auditor General has not issued a statement about the performance 
indicators or the financial statements. Like the member, we are waiting for that to occur. 

Hon MURRAY MONTGOMERY: Do you have any idea of how long that will take? 

Mr ROGERS: I thought we would get them at the end of last week, but that was not the case. I hope it will be soon. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I have two questions, the first relating to the wholesale sales tax exemption on motor vehicles. 
What is the implication of that revocation on this department and how many cars are involved? 

Mr ROGERS: I am not sure what the question is. 

Hon E.J . CHARLTON: It relates to the effect of the new Federal Government's decision and the agreement made 
at the Premiers' Conference that eliminated the sales tax exemption on all government vehicles; now it relates only 
to executive vehicles. I think it might be best to take that question on notice. . 

Hon KIM CHANCE: We need to know the number of vehicles and the number of dollars on those. 

Mr ROGERS: In our department we have only one executive car. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: This is the sixth agency of which I have asked this question. We understand from the Federal 
Government that this impost on the State Government is $10m across the board. As yet, not one government 
department has been able to enunciate to us one cent in terms of this cost. As I said earlier, it simply is not good 
enough in an area of $1 Om worth of cuts to the State to have an Estimates Committee hearing where nobody can tell 
us of even one cent of the implications of that decision to the State. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: IfI may-

Hon JOHN HALDEN: The Minister wants to tell me the figure. This will be the first fact we have been given today, 
and I await it with interest. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: The member should not hold his breath. 
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Hon JOHN HALDEN: I have not. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: The member might not be able to take advantage of that comeback. This Government did 
not agree with some of those federal government policies, any more than the member did. We are continuing to 
negotiate and communicate with the Federal Government about the implementation and interpretation of those 
decisions. The figures were put onto the implied effect on this State. If those figures tum out to be right, that is fine. 
In the meantime, we will continue to do our best to make that impact as small as possible. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: As of 1 July this year that exemption no longer existed. It now impacts on the State. All I 
want to know is how much it is. 

The CHAIRMAN: The member wants to know about the sales tax exemption and the cost of it to the department, 
which question I understand has been placed on notice. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: The chief executive officer might be able to give some additional information. 

Mr ROGERS: My car was replaced last year. There will not be a replacement of the car this financial year, so the 
figure is zero. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I accept that; however, I could have been given that answer five minutes ago, assuming that 
is the answer. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: That was not the question. The question was-

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I asked what was the implication. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Hon John Halden said that it was $lOm across the board. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I said statewide. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: It might not be. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Why was I not given that answer five minutes ago? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: The member continues to make statements that are not factual. When an answer is given 
to a question that is not factual, credibility is given to the question. There is no point in having to substantiate the 
question when the figure to which the member is referring is wrong. 

The CHAIRMAN: I understand this relates to the purchase of new cars, not existing cars. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: That is correct. 

The CHAIRMAN: The impact will be over 18 months. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Does the Fisheries Department receive any specific grants? If so, what are they and how 
much money does the department receive as specific grants? 

Mr ROGERS: I will give some background. We receive funding from the Fisheries Research and Development 
Corporation. It is a federal research body. The expenditure in Western Australia by that research body to all 
institutes is about $2.6m, of which the Fisheries Department receives about $1.9m. This is made up of a series of 
research programs that are fisheries specific and relate very much to the strategic management of those fisheries; for 
example, they deal with shark research, etc. The FRDC component in the 1995-96 year was about $1.lm. There is 
also an Australian fisheries management component for foreign fishing work. We service a contract for that 
authority. We spend about $948 000 of those funds, depending on the incidence of Indonesians fishing off King 
Sound. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: The industry component of the Research and Development Corporation funds is matched by 
commonwealth funds, I take it. 

Mr ROGERS: For our fisheries research development fund, we collect moneys from industry. It goes into that fund, 
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and those funds are allocated to the Western Australian Fishing Industry Council. The money is transferred to the 
FRDC. At that stage there is a dollar for dollar matching from the Commonwealth. Basically we end up with 1 per 
cent in terms of the value of fisheries around Australia being applied to fisheries related research. There is also a 
management committee which is organised by the Western Australian Fishing Industry Council. There are 
government representatives on that committee, which does not necessarily vet but scrutinises virtually all applications 
out of Western Australia which flow to the FRDC with regard to FRDC decision making. 

[3.20 pm] 

Hon KIM CHANCE: I take it that the commonwealth matching component of those funds is, as it is in every other 
case, unaffected by any cuts? 

Mr ROGERS: Yes. It is totally unaffected by any cuts with regard to Western Australia. That is one of the reasons 
that for 1996-97 the allocation went from $500 000 to $600 000. I think the general view of industry, and also of 
the Government and the department, is that we are trying to realise about a 400 per cent return in every dollar 
invested into research in Western Australia, and we are gearing the funding in that way. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: I tum now to revenues. I was interested in the Minister's comments about the changing nature 
of the Department of Fisheries, and I took it that these changes have come about since the publication of the portfolio 
review and the restructuring of Fisheries, which I think we all understand. I note in that context that revenue from 
operations is not expected to increase a great deal; I think the difference between the 1996-97 estimate and last year's 
actual is some $700 000. That is not a huge increase in a component of over $12m. Have revenues been included 
in your consideration in the context of the instruction - which has not reached you yet but which you have heard 
about - to make a net reduction on your CRF call? Have you looked at revenues as well as expenditure to meet that 
call? 

Mr ROGERS: No. A separate decision by the Minister for Fisheries, which was announced in September last year, 
as you may recall, sought, after negotiation with the Western Australian Fishing Industry Council, to hold licence fees 
for the six major fisheries subject to cost recovery for two ijnancial years; hence the reflection that there is no 
significant increase on what you would expect is demonstrated in the books. I guess that is where it has come from. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: There was a significant increase in the previous year, when it went from about $8.5m to $llm, 
and it stabilised at that figure. Was consideration given to increasing revenues in any other way which could meet 
the targets that you have not even been set yet? 

Mr ROGERS: No. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: We were advised earlier that the department had met part of its requirement to make a 1.4 per 
cent cut by deferring expenditure on a patrol boat and that that was a saving of some $160 000. What is the length 
of the proposed deferral to meet that financial outcome? 

Mr ROGERS: In my judgment, it is a matter of weeks, because when you construct a vessel you are putting it over 
a financial year, or normally over two financial years. It is a fairly significant vessel. I think it means practically that 
you let out the tender a few weeks later and you shift part of the payments into the next financial year. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: On the basis that the Federal Government has already indicated that it is likely to further cut 
FAGs, I guess you would have more deferrals the next year. Is that how you would manage it? 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: I think the answer is obviously that it remains to be seen whether that happens or how the 
Government as a whole deals with that, not only on this issue but on all the others to which you referred. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: The capital services budget in this year's Estimates shows considerable growth over what we 
have seen in the past - it is up just short of $6m. Is there a reason for that, and does that provide you with scope in 
the future to meet similar demands should this occur again? 

Mr ROGERS: The packages that were brought in last year were separate entirely from any consideration about this 
year's budget formulation. The decisions were made in September last year. A reflection of those decisions is seen 
in the Budget with regard to increased resources, particularly in the areas of regionalisation, program management, 
some research restructuring, and some minor developments in the strategic planning and policy unit and the systems 
development area. In my opinion, that was long overdue with regard to the department being able to operate as a 
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manager, and we progressed through two years of review and consultation with industry before we reached that point. 
It is totally separate from budget decisions for 1996-97. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: You do not regard the existing capital works budget and, indeed, your future capital works 
plans to be a potential area where you might meet further demands for cost cutting? 

Mr ROGERS: I do not think so, because in broad terms a significant area of revenue growth has been from the fishing 
industry with fisheries subject to cost recovery, so in reality any changes in budget will have to come at their behest, 
to a degree, by changing the services that they require to give effect to the requirements of fisheries resource 
management. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Because of the more commercial nature of the operation? 

Mr ROGERS: Yes. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I quote from The Australian of 18 June, which said that the Western Australian Premier, 
Mr Court, also ruled out new taxes or a special levy, saying he planned to meet the State's $90m shortfall by 
increasing public sector efficiency. Very noble! We have heard not only from this department today but from a 
number of others that there is no such thing as efficiency; all you are doing is deferring it for two or three weeks so 
that you can put it in next year's budget. You will still have the same problem because you will have less money. 
You will have this 3 per cent less, plus, presumably, another 1.5 per cent less, so where is the new efficiency? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: I am sorry to have to disagree with you. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: It is only the Premier you are disagreeing with, not me. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: You should have read out the whole article, because it is totally correct about making 
efficiency changes. In making efficiency changes, you can also incorporate some of the other initiatives, such as what 
has been quoted here. In this department, the holding back of a particular allocation of funding does not constitute 
a reduction of 1.4 per cent. It is simply a small percentage of that. It is about managing the situation in the interim. 
You do not simply say, "Next year all the other expenditure stands". Right across government we have increased 
allocations in some areas; Health is one of them, as you know only too well, with the $40m injection to meet the 
requirements in the last financial year. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: That was only after you had run it down in the previous two years. 

[3.30 pm] 

HON EJ. CHARLTON: That is not right. People can have an opinion and can make wild statements, but they 
should stick to the facts. It is not a case of cutbacks being made in every department. Any change in any department 
will be in the best interests of all concerned 

Division 36: Main Roads, $42 300 000 -

[Hon Murray Montgomery, Chairman.] 

[Hon E.J. Charlton, Minister for Transport.] 

[Mr M. Wallwork, Acting Commissioner of Main Roads.] 

[Mr D.R. Warner, Director, Corporate Services.] 

The CHAIRMAN: Main Roads receives a fair proportion of its funding from the Commonwealth Government. 
Where will savings or cuts be made in Main Roads? 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: The Commonwealth Government does not make a substantial contribution to'state funding, 
and it never has. It makes a small contribution. This year it was even less. It has allocated $48m to national 
highways, and it is yet to determine where a further $7Om will be allocated. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Is that $70m for Western Australia? 
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Hon E.J. CHARLTON: No, that is in total. An amount of $48m has been allocated to Western Australia; $70m 
remains to be allocated to national highways across Australia. Black spot funding has yet to be allocated across 
Australia. To put that in perspective, no reduction has occurred in the allocation of funds to local government. In 
fact, the inflation factor has resulted in an increase in funding to local government. The remaining issue is national 
highways. As members know, the State Government allocates about 25 per cent of state money for roads to local 
government, and the balance of responsibility for roads lies with Main Roads. The other 75 per cent of funding is 
directed towards that area. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: What steps has Main Roads taken to reduce its budget by 1.4 per cent, as a result of the 
commonwealth cut? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Main Roads is not affected by the cut. Its main source of funding is vehicle licensing and 
the Western Australian fuel levy. Earlier I referred to the other source of funding, but that is not affected by the 
decision of the Federal Government. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: Are you referring to trust funds and commonwealth funds? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Yes. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: Apart from Main Roads, agencies receiving trust fund money would not be affected by the 
1.4 per cent cut. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Main Roads has only one source of funds under the Transport Co-ordination Act - that is, 
the fuel levy. You know that state consolidated revenue does not go into that. 

[3.40 pm] 

Hon BOB THOMAS: If other agencies - not Main Roads - received any trust fund money, would the total of their 
budgets be reduced by the amount of trust fund money they received and would the 1.4 per cent be calculated on the 
balance, or would it be calculated on consolidated funding plus the trust fund money they received? 

Hon EJ. CHARL TON: I am sorry if I am not picking up the specifics of your question. Main Roads is not affected. 
The only other allocation of funds from the trust fund goes to the Department of Transport for transport related 
purposes. That is not affected by this component of money because it goes direct to the department. 

The CHAIRMAN: How much of your department's budget comes out of the consolidated fund? 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: The only consolidated fund component to Main Roads is what comes from the 
Commonwealth. 

Hon JOHN HALDE:'\: Is thc department's other money not hypothecated? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTO:'\: Yes, but not through Treasury. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: What is the anticipated capital and recurrent budget for Main Roads this year? 

Mr WARNER: It is $501 m. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Our frustration is with the 1.4 per cent cut across the board to pay for a $60m reduction in 
financial assistance grants. Already today we have looked at $1.156b of the State Government's Budget, give or take 
$lm. We have all agreed that the Treasurer has identified $4Om worth of savings that presumably will be achieved 
by a 1.4 per cent cut across the board. At the moment, we have identified $2.841m. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Who said that? 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: If the Minister adds up the figures we have heard today, he will see that chief executive 
officers have given us $2.8m worth of savings out of $1.156b worth of expenditure. I put it to the Minister that we 
wait to see where this $40m is. The Minister has gone on today in an elaborate way to tell us that it is all in hand. 
However, with one-sixth of the Budget already covered, we are nowhere near one-sixth of the requirement in this 
area. We would need to be at $1 Om. 
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Hon KIM CHANCE: It will get a lot worse when we deal with Health . 

. Hon JOHN HALDEN: Yes. The Minister is now at 25 per cent of his target. Is it any wonder that we are getting 
increasingly angry at sitting here today in this elaborate farce when there is no $40m? Admit it. 

Hon E.J . CHARLTON: The significant difference between what the member says from his interpretation of the 
responses today and the facts, is that no Minister has said there will not be a 1.4 per cent, 2.8 per cent or 10 per cent 
cut in any particular area It has been acknowledged that of course there will be cuts; however, it has not been agreed 
where those cuts will occur. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: The Treasurer said that $40m was identified. It is not identified - admit it. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: I said this before, but, with respect, it obviously does not suit Hon John Halden's angle. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Just count the numbers; they do not add up. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: The numbers the member quoted are figures that he says have been identified as savings, 
and he asks where the rest is. When he is told that savings will be made, he can rightly be upset and unhappy that 
they have not been identified in specific terms -

Hon JOHN HALDEN: We are told that savings have been made. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: - however, he will just have to wait until they are identified. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: The Treasurer said that he had identified them. You, Minister, have told the committee today 
that they are identified. I am telling you now that one-sixth of the way through this Budget they are a mile from being 
identified. Where are they? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: I have said continually to my colleagues that there is a better way of doing this than simply 
imposing a cut of 1.4 per cent across all departments. There are other ways of making the change. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Such as selling assets, as you said earlier? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: There is a range of ways. When I do my budget for my business I look at the outcome. I 
do not just cut down on fertiliser or chemicals to make a saving. I have made the suggestion, along with other 
Ministers, that although we readily identify that we can find $40m - the Treasurer is absolutely right; of course we 
can - we will not do it by simply having a 1.4 per cent cut. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: You are not going to tell us; that is what you mean. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Quite the contrary. The Government will not do it that way. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Would it not have sat more comfortably with the facts if the Treasurer had said that he was 
confident the Government could deliver a $40m saving because it had done that in the past? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: I did not interpret it any way other than that. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: The Opposition did, and I think many in the public did. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: What are the specific purpose grants for Main Roads and how much money is associated with 
them? Are they likely to be cut; and if so, by how much? 

Hon EJ . CHARLTON: The Main Roads allocation is different from that for all other government departments. The 
specific grants from the Federal Government are for maintenance and new construction, for example. We can provide 
the member with a break-up of where that $48m already identified is directed to. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: That is committed funding, not to be changed? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Yes. The $48m has been identified because it is part of ongoing projects; it includes no new 
projects. It required the Federal Government to continue the contracts in this 12 month period, and some will be 
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ongoing the year after. The areas that are in question where funds remain unallocated are those I have spoken about 
before; namely, a dual carriageway from Sawyers Valley to the Lakes that must be implemented, not in one year, but 
over two or three years; the widening of Great Eastern Highway from the Lakes to EI Caballo Resort; and the 
northern bypass construction to be done over a four year period. 

In addition, bridges will be built over Great Northern Highway, further maintenance will be done on Eyre Highway, 
and a number of smaller projects will be carried out. Those projects require a commitment. The State Government 
seeks from the Federal Government a commitment. What the Federal Government is doing currently is the same as 
it has been doing over a number of years; that is, it is making only annual commitments. That is no good for anyone: 
It is no good for the State, for the contractors or for the subcontractors, because they cannot plan ahead on equipment 
and so forth. That is why the State Government is trying to convince the Federal Government, as I did the previous 
Government, to enter into nothing less than a five year program - and not just the program, but the funds for it as well 
so that it is known that it will happen. 

[3.50 pm] 

Mr WARNER: The $48m is made up of $21.28m for asset preservation, $4.92m on traffic safety and minor works, 
and $21.84m for ongoing capital works. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: When the Budget was brought down we submitted our request for $80m from the Federal 
Government. We are $32m short of what we budgeted for, having told the Commonwealth Government that we 
needed an average of $130m a year for the next five years to undertake the minimum amount of work required on 
our national highways. I have been pressured by a number of people within the State to spend state money on the 
national highways because they are unsafe and in severe need of repair. I have resisted that because after great 
deliberation with the administration of Main Roads we decided to get more money onto our state network through 
the contracting procedures. It is not fair that we should direct that money onto national highways because the feds 
refuse to fund their responsibility. 

Hon JOHN HAIDEN: Has the untied road grant this year estimated at $41m been reduced? If so, to what amount? 

Mr WARNER: This year's consolidated fund is $42.3m. 

Hon JOHN HAIDEN: Will you receive that amount? 

Mr WARNER: Yes. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: That area has been reduced by approximately $2.2m compared with the previous year. It 
was a financial assistance grant under a different heading. Was that factored into the $60m the Federal Government 
took from the state Budget? Were they separate groups? Is the $2.2m in that pool referred to in the Press as $60m 
in FAGs? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: I cannot specifically answer that. We have not investigated whether there is a direct 
correlation between the two allocations. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I think $59.9m in FAGs has been reduced. Is another $2.2m of untied road grants being 
taken out? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: I do not think they are related. The untied grants vary from year to year by small amounts, 
significant as $1 m is. 

Mr WARNER: I think the untied grants were allocated on a sliding scale as FAGs when the agreement was to put 
moneys back into an untied form. They were gradually disappearing back to the FAGs percentage. Therefore, a 
slight reduction occurs each year. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: It started out as the old national arterials funding. 

Mr WARNER: Yes. 

The CHAIRMAN: I ask the Minister to take that question on notice. 
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Hon JOHN HAlDEN: How many motor vehicles does Main Roads have which will be affected by the·revocation 
of the exemption from wholesale sales tax? What is likely to be the cost implication in this financial year? 

Mr WARNER: There will be no cost this financial year because we are moving from ownership to leasehold. Any 
changes in the rates of taxation will be reflected in the lease payments, so there is no direct correlation. 

Hon JOHN HAlDEN: There is an indirect correlation. 

Mr WARNER: Yes, but I do not have the details of that. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: We may get a better deal; we may make money. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: I do not think so. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: It has been reported that cuts of approximately $60m to national highway system funding 
will occur over the next four years. A $6Om cut in that area will be enormous for Western Australia. Bearing in mind 
that those roads are in our backyard, how do we therefore propose to manage the financing of issues such as road 
safety and road maintenance? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: I refuse to accept that that is an ongoing situation. The federal Minister has put a group of 
people together under the chairmanship of a federal member of Parliament, Mark Vale, to carry out an investigation 
of transport requirements across the nation. We will be represented in discussions with that group shortly to put 
forward the kind of requirement that any responsible Federal Government must adhere to. In the short term, we are 
dealing with it by continuing with projects identified under the $48m. However, the Government does not accept 
that the nation can sustain those cutbacks to infrastructure funding for its national highways. If these cutbacks were 
to continue we would have to allocate the funds on a priority basis. As Hon John Halden knows, as I did with the 
previous Government, I refused to cooperate and prioritise roadworks. We listed all the roads that need attention 
now to arrive at the $13Om a year. The only alternative to the Federal Government's not addressing that properly with 
sufficient funding is to get out of road funding altogether so that the States at least know the Federal Government will 
not adequately allocate funds to particular roads. The tragedy of it is that Federal Governments - they get very touchy 
when I say this - continue to use road users as a source of taxation for federal government distribution across the 
board. However, at the same time they refuse to allocate sufficient funds to roads. I am not talking about wasting 
money; I am talking about the basic minimum requirement. I am sure every member in this State acknowledges that 
shortfall in funding. 

There must be a change of policy. I hope Mark Vale's committee will recommend that the Federal Government, like 
State Governments, must fund roads and major infrastructure differently from the past. Cash up-front and a little bit 
every year for a project is inefficient and costly. Main Roads has identified that 200 km or 300 km of Eyre Highway 
east of Norseman must be replaced. That should be done now within one project. The Federal Government should 
seek ways of finding funds for it, such as from infrastructure bonds, so that the financial institutions of Australia can 
contribute to the funding. I acknowledge that that would involve an interest component. The interest component may 
not be much more than the savings that can be achieved by doing that in the one project. 

[4.oopmJ 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Surely the Minister is not advocating borrowing? It would be a way of hiding a deficit. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: I am totally in favour of it. 

Hon JOHN HAlDEN: The Minister just told the committee about the evils of the federal government deficit. The 
committee has had at least three lectures on this issue today. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: That is a different debate. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: It is exactly the same debate. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: Money is borrowed for infrastructure. I advise Hon Alannah MacTiernan that money can 
be borrowed for other things and money can be made out of it. I can suggest half a dozen roads in this State -

Hon JOHN HALDEN: In all seriousness the Minister told them to make money. 
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Hon EJ. CHARLTON: No. I do not tell them. Benefits will flow into the national economy by putting the right 
money into the right road. For example, we are building a road in conjunction with a mining company east of Marble 
Bar. This sort of thing was done when the Labor Party was in Government. The mining companies contribute to the 
construction of roads simply because of the reduction in freight rates and the greater efficiency that results. We 
should be identifying these roads across this nation. That is the reason the new Federal Government said it would 
fund roads of national importance. The first road to benefit from that scheme will be the Pacific Highway. That is 
where the national highway fund is going. The Federal Government is still spending the money, but it is not spending 
any of it in Western Australia. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Mr Chairman, I want to clarify the document that was sent to members. I understand 
members are not confined to questions concerning the impact of the federal Budget on the state Budget. 

The CHAIRMAN: The intent was that the committee would consider the impact of the federal Budget on various 
state agencies. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: I understood from the text of the document-

The CHAIRMAN: What is the member getting at? 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: I want to ask a question arising out of the budget papers, but it does not relate directly 
to the Budget. 

The CHAIRMAN: The member should ask the question and if I do not rule it out of order, she will know it is in 
order .. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: A major program is road prt;;servation, which is the maintenance of roads. I cannot find 
any reference in the significant issues and trends to the fact that significant areas of road maintenance have been 
privatised or contracted out. Will the Minister confirm whether maintenance has been contracted out and, if so, will 
he describe how it is working? 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: The policy for contracting out part of the maintenance works is to ensure that the maximum 
amount of funding that is allocated to maintenance actually hits the roads and does what it sets out to do. It should 
be acknowledged that in this process Main Roads Western Australia's administration for the care and management 
of the road network must be to get as much money as is possible from the available funding. We must minimise the 
amount spent on administration and the relocation of road teams. It has been decided that in areas where it is 
applicable maintenance will be contracted out. For example, three areas have been contracted out in the country and 
one in the metropolitan area, on three year contracts and with four companies. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Has the Perth metropolitan area been contracted out? 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: Part of it is to be contracted out and the other part is to be maintained by Main Roads. The 
plan is to carry out a comparison of these two options to ascertain the benefits from both applications. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Who has the contract for the metropolitan area? 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: Transfield. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Who supervises Transfield's performance of that contract? 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: Main Roads. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: What is the role ofCMPS & F Pty Ltd? 

Mr W ALLWORK: CMPS & F is the consultant firm that will take on the role of contract superintendent. It works 
out the work schedules for Main Roads and Transfield and hands them to the contractor. It audits the contractor's 
performance on behalf of the Commissioner of Main Roads, who remains the principal for both contracts. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: It nominates the maintenance that needs to be done. Does it also inspect the work that 
is done and sign accordingly? 
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Mr W ALLWORK: Two areas are involved: First, the routine maintenance, which involves the day to day pothole 
maintenance and guidepost replacement; second, the maintenance that is already specified in the contract. The work 
schedules deal only with the first schedule - the day to day work. The second schedule is predetermined by Main 
Roads. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Are you referring to the incidentals? 

MrWALLWORK: Yes. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: What is its role at the end of the contract? Who makes sure the work is done properly? 

Mr WALLWORK: The contract is done under a quality system, which means the contractor has the responsibility 
to govern the control of his work. The superintendent carries out an audit role and he has the responsibility to report 
the result to the principal. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Who is the superintendent? 

Mr WALLWORK: In other words, the consultant. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: In effect, the consultant is carrying out the supervision work? 

Hon EJ . CHARLTON: For part of the contract. The basis for this must be brought into perspective. Since corning 
to Government, we have increased road funding by about 60 per cent. As a consequence, there has been a significant 
increase in the on the ground allocation of funding. Main Roads is going through a transition phase. It does not have 
the staff - in other words, it is understaffed - to manage some of the projects. It has been the case for many years to 
bring in separate contracts for various responsibilities. The case put forward by Mr Wallwork is one example. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Where has Main Roads' expertise gone? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: It was not there. The member should take into consideration that when Main Roads did all 
the work it did not need to have the people at the higher level overseeing the projects. She must also take into 
account that at that time there was not as much happening. It is like quality assurance. I am not surprised that the 
member shakes her head. 

[4.10 pm] 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: So, not as much work was being done? 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: First, not as much work was being done. We virtually doubled in a couple of years the 
amount of roadworks being done, and we could not just pluck off the vine engineers and project managers to oversee 
those projects. We needed to bring in other people with expertise to oversee it. However, at the end of the day, 
people like Mr Wallwork and the people in his division then oversee those consultants. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: They oversee the overseers? 

Hon EJ . CHARLTON: That is right, to ensure the work has been carried out. The bottom line is to ensure that the 
funding is being spent correctly. This is a transition period, because it is Main Roads' intention to have in-house all 
those people required to oversee the projects. That is what we want. However, we cannot get those people. We are 
advertising currently allover Australia so that we have the capacity in-house to oversee the contracts. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: I have a copy of a letter which purports to be a letter you wrote to the acting 
commissioner wherein you say that you are of the firm view that the matters involved in the letting and supervision 
of all contracts should be undertaken by Main Roads personnel. You go on to say that it is important therefore that 
suitably trained and properly qualified people be in place as soon as possible to carry out all contract supervisory 
work. However, as we have learnt today, private operators are providing that supervisory work. 

Hon E.J. CHARLTON: You have repeated what I said. That is what we want. We want to have more and more 
people in Main Roads -

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Because you recognise there is a problem? 
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Hon EJ. CHARLTON: No. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Why do you want that, then? 

Hon EJ . CHARLTON: The member gets herself into trouble continually and consistently by parading and pushing 
totally misguided, inaccurate comments. The first thing she should acknowledge is that we have substantially 
increased the amount of roadworks taking place. You cannot overnight double the amount of activity on the roads 
and, at the same time, have locked up in a back room at Main Roads qualified people who can be brought on to 
oversee projects. These are consulting engineers that have been contracted or hired to do this work because of the 
extra activity taking place. We want to get more and more qualified people in Main Roads. Main Roads is the 
manager and the owner of the network. It wants people with the capacity to ensure that all this work that is being 
done, whether by Main Roads staff or by contractors, is done in accordance with the specifications laid down by Main 
Roads. In the interim we must bring these people in to assist Main Roads. We have some magnificent young people 
in Main Roads who are fast gathering the experience to do this job. Overseeing these projects is not something that 
one learns overnight from reading text books. That knowledge has to be gained over a period. I would have thought 
that, rather than be critical, the member would applaud this initiative to have Main Roads people take this 
responsibility . 

Hon A.J.G. MacTIERNAN: I gather from the Minister's letter that he recognises that it is important to have 
contractors supervised by Main Roads personnel and that it is a second best option to have them supervised by private 
companies. 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: I was not going to sit on my hands for five or 10 years - I do not have that sort of time and 
nor do Mike Wallwork, Des Warner, or the Commissioner of Main Roads - and allow the roads of Western Australia 
to continue to deteriorate, as the member's party did while in government. Overnight we increased the allocation to 
road funding. We brought back the $43m that was gOi,ig into public transport; we introduced the 4¢ a litre levy 
which amounted to another $73m a year; and we made approximately $30m a year in administrative efficiencies in 
Main Roads. We added them together to give a $lb additional 10 year road building program. Main Roads did not 
have the work force the day after the announcement and after identifying the additional road program. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: This is four years into your term and you have just granted this contract. What have 
you been doing for the four years? 

Hon EJ. CHARLTON: How long does it take to educate an engineer? For how long did the member go to 
university? Did she become a lawyer overnight? 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: This company has managed to recruit the people. Why have you not achieved that? 

Hon E.J . CHARLTON: This member is one of the most ignorant, arrogant and misinformed members when it comes 
to talking about the real issues on road funding. 

The CHAIRMAN: Order! Does the member have any further questions? I will allow one further question. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: When Were the supervisory contracts granted to this company? 

Mr WALL WORK: The contracts are in their initial phase at the moment where they are preparing the quality plans. 
Transfield has yet to submit its quality plan as does the consultant. I think we are planning to have the first work 
carried out in early December or in the case of the consultant it might be slightly earlier than that. Transfield will 
not commence work until the first week in December. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Has Main Roads lost many professional staff in the last four years? 

Mr WALLWORK: I will have to take that on notice. I do not have an accurate idea. 

The CHAIRMAN: The question is on notice. 

Hon EJ . CHARLTON: Over the years, Main Roads has been the breeding ground for many of the leading engineers 
in this State and this nation. We want to offer them the work and incentives to retain their services. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: You have had four years to do it. Minister. 
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Hon E.J . CHARLTON: There was no work for them when your mob was in government. You bled everything off. 

The CHAIRMAN: Order! Thank you, Minister. 

[4.20 pm] 

Division 26: Education, $1 266 800 000 -

[Hon Bob Thomas, Chairman.] 

[Hon N.F. Moore, Minister for Education.] 

[Ms C. Vardon, Director General.] 

[Mr R.V. Mance, Executive Director, Resources and Services.] 

[Mr N.T. Jarvis, Acting Executive Director, Education Services.] 

[Mr P.J. McCaffrey, Director, Finance.] 

The CHAIRMAN: Would you like to give a brief overview of the impact of the federal Budget? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: No, it might be better to go straight into questions. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Have you received instructions in the Treasurer's circular on the 1.4 per cent across the board 
cut to the budgets of government agencies to offset the reduction offederal funding to the State? What steps have 
you taken to implement them? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Although the Treasury beginning point was 1.4 per cent for agencies and agencies were required 
to contemplate their own financial circumstances, as I indicated this morning, some flexibility is permitted within that 
overall general direction. I understand the Education Department has been able to obtain an assurance from Treasury 
that the 1.4 per cent will not apply to the Education budget. It is looking at $4m, which is about 0.3 of a per cent. 
The Budget is about $1.3b and the Education Department is being asked to look at some savings across the system 
of about $4m. 

Ms V ARDON: We negotiated with Treasury to bring the percentage back to a manageable amount. We are planning 
for that now. The planning is not complete, so I am unable to give any specific areas. Certainly within the budget 
of $1.3b, as the Minister has said, it will be possible for us to meet that target by reordering some priorities in the 
general recurrent funding. 

The CHAIRMA!':: We have Mr Brett Mayberry from Treasury. If members have questions that relate to the 
Treasury's understanding of this portfolio, I am prepared to take questions which may be answered by Mr Mayberry. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Is Mr Mayberry here representing the Treasury or assisting the committee? 

The CHAIRMAN: He is assisting the committee. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: In what capacity? I am the Minister responsible for this part of today's exercise and, therefore, 
I accept responsibility for what is said. However, I cannot accept responsibility for a Treasury officer. I want to 
know the context in which he is here. 

The CHAIRMAN: It is simply in the context of our looking for further clarification. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: The CEO has advised that for the $4m saving you are looking at various options. Will you 
provide some detail of the options at which you are looking? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Bear in mind that this is speculation and must be taken in that context and not in the context of 
some hard and fast decision having been made. 

-
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Ms V ARDON: Because of the state of our planning and the range of options we are considering, at this stage it is 
not possible to give any specific outcomes or areas where savings will be found. Within a budget of our size we have 
the capacity to find those dollars. 

Mr MANCE: We had an initial meeting with the Treasury to confirm the level of funding it expects us to contribute 
and to identify the options, given that this is at a time when we commit ourselves for 12 months. We are in the 
process of reviewing programs. It is quite possible that one option may be to adjust our cash flows. We have not 
received advice from Canberra as! to what will be our 1997 level of recurrent funding. We anticipate additional 
funding owing to the increase in enrolments. When we have the data, one option might be to pass on to schools the 
CPI increase in that figure and maybe either stop new programs being entered into, which we would otherwise have 
done with the recurrent funding, or hold others without growth. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I have the impression that you are saying that you would be cutting back on the recurrent side 
of the budget rather than capital. Is that correct? 

Mr MANCE: Not necessarily. It is one of the options. 

The CHAIRMAN: I come back to the issue of the Treasury officer. I understood that he had been invited by the 
chairman, Hon Murray Montgomery; that is not the case. He is here as an observer and will not be asked any 
questions, and so he is off the hook. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: The Federal Government stated that there would be no cuts in specific purpose grants for 
Education. Is that correct? 

Ms V ARDON: You are quite right; the recently announced commonwealth Budget certainly reflects the coalition's 
election commitment to maintain funding in line with the forward estimates. I have to say at the outset that it looks 
as though schools across the nation will receive an additional $176m in 1996-97. I can come back to that a little later. 
I will make it clear that we have not received any formal advice on the changes to the commonwealth-state relations 
on specific purpose programs. The commonwealth officers have certainly been to see us and have briefed us and 
given us an overview, but the details of the dollars have yet to be revealed. As you know, one waits until the money 
is in the bank as far as these things are concerned; one does not take things for granted. Money for those programs 
has been allocated to all States based on 1982 census data. 

[4.40 pm] 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Why would it be based on that year? 

Mr JARVIS: It was previously based on 1982 data, but it will now be based on the latest census data. 

Ms V ARDON: I am providing background information to explain some of the changes. Changes have been made 
to the mechanisms for allocating funds because the decisions were based on very outdated census data that does not 
show clearly our enrolment patterns and demographic shifts across Western Australia, which have been considerable 
since that time. The more important issue is that it is proposed that the whole structure of the existing commonwealth 
programs be changed quite radically. Previously we had about 25 school programs, and they have now been 
realigned and refocused into five new programs that subsume the previous programs. It is quite a lengthy and 
difficult process. The federal legislation has not as yet been passed to confirm that these are the directions that will 
be followed. 

The five new programs are: Literacy, which subsumes a whole range of previous programs and gives us a great deal 
more flexibility to move dollars around to suit the needs of our school communities in Western Australia; languages; 
special learning needs; school to work; and quality outcomes, which covers a whole range of professional 
development activity and ways of enhancing the teaching profession. We have been given an overview of those 
programs and at the moment we are looking at how they might affect us and what the outcomes will be. Weare not 
rushing in because that would be silly. We are keeping in touch with the Commonwealth as we move through the 
process. However, the news on a few fronts looks quite reasonable. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: First, you said that the census data had been changed to 1982. 

Ms V ARDON: No, the Commonwealth has used the 1982 census data as the basis for all allocations to Western 
Australia. It is saying that it is about time that was changed, and we agree. Allocations will now be based on the 
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most recent census data. That is the change and that is why the process is taking a long time to complete; it is a big realignment and refocusing and it involves long overdue changes. The cumbersome nature of these programs means that turning them around will take some time. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I understand clearly what Ms Vardon has said in regard to specific purpose grants. How many specific purpose grants does the departtnent receive from the Federal Government? 

Mr MANCE: The allocations are as follows: English as a second language, general new arrivals, $6.6m; special education - with two components - school support, $2.6m and intervention, $1.5m; disadvantaged schools, $5.7m; country areas, $2.7m; early literacy, $786 000; transition support, $64 000; community languages, $325 000; priority languages, $306 000; students with disabilities $388 000; students at risk $530 000; gifted and talented $l34 000; gender equity, $93 000, giving a total of $22.1 02m. The allocation to Aboriginal education programs is $6.3m and to special projects, $1.9m, giving a progressive total of $30.389m. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: What about schools assistance? 

Mr MANCE: In terms of general recurrent? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Can the member be more specific? We have a list of specific purpose grants and untied grants. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I refer members to page 24 of the Consolidated Fund Estimates, which shows that the projected allocation for schools assistance this year is $125.241m, of which the Education Department gets $121.198m. It is quite specifically detailed here as a specific purpose grant. 

Mr MANCE: It is included in those totals. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: In fact, the document shows Aboriginal advancement programs grants of $6.3m and special projects of $1.9m. What is in and what is out? 

Mr McCAFFREY: The programs that Mr Mance just explained include an item called special projects involving an allocation of $1.9m. That is a separate figure in the estimates. The schools assistance program includes all the programs that Mr Mance mentioned, plus the general recurrent grants, which total in the order of $49m. We could easily prepare a reconciliation to that date for the member. 

[4.50 pm] 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: That does not add up. The figure is about $71m rather than $121m. 

Mr McCAFFREY: In the Estimates the total commonwealth specific purpose money for the Education Departtnent is $129.485m. The grants that Mr Mance mentioned total $30.3m and general recurrent grants total $99. 1m. Within that $99.1 m are some general recurrent grants that go straight back to Treasury revenue because they are viewed as a contribution to the departtnent's salary and operating costs. They include such things as nurses' salaries. They are the major components, and they add to $129.485m. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Does the Federal Government instruct the departtnent on where that $99m should be spent? 

Mr McCAFFREY: No, they are viewed as untied grants. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Although they are specific? 

Mr McCAFFREY: Yes. Our agency has tied them to specific program areas. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Has the Federal Government increased funding for specific purpose grants this year as against the previous year? 

Mr McCAFFREY: Yes, by about $300 000. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I asked whether there has been an increase in specific purpose grants to the Education Departtnent in the 1996-97 Budget. 

-
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Mr McCAFFREY: There has been a decrease in a sense, and I will explain that. We receive the grants from the 
Commonwealth on a calendar year basis and we convert them to our financial year for the purpose of the 
parliamentary process and appropriations. In 1995-96 an amount of money was brought into the 1995-96 out turn 
documents - on which I am basing my figures. The actual result was slightly less. The amount of revenue from the 
Commonwealth is set out in ledger 8 - commonwealth grants advances. As it is expended through the Education 
Department's books we bring that to account in the Treasury ledgers. The decrease is based on what we expected 
to happen. It looks as though the figure will be slightly lower in 1996-97 because of cashflow draw downs. From 
memory, the actual out turn at the~nd of the financial year 1995-96 was slightly less than we anticipated, because 
program expenses were not as high as we had thought. My gut feeling on cash flow is that it will be the same. The 
January recurrent grant from the Commonwealth included an indexation factor for CPI and an adjustment for the 
increase in enrolments in the education system for Western Australia across the board. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: As the Federal Government bases its figures from calendar year to calendar year, what 
negotiations have there been for the next calendar year, bearing in mind its implications for this year's Budget? 

Mr McCAFFREY: The Director General has pointed out that we are awaiting advice on 1996-97 programs. Our 
predictions on the expected requirement for the commonwealth programs are based a little bit on what we think will 
happen and what has occurred in previous years. The understanding is that if there were a change in any level of 
commonwealth funding - Mr Mayberry of Treasury will confirm this - the Education budget would be adjusted in 
accordance with inflows and outflows and program approvals. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: What is the bottom line for 1996-97? 

Mr McCAFFREY: We do not have it. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: It has an implication for the state Budget for 1996-97, because it is the last half of the 
financial year. 

Mr McCAFFREY: If the member is asking for the cash flow anticipated for the last few months of 1996 and first 
few months of 1997, I do not have that with me today. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Will you provide me with that? 

Mr McCAFFREY: Yes. 

The CHAIRMAN: That question is on notice. We will provide the department with a copy of the question. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I am pleased that Mr McCaffrey has provided that answer. Bearing in mind this is the 
seventh or eighth agency we have questioned today, this is the first time an agency has been prepared to concede that 
it is discussing those implications with its federal colleagues, and it can provide me with an answer. The seven 
agencies that appeared before the Education Department were reluctant to provide any indicative information. I thank 
Mr McCaffrey and the Education Department for the information .. It makes a mockery of what we do here when other 
agencies are not prepared to do that. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: I have not been here for all of the divisions. However, I do not recall any reluctance to provide 
information, other than one occasion when I refused to speculate about the federal Budget and its outcomes in 
Western Australia, as opposed to the effect it might have on the state Budget. My recollection of the time I have been 
here is different from that of the member. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: What is the anticipated likely impact on this year's Budget of the revocation of the wholesale 
tax exemption on executive motor vehicles, and how many executive motor vehicles are there in the Education 
Department? 

Mr MANCE: The total current fleet is 350 vehicles. The sales tax on executive vehicles will cost an estimated 
$100 000 per annum. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I do not want to induce the Minister into a debate with me. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: There is a simple way to ensure that. 
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Hon JOHN HALDEN: I understand that Minister, and I will endeavour to circumvent that. What is the federal 
department's involvement in education in Western Australia, and does it playa complementary role in primary and 
secondary education with the state department? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: In general terms, the State provides the resources for the preprimary, primary and secondary 
education systems to operate. Federal government funds are made available to assist with that, but the vast quantity 
of money spent on preprimary, primary and secondary comes out of the state Budget. The Commonwealth 
contributes a small percentage of the cost of the system. I guess the member wants to know what it does. That 
department should not exist in my view, but that does not answer the question. A federal department of education 
is not needed. 

[S.OOpm] 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I am sure you are speculating, Minister, which you would not allow me to do earlier. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: The member is right; however, some money could be saved in that area. Perhaps one of the 
officers may say what that department does, out I have never known it to do anything worthwhile. 

Ms V ARDON: Perhaps I could add to the Minister's statement a little. Our relationship with the commonwealth 
department is very close and one of negotiation, argument, debate and argument again to ensure we get the best deal 
for children in Western Australia. When such changes are proposed, as the Minister has said - and I support him 
there - some people always have deep suspicion and distrust about what the federal department is trying to do to us. 
Through bilaterals and a whole range of contact and consultation we ensure that we hammer out the best deal for us 
in terms of the dollars available. Part of the drawn-out period of the planning process in working out our dollars for 
next year is that discussion, debate and argument which occurs when we get together. Most of the time we win. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I am asking whether the Federal Government provides any services; I do not think it does. 

Ms V ARDON: It does not manage schools. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: What about curriculum development? 

Ms VARDON: The Department of Employment, Education, Training and Youth Affairs is going through significant 
restructure and change and things are a little confused at the moment. 

Hon 1.0. MacLEAN: What is different? 

Hon N.F. MOORE: There was talk some years back of national curriculum initiatives promoted heavily by the 
previous Federal Government. The process came to a halt back in 1993, as I recall, as a result of a ministerial 
meeting which suggested that some of the national initiatives of the previous Government were not altogether 
appropriate. This State Government believes that the delivery of education services is a state responsibility. As far 
as the Federal Government is concerned, the more of our money we can have back again, the better for all of us. 

Ms V ARDON: That is being reflected in the shift in terms of broadbanding the program to give the State more 
flexibility. Advances have been made there. It looks as though the focus of the federal department will be on 
vocational education and training in the future, and less on school education. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: Just on that point, as a matter of interest, the current federal government Budget has an 
allocation for vocational education and training in schools. This is a major initiative and one we welcome, provided 
the necessary flexibility accompanies the change. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I seem to recall getting a document which suggested some concern that that could be used 
to diminish school funding. One takes it out of the postsecondary education, drops it back into the secondary 
education and then reduces the pool of money for secondary education. That is a concern. 

Hon N.F. MOORE: No, it is coming from the vocational education and training budget through the Australian 
National Training Authority arrangement. It is additional funds to those in the secondary education system. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I hope so, Minister, especially in the long term. 

---
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Hon N.F. MOORE: That is my understanding. 

Hon MURRAY MONTGOMERY: Ms Vardon provided the committee with the unaudited financial statements and 
performance indicators of the department. The Auditor General had at that time not issued his opinion on the 
department's results up until 30 June 1996. Has the Auditor General issued any opinions since and, if so, what were 
they? 

Ms V ARDON: As I understand it,ID.O, not yet. I ask Mr McCaffrey to bring us up to date on how it is progressing. 

Mr McCAFFREY: We have not had an official response and opinion at this time. The statements we forwarded to 
you had not been audited, but that process has been ongoing probably from the end of July. Our working relationship 
with the Office of the Auditor General is very close. Earlier in the piece it was necessary to make one or two minor 
- I stress that word - adjustments to the format of the statements. The Auditor General is very happy with the 
statements as prepared, although I do not yet have that in writing. 

Hon MURRAY MONTGOMERY: When do you expect to get that advice? 

Mr McCAFFREY: I am not sure how close they are to the finalisation of their program. 

The CHAIRMAN: Note 6 of the unaudited 1995-96 financial statements shows $15.756m for "other revenue". 
There is no breakdown of this amount. Will you provide the committee with that breakdown? 

Mr McCAFFREY: Yes. The major revenue in that amount is schools' revenue, which is a total of $9.4m. That is 
for general school fees, bookshop collections, canteen operations and, if a school has one, from uniform shops. Also, 
they are revenues which schools receive for specific projects which the school community would like to see within 
the school. One would be prepared to include P & C donations to schools in that area. There is a small salary recoup 
of $1.6m. Another item called "accounts receivable, central office" of $2.8m is a whole range of revenues for 
miscellaneous items across the ambit of the department. 

The CHAIRMAN: Note 32 reports $773383 for the loss of public money and property for theft or default not 
otherwise covered by insurance. What sort of losses are referred to there? 

Mr McCAFFREY: The $773000 flow from that type of item. It is the areas that are not covered by insurance. It 
covers such things as arson, break and enter, theft, vandalism and fire and such expenses. There were more than 
3 500 separate claims from our schools throughout the year to the department for that type of item. They are the 
major types of offences with which we must deal. We expect the break and enter figure to be $554 000, which is a 
large part of the $773 000. As a result of the nature of the break-ins and theft, they are not covered by general 
insurance. 

The CHAIRMAN: You also indicated arson. My understanding is that the department frequently spends millions 
of dollars as a result of arson. Is this year's figure unusually low, or is it a separate item? 

Mr McCAFFREY: It is a separate item. This is the uninsured arson with a total of $121 000. 

The CHAIRMAN: It is my understanding that the department does not insure for arson, but that it is self-insured. 

Mr McCAFFREY: I may be corrected, but there is a fund through the Building Management Authority or the 
Department of Contracts and Management Services which looks after our schools. This is the only part of the cost 
we meet through the Education budget; it is not part of the capital works program. 

The CHAIRMAN: That self-insurance is through government? 

Mr McCAFFREY: Through other parts, yes. 

The CHAIRMAN: Note 34 provides detail of school cash receipts for the year ending 1995. The 1994 general fund 
closing balance for primary schools was $8 688 541, and the 1995 general fund opening balance for primary schools 
was $8 828 700. Why is there a difference between the opening and closing balances? 

[5.10 pm] 
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Mr McCAFFERY: That is a balance across 750 school sites. It is probably a reflection of the amount of funds that 
we are devolving to the school level for decision making. This figure would be the funds held in the accounts at 
30 June. It does not necessarily mean they are committed. Over the years those school grants have been passed to 
the school level. 

The CHAIRMAN: Why is there a difference between that figure and that at 30 June 1995? 

Mr McCAFFERY: Schools are retaining more funds in their bank balances at that time. 

The CHAIRMAN: Why the difference in the figure between 12 o'clock at 30 June and 1 July, between one year to 
the next? The closing balance should be exactly the same as the opening balance of the next year. I cannot 
understand how some funds could be taken out. 

Mr McCAFFERY: I interpret the statements to say that at 31 December 1994, in this case, that was the balance, and 
at 31 December 1995, that was the balance. 

The CHAIRMAN: We are talking about the difference between a closing balance and an opening balance of the 
financial year. 

Mr McCAFFERY: I do not know what you are driving at. These are not statements in an accrual form; they are 
simply balances supplied as supplementary information, provided by schools as of 31 December each year. The 
information is taken from here then incorporated into our accrual statements, which would normally be shown earlier 
in the documentation; however, that is not the case because these figures are for 1995-96. 

The CHAIRMAN: Is some of the opening balance for 1995 provided for all of the schools? Is the opening balance 
a collective amount and the closing balance the aggregate sum given by schools as at 30 June? 

Mr McCAFFERY: I think we are talking at cross-purposes. The information on attachment 34 is on a calendar year 
basis. That information has been converted to an accrual basis; that is, in financial year terms. I do not have the 
information, but if you wish, I could work the figures through. 

The CHAIRMAN: I will give another example. For distance education centres the closing balance for 1994 is $149 
944. The opening balance for 1995 is exactly the same. 

Mr McCAFFERY: I do not have those figures. 

The CHAIRMAN: There are discrepancies in the figures for the distance support centres where the closing balance 
for 1994 is $1 384648, but the opening balance for the general fund shows it is $1 370795. Similarly for the same 
period for agriCUltural schools, the closing balance is $232 140, but the opening balance for 1995-96 is $504 546. 
I will have that question placed on notice and ask you to explain the differences. 

Mr McCAFFERY: Those balances are definitely 12 months apart. They do not finish at 31 December 1994 and start 
from 1 January 1995. This information is straight from the schools' cash management budgets as at their close of 
business bank account balances. It is provided as supplementary information. It does not necessarily relate, in this 
form, to the accrual statements in the earlier documents. 

The CHAIRMAN: As I said, I will have that question placed on notice. We are talking about the closing balance 
in 1994 and the opening balance in 1995. 

Mr McCAFFERY: I believe we are talking in different contexts. 

The CHAIRMAN: I refer to the unaudited financial statements summary of consolidated fund appropriations and 
revenue estimates, which show the 1995-96 estimate balance for departmental revenue is $21.730m. The same item 
appearing on page 126 of the 1995-96 estimates for expenditure - that is, Budget Paper No 2 - shows a balance of 
$21.337m. Why is there a difference? 

Mr McCAFFERY: I will have to investigate that matter. 

The CHAIRMAN: I will have that question put on notice. As there are no further questions I thank the officers for 
their participation. You will receive a copy of the Hansard transcript. Please correct it and return it within the time 

-
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specified. You will also receive several questions on notice from our clerk and we ask that you respond to us within 
five working days. 

[5.30 pm] 

Division 90: Health, $1 547 544 000 -

[Hon I.D. MacLean, Chairman.] \ 

[Hon Peter Foss, Attorney General.] 

[Mr A Bansemer, Commissioner of Health.] 

[Mr A. Kirkwood, Manager, Corporate Finance.] 

[Mrs C. O'Farrell, General Manager, Program Purchasing.] 

[Dr J. Gill, Acting General Manager, Public Health.] 

[Dr H. Cook, Acting Director, Mental Health Services.] 

[Dr B. Stokes, Chief Medical Officer.] 

[Mrs H. Morton, Acting General Manager.] 

[Mr M.e. Miller, Acting Manager, State-Commonwealth Relations Unit.] 

[Mr R. McKenney, Acting General Manager, Mental Health.] 

[Mr E.S. Houston, General Manager, Aboriginal Health.] 

Hon KIM CHANCE: The Health budget is around $1.66b. Has the department received an instruction to introduce 
cost savings that would have the effect of eliminating 1.4 per cent of that amount? 

Mr BANSEMER: Effectively, yes. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: What amount of savings have you been able to identify? 

Mr BANSEMER: AI the moment we believe we have found that 1.4 per cent, primarily through corporate savings 
in the department and through slippage in the capital program. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIER:--;AN: What does slippage in the capital program mean? 

Mr BANSEMER: Eaeh year we get projects that do not proceed as rapidly as we had estimated. This year, while 
we had anticipated some of that, we had not anticipated the full amount of it, and on our current assessment we are 
now applying those funds to the shortfall. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: What was the extent of the 1.4 per cent saving in dollar terms? 

Mr BANSEMER: It was $12.3m. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: How is that broken up between corporate savings and slippage in the capital program? 

Mr KIRKWOOD: With regard to the corporate reductions, we have hauled back some $1.7m, and the slippage has 
yet to be determined. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: So you would be looking at over $ 10m on the capital slippage? 

Mr KIRKWOOD: Yes. 
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Hon JOHN HALDEN: What does that mean with regard to delays to programs? We dealt with this earlier and we 
were advised it meant a two or three week delay. Does $lOm worth of capital works investment in the Health 
Department equate to a two or three week delay? 

Mr BANSEMER: That would vary with the projects. We have not made an assessment of the average impact. Some 
projects we know are already behind. There are a couple of fairly significant examples of which everyone is aware. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: About 12 per cent of the total capital works program? 

Hon PETER FOSS: It is $71m and there are 52 weeks in a year, so it is a fairly short period. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I understand that some direct services that were considered essential to the community were 
quarantined from that 1.4 per cent cut. Was any of that quarantining made available to you; if so, in what areas? 

Mr BANSEMER: I do not believe that was made available to us. I think that was taken into account in assessing 
the amount of reduction at which we were looking. We have tried to quarantine all patient care services. 

Hon A.J.G. MacTiERNAN: Do you think you have been successful? 

Mr BANSEMER: We have been successful to the extent that our budget allocations this year reflect that. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Minister, today we have received a variety of answers about how the 1.4 per cent cut is being 
implemented: "We are not going to do it at all"; "We are discussing it with the Minister"; "The Minister has not 
bothered raising it with us"; "We will get more money because of the cut"; and so on. In a crucial area like Health, 
one wonders why the cut has been accepted and implemented so readily, when obviously its impact on the community 
will be enormous, yet other departments, which are not referred to as being crucial, seemingly have been able to 
divest themselves rapidly of the impact of this instruction by Treasury. Why has this happened, and is it government 
policy? 

Hon PETER FOSS: Having previously been a Minister for Health, I can tell you that if we left Health out of a 
1.4 per cent cut, we would end up with a cut considerably bigger than 1.4 per cent everywhere else. Health must play 
a part. It is also one of the areas that has, if we do it appropriately, the greatest capacity to be flexible; just look at 
the way it has adapted in this case. One way has been to take moneys out of the corporate area; and, being a big 
corporate area, we can get a significant amount of money from a small saving in the corporate area. The second way 
has been the capacity to affect timing. Your Government used to balance its budget by telling Health not to pay its 
bills for two days. We can balance the budget by fiddling with Health bills. It is such a huge amount of money; it 
is $6m a day -

[5.40 pm] 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: You might talk to the Minister for Transport. He has done that very effectively from time 
to time. 

Hon PETER FOSS: With an amount of $6m a day you do not need to put off spending for too many days to have 
a significant effect - particularly on capital expenditure usually without our even attempting it. One of the items that 
gets behind even when you try to push it along is capital expenditure. One of the most frustrating things is pushing 

. projects along to meet certain timetables. We usually get slippage in capital works that we are not looking for. Often 
Health is in that situation. One of the nice things about being the Minister for Health is that one has the capacity to 
do things with relatively small percentages which add up to large amounts of money. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: The Education Department is in a similar position. 

Hon PETER FOSS: I do not know that it is. I have never been the Minister for Education. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I have not asked the question yet! After the wonderful global overview that you have 
provided, I put to you that the Education Department is in a similar position. It has been able to negotiate only a 0.3 
per cent cut to its budget. Is it govepunent policy to favour education over health? 

Hon PETER FOSS: You started with an assumption with which I cannot agree, because I do not know. I have not 



[Monday, 14 October 1996] 851 

been the Minister for Education nor in a position of having to manage that budget. I have been the Minister for 
Health, so I know something about it -

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Do you mean you have not tried to tell them how to run that department! 

Hon PETER FOSS: I have been Minister for Health. I know how health works and I know the capacity where things 
are a matter of timing. This is very much a matter of timing because we have been asked by the Federal Government 
to put off money for some time. flow many years is it, Mr Kirkwood? 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: The number of years is an important point. 

Hon PETER FOSS: How many years is it? I cannot remember. A statement was made in the House by the Minister 
representing the Treasurer regarding the time that it must operate over. We can make significant differences by 
timing, and capital works is probably an area where we can make a large amount of difference with a small impact 
and with very little impact as far as the day to day services are concerned. On the other hand, I do not know if the 
same thing could be done in education. Its main cost would be teachers. We have major supplies. I do not think one 
can start with that basic supposition that health and education are similar. All I can say is what has happened in 
health. It will be done through the corporate area and slippage of capital works. If you were presented with a 
problem, you would accept that as an appropriate way to go. 
Hon JOHN HALDEN: I accept it is, but I do not understand the difference between departments. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Moving away, for the time being, from the 1.4 per cent question, which equates to $40m 
identified to address the deficiency in FAG funding, and moving to a critical issue in the Health portfolio, what 
specific purpose grants from the Commonwealth Government have been cut or reduced? I appreciate this is a short 
question to a long answer. 

Hon PETER FOSS: Curiously enough, the net is plus 4.8 million. It is probably a little simplistic because, being 
specific purpose grants, they end up in specific places. Capital planning is up $6.8m; mental health reform is up 
$3.3m; Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander health is up $3.1m; the blood transfusion service is down $5.3m - these 
are the indications. Are we talking about the revised estimates? 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Yes. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: As a result of the Federal Government's cut. 

Hon PETER FOSS: The blood transfusion service is down $5.3m; the dental program is down $3m; home and 
community care is down $2.8m; and all others are up $2.7m. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Can you explain those figures? 

Hon PETER FOSS: These are individual estimates. I will return to revenue and expenditure and give the actual 
amounts to be found. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: These are variations on the Estimates. 

Hon PETER FOSS: Yes. Home and community care is a funny one because we always put in for growth but the 
Commonwealth does not give us that. We have had that problem over recent years. The State plans for an increase 
in HACC every year, and the Commonwealth Government has been decreasingly forthcoming in meeting the 
increases that we propose. We believe that some formula is being applied. Therefore, whenever we suggest an 
increase the Commonwealth has either not met the full increase or, in this case, just pegged it. There has been no 
reduction; the Commonwealth has just given the same amount as last year but we had proposed an increase -
Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Your budget suggests an increase in expenditure but you cannot increase it because you 
do not have the money -

Hon PETER FOSS: We do not have the matching funds. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: You will be pegged back to $43.2m. An amount of $43m was the estimated actual for 
1995-96 -

The CHAIRMAN: Before asking any more questions, allow the Minister to answer. 
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[5.50 pm] 

Hon PETER FOSS: That is HACC money partly funded. Total HACC funding last year was $71.lm. We have 
predicted $78.6m, which was our increase and its increase. The CPI increase brings the total for HACC to $75.8m. 
In real terms there is no change. 

Hon A.J.G. MacTIERNAN: The Budget is inaccurate to that extent. 

Hon PETER FOSS: Yes, we had $78.6m; it will be $75.8m. That is a fairly usual happening. It has occurred 
regularly over the past few years. We have proposed an increase based on what we see as the real demand, and the 
Commonwealth has not met that. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: Is it fair to say from what you have given us that the outcomes for the funding of health service 
delivery in Western Australia in respect of the specific purpose grants have not been negative? 

Hon PETER FOSS: No. I had better get somebody to explain that. They are the changes we have made as a result 
of that. For a start, because they are specific purpose, they impact on particular areas. They cannot just be shifted 
around on the basis that we have more money in some areas. 

Hon KIM CHANCE: I was talking globally. 

Hon PETER FOSS: No, even that is not correct. Revenue is expected to be down $1.4m. 

Mr KIRKWOOD: There are some 27 different special purpose payments. The $IAm comprises a range of minor 
plus and minus amounts. 

Hon PETER FOSS: That is what our budget is. Some of them are fully funded and some are state funded. The net 
result is that although the estimate is up, in some the State is funding more of them than is the Commonwealth; in 
other words, the Commonwealth has removed some of that money. The State must find a total of $6.2m. 

Mr KIRKWOOD: Some of the things in that are not totally certain because of factors such as the cost shifting impact 
that has been levied into the numbers. Again, that has not been totally resolved. Although that figure is $6.2m, 
depending on how the cost shifting figures end up it could come down to next to nothing, or it could go the other way. 
That is being debated. 

Hon PETER FOSS: The problem areas are the blood transfusion service, where there is a reduction in expenditure 
of$5.3m, and the dental program. I do not think the funding for HACC is a problem because the funds are something 
we get all the time, and this year is no different from any other year. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I presume the figures you are supplying are figures that you have negotiated with the federal 
department since the Budget was brought down and that they are now fairly reliable. I am not saying that they are 
exact; I do not want to put words into your mouth. 

Mr BANSEMER: I would not say that they are: They are the best figures we have. We have found it difficult to 
get final figures from the Commonwealth. It has not produced one of the budget papers yet. 

Hon PETER FOSS: That is not new. It was one of our big problems because often we did not know finally where 
we were with some of the commonwealth funding until about December. 

Mr BANSEMER: We have taken what I regard as a fairly conservative position. We have factored in what we think 
is not quite the worst case scenario, but something like the worst case scenario. When the debate is over I think a 
number of areas will do somewhat better in commonwealth funding than is shown in those figures. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: From your experience, Minister, is this something that goes on within every department now 
that departments are negotiating with their federal colleagues to work out what they.will get from the feds? 

Hon PETER FOSS: I have only ever had Health as a major department depending on the Federal Government for 
services. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Environment? 

-
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Hon PETER FOSS: Environment receives different sorts of grants. It usually receives grants for particular projects, 
rather than ongoing service funding grants. The State certainly has a number of projects that are funded by the 
Federal Government; however, it is project funding rather than ongoing agency funding. Housing, Disability Services 
and Family and Children's Services would receive mainly this type of funding. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Would they be going through this same process? 

Hon PETER FOSS: I assume they would be. We found that often when we predicted where we would be, we would 
be surprised when we got to December and found out what we actually would receive. That often led to carryovers 
to the next year because by the time it was approved, it could not be spent. Budget figures are difficult to understand 
in Health because there is always a large carryover from the previous year. They appear in both years' estimates and 
sometimes it looks as though far more money has been spent in Health than is the case. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: The only reason I ask the question is that I want it on the record that the both the Health 
Department and the Education Department are seemingly negotiating and can give us ballpark figures; the rest cannot. 
It seems particularly strange to me. That is for the committee's deliberation, not mine. 

Hon PETER FOSS: Part of it may be due to the ongoing history. Health has a very good finance area. It must have. 
The department could not run as many separate agencies as it does without a real capacity to pick up problems when 
they emerge. If somebody is spending too much, the department must be able to pick that up and it must have a good 
day to day idea of where it stanu.>. ...he department has been doing it for a long' time. It has highly experienced 
people and I am sure it is in a much better position than less resourced agencies to make those sorts of decisions. 
In some ways Health is a nice department to have because there are many people who can give that sort of 
information. In a less resourced department it is often difficult to make that sort of decision. 

Hon AJ .G. MacTIERNAN: You said that the department must reduce by 5.1 per cent the budget plans for the blood 
transfusion service. That is a substantial cut. What impact will that have? 

Mr KIRKWOOD: The blood transfusion service is an area that is still being negotiated. Weare again talking about 
a budgeted figure verses a cornmonwealth figure. In real terms there is about $lm difference between what Red 
Cross is looking for and what the department is able to fund, which is about $ll.2m. The BTS is still a grey area. 
Each State must go forward to the Commonwealth with its proposal. Once they are all in place the money will be 
finally reviewed and allocated. 

Hon A.J.G. MacTIERNAN: If you were unable to successfully renegotiate that 5.1 per cent cut to its budget, what 
sorts of things would it have to stop doing? 

[5.50 pm] 

Mr BANSEMER: The effective cut is about a $lm in variance which is not of that order. Generally speaking, the 
blood transfusion service budget is capital intensive in part, and federal cuts will possibly lead to some deferrals in 
that area. 

Hon A.J.G. MacTIERNAN: How do you defer expenditure in a blood transfusion unit? 

Mr BANSEMER: It is under capital items. We have not reached that position. We have projected funding based 
on national figures because we do not have the commonwealth split between States other than in a notional sense. 
It is too early to predict with any accuracy what will be the situation. 

Hon PETER FOSS: I emphasise the point that has been made a couple of times; that is, the difference is $lm not 
$5.3m in what is needed to run the service. It is still being negotiated. 

Hon A.J.G. MacTIERNAN: It shows it is a bit silly to prepare a budget before we know how much money will be 
available. 

Hon PETER FOSS: No; it is like this every year with the Commonwealth. The differences in these commonwealth 
figures are no different from any other year. 

Hon A.J .G. MacTIERNAN: Surely the cut of $l.4m is exacerbating the problems. 
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Hon PETER FOSS: Certainly, but one of the complaints we had in the past was that we did not know until about 
December how much funding we would get from the Commonwealth. Then we had half a year in which to spend 
it. We managed to survive only because of carryovers from previous years. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Is that because the Commonwealth budgets by the calendar year? 

Hon PETER FOSS: No. It must prepare its Budget before it can negotiate with the States. The Commonwealth 
Government negotiates the various allocations over about six months. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: You said you were looking at savings through slippage of$lOm which is approximately 
12 per cent of the program. If that will be necessary over the next couple of years because of federal cuts, what 
impact will it have on the forward estimates? Will those items suggested for 1997-98 or 1998-99 have to be moved 
back as a result of the compounding effect of the slippage cuts? 

Mr BANSEMER: The prime area in which that is a problem is dental health. The rest will require some cushioning. 
We will need to review dental services to assess the impact ofthe commonwealth changes. Western Australia had 
a sound dental scheme before the Commonwealth introduced its dental program, which was an overload program. 
The Commonwealth extended the range of services. We are hoping to maintain that to the degree possible. However, 
we will have to consider seriously the essential priorities in dental health. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Is this part of the capital program? I was talking about the slippage in capital programs. 
It will not be confined to just this year. 

Mr BANSEMER: We are considering cushioning for only this year. We will have to examine our overall budget 
in future years. The capital program deals with the short term. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Are the forward estimates of capital expenditure likely to be affected? 

Mr BANSEMER: No, not appreciably because delays flow from one year to the next. Any delay in this year will 
cause a delay next year as a matter of course. 

Hon PETER FOSS: We are talking about only a few weeks. 

Mr BANSEMER: We are talking about programs that do not cover a whole financial year. The last capital 
expenditure program ran over several financial years. In other circumstances we would be working to catch up those 
delays. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I have a question on notice. The consolidated fund lays out specific purpose grants to which 
we have referred and the amount of money proposed for them at the time of the preparation of this year's state 
Budget. Will the department provide us with its best estimate of what it will get in each area? I think there are up 
to 27 of them. Hospital funding grants were estimated to be $503.33m. It is the most significant specific purpose 
grant in this State. 

Mr KIRKWOOD: The figure we show for the revenue is the base grant of $340.8m compared with a revised estimate 
of$329.6m. The combination of bonus pools is $150.3m versus $150.6m. All other specific purpose grants amounts 
to $114m. The total is $605m which is not just the base grant; it is the makeup of the total budget. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: What is that likely to be. 

Mr KIRKWOOD: That will become $603.7m as revenue which is $329.6m for the base grant, $150.6m and 
$123.5m. 

Hon PETER FOSS: That is the $IAm revenue drop that I mentioned earlier. With an upward variance of 
expenditure of $4.8m it will have an impact of $6.2m. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: I await a reply on notice with details of the other 26 or 27 specific purpose grants. 

Hon PETER FOSS: That is the total figure but Hon John Halden wants the details item by item. 

The CHAIRMAN: That information is to be provided on notice. 

-
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(6.10 pm) 

Homeswest -

(Hon Murray Montgomery, Chairman.) 

[Hon Max Evans, Minister for Finance.) 

[Mr G. Joyce, Chief Executive Officer.) 

[Mr J.A. Coles, Director, Finance.) 

The CHAIRMAN: Homeswest is one agency which is not included in the budget papers. However, the committee 
is interested in it in so far as it is a receiver of commonwealth funds. 

Hon I.D. MacLEAN: How will the changes mooted by the Federal Government to public housing affect Homeswest? 

Mr JOYCE: It is something which has unravelled over the last three years. I will try to condense what has happened 
in a couple of minutes. About three years ago the then commonwealth Minister Brian Howe, as a consequence of 
the industry commission inquiry, foreshadowed major changes to the way in which the Commonwealth, through the 
Commonwealth-State Housing Agreement, would fund the States for public rental housing. The Commonwealth 
identified major problems with the agreement. The first problem was an inequitable arrangement between private 
and public renters, in the sense that under the current system the 350 000 public renters across Australia receive 
approximately $4 000 per annum each in subsidy payments. Private renters, of which there are approximately 
1.5 million and who take up 19 per cent of the stock, receive a subsidy of approximately $1 500 each through Social 
Security rent assistance. The second problem the Cc;;unonwealth had with the scheme was that there was no 
transparency in the accounting treatments through which the Commonwealth-State Housing Agreement is funded. 
As a consequence of these two principal problems, an agreement was reached and the terms of that agreement have 
unravelled over the last two or three years. 

A model which does several things has been proposed. It is proposed that something be done about the inequitable 
arrangement between public and private tenants to try to achieve a balance. The Commonwealth said that neither 
the States nor the Commonwealth will be financially worse off from this proposal. Obviously, that is a big worry to 
the Commonwealth. It also said that the States will be responsible for capital and the Commonwealth for recurrent 
expenditure. Again, that presents some worries for the Commonwealth. The details of the agreement have 
materialised in recent times and obviously there will be grave consequences for the States. The principles are a bit 
like motherhood - it is hard to argue against them. The Minister, Graham Kierath, has always said, "The devil is in 
the detail." As the argument starts to unfold there are serious worries for the State and Homeswest. 

I will outline the positives first. The agreement attempts to bring the private sector into the public housing arena. 
If that can be achieved it would be a good thing and hopefully it would get rid of the waiting lists across Australia. 
It would also do something to resolve the inequality that exists. It is hard to argue against those principles. I will 
now refer to the negatives. The benchmarking for this proposal comes from Melbourne and Sydney where the rents 
are high. That will be a critical issue in respect of the way the Commonwealth assesses the amount of money that 
will be paid to individual tenancies. The problem with the model is that it is based on the failure of the Melbourne 
and Sydney housing markets where, as I said, the rents are high and there are no incentives. We argue that it should 
be benchmarked against Western Australia which has the cheapest rate of construction in Australia and probably the 
world. An argument has been put that there will be rent increases. Various experiments have been carried out in New 
Zealand and the United Kingdom, and similar models to the one proposed by the Commonwealth have been put in 
place in those countries and the result has been rent increases. Another argument is that the public housing ghettoes 
of the 1960s and 1970s will be repeated in the private sector. That must be a worry as well. Also, it means that the 
Commonwealth is abandoning public housing. We received the detail only in recent days and there are concerns for 
this State. Without putting words into the mouth of the Minister for Housing I presume, from the discussions I have 
had with him, that he would argue very strongly against some of the detail which has been provided. 

The next stage is for this proposal to be discussed at a Council of Australian Governments meeting which is 
scheduled for 14 November. 

Hon I.D. MacLEAN: How will these changes affect the redevelopment programs which Homeswest is undertaking 
in various suburbs? 
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Mr JOYCE: The committee will be aware of the program for dismantling all the public housing estates, of which 
there are 16, across the State. If we no longer receive capital funding from the Commonwealth there will be the 
potential for the redevelopment programs to slow down. It certainly will not stop them because the way in which the 
property redevelopment has been structured means that the redevelopment programs are based on property sales. 
With careful planning, and provided the market is there - that is one of the major issues for Homeswest - particularly 
when the real estate cycle has been completed, we should be able to complete these projects. . 

Hon I.D. MacLEAN: How is the Kwinana estate going now that it has been redeveloped? 

Mr JOYCE: It is terrific. It is one of the best things that Homeswest has done in many a long year. For instance, 
it has turned the property market around. Homeswest came in with its redevelopment program, but it could not sell 
the properties. The Valuer General placed remarkable figures on the properties; for example, $20 000 each. In the 
last 12 to 18 months, the property prices have increased by approximately 40 per cent, and that is in a downturn in 
the real estate market. Homeswest is hopeful that it will be able to double the property values in that estate even 
though it is coming off a low base. It is one of the major things Homeswest has achieved. The whole effect of the 
scheme is to promote the private sector and it is fixing up what was a public sector problem. Obviously, it is reducing 
Homeswest's presence to acceptable percentages and it is normalising K winana. If members visit the area they will 
find that what has happened is remarkable. It is one of the great things that Homeswest has done. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Your department sent out a circular about the cuts to FAG and asking for departments to 
comply with the 1.4 per cent across-the-board cut. Has your department agreed to that cut and implemented it? 

Mr JOYCE: That argument is caught up in the overall revision for the Commonwealth-State Housing Agreement. 
Therefore, at this stage we are not affected by that argument. However, the detail is still unfolding. 

Hon MAX EVANS: We received $110m this last year and $114m the year before from the Commonwealth 
Government. Part of that goes to rental accommodation and part of it goes to housing. It involves a rejigging of the 
lot. It comes under another $600m. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: How much of that is general purpose and how much is specific purpose tied grants? 

Hon MAX EVANS: Commonwealth housing agreement grants are separate. 

Mr JOYCE: Within the Commonwealth-State Housing Agreement there is a big bucket that we call the rental 
housing program. We call that untied in our terminology. Beneath that we have what we call four tied programs; 
that is, the crisis accommodation program, the community housing program, mortgage support and Aboriginal 
housing. We call thcm tied programs. 

Hon BOB THOMAS: What proportion of that $llOm is the untied rental? 

Mr JOYCE: Approximatcly $70m. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: You advised me that you were not affected by the 1.4 per cent across-the-board cut. I got 
a little confused whcn Hon Max Evans said something that I did not understand. Did he say that any cut could be 
offset by an increase on the revenue side rather than a cut on the expenditure side? 

Hon MAX EVANS: No. As I understand it, adjustments are not part of what we are talking about - the FAG and 
the specific grants do not affect what goes to Homeswest. It is completely isolated from that. 

Hon A.J.G. MacTIERNAN: Is there a cut in what Homeswest is getting under the Commonwealth-State Housing 
Agreement? 

Mr JOYCE: At this stage no. It has maintained the levels of funding over the last two or three years at the same rate. 
There has been no increase for inflation. What we do not know is what will happen in the financial year 1997-98. 
We are in the middle of debating whether the Commonwealth will bring in a new funding model which will make 
things dramatically different. We do not know that yet. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: The comment was made that there were some concerns about the new funding model and 
that they had recently come to your attention. The Minister said the devil was always in the detaiL Could you tell 
us what are those concerns? 
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Mr JOYCE: Everyone agrees that the principles about getting equality between public and private rental and about 
transparency are very good. Everyone will know where they stand. The principles about separation of powers and 
determining who is responsible for what are good sounding principles. However, the problem lies in the detail of 
how the Commonwealth will bridge this gap between the private and the public renters, because the Commonwealth 
is saying that it does not want to be caught with any more expenditure and it is also saying that the States are not to 
be out of pocket on this. However, when the numbers are done, there are some massive black holes in the argument 
if it is going to bring the level of rel1tal subsidy up to that of a public housing tenant so that the private and the public 
are equal. There is real concern about that as the details come out. It is saying it will set a median house rent. One 
view is that it will have a median house rent for Sydney or New South Wales, because the rents there are 
exceptionally high, and another for the rest of Australia based on Melbourne rents. You can appreciate that if it is 
going to bring the rents up to those Sydney levels, it will take a lot of expenditure which has to come from 
somewhere. As the Commonwealth starts to do its sums and understands the argument completely, it will have real 
concerns about a recurrent blowout in the expenditure over time. 

Hon MAX EVANS: There are 39000 rental propositions in this State. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Can you give me a ball park figure of what impact that blowout figure will have on Western 
Australia? I will not hold you to it. 

Mr JOYCE: One possible view in reading these last papers is that -

Hon MAX EVANS: If he does not have the facts he cannot answer that question. 

Mr JOYCE: In my view in going through these latest figures - we have not confirmed anything yet because we are 
still running the models and we received the latest detail only in the last couple of days - it could cost this State $50m. 
However, that is unconfirmed and not established by any modelling. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Is that because moneys will be diverted to New South Wales because of the high rents 
in Sydney? 

Mr JOYCE: That is part of the argument, which is contrary to the Commonwealth's original principle that no State 
will be worse off. It said that in the letter. A lot of things do not gel at the moment. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: You said the Commonwealth maintained the level of funding this year at actual levels, 
so that represents a 2 or 3 per cent decrease in real money terms. 

Mr JOYCE: Yes, it has not declined over the last four or five years. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: How many housing commencements did you make last financial year? 

Mr JOYCE: I have figures for the housing commencements for the last seven years. However, I have included home 
ownership. Including home ownership, the figure in 1995-96 was 4 941 commencements. In 1994-95 it was 4 184. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: When you say "including home ownership", what do you mean? 

Mr JOYCE: That includes all our home ownership schemes, of which we have five, and it includes also the big one 
of Keystart. 

Hon AJ .G. MacTIERNAN: Okay. How many of those are publicly owned houses? 

Mr JOYCE: In 1995-96, 1 198 that we would classify as public housing. 

Hon A.J.G. MacTIERNAN: Will you table that table of the seven years' figures? 

Mr JOYCE: Yes. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Do you have the seven year figures for the number of publicly owned homes? 

Mr JOYCE: Yes. 
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Hon AJ .G. MacTIERNAN: How many homes do you anticipate that Homeswest will be constructing in the 1996-97 
financial year; that is, constructing as opposed to privately owned homes? 

Mr JOYCE: Yes, I have two figures: Commencements 979, and completions 1 234. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: And the difference for those figures? 

Mr JOYCE: One is commencements and other is completions. We have a definition for a completion and a 
definition for commencements. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: But Homeswest will be commencing fewer than it did last year? 

Mr JOYCE: Yes, it commenced 1 198 and it has reduced that to 979. That does not represent in any way a reduction 
in commitment, because we have philosophically shifted from rental housing as we have come to grips with the list. 
You will recall there were 17000 people on the list; that figure is now below 12000. We are trying to do something 
about home ownership. Therefore, we have philosophically shifted away from public rental into home ownership 
because the rate of home ownership in Western Australia as everyone knows from the 1991 Census is at 67.5 per cent 
of housing stock and decreasing. That has to be a real worry to a public housing organisation like Homeswest that 
has a massive commitment to home ownership. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: How many executive motor vehicles does the department have and what is the likely impact 
this financial year of the Federal Government's decision to revoke the wholesale tax exemption? 

Mr JOYCE: I do not have those details in my head. 

The CHAIRMAN: That question is placed on notice. 

Hon MAX EV ANS: You want the number of vehicles and the financial impact on the agency? 

[6.30 pm] 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: I am not sure whether the tabled document that we will receive later on will show this, 
but what levels were you spending on those other non-construction housing programs? 

Mr JOYCE: I will give the level of expenditure generally for the total capital works program. It is proposed to spend 
$363m in 1996-97. Going back over the years, last year it was $449m, then $359m, $374m, $440m, $272m and 
$233m in 1990-91. You must bear in mind they are in the nominal money of those years. 

Hon MAX EV ANS: The difference between 1994-95 and 1995-96 has been the big increase in Keystart. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: When you say that you have spent those moneys, how do you calculate that and with 
Keystart what are you providing? 

Mr JOYCE: Loans. 

Hon A.J.G. MacTIERNAN: You do not put only the deposit, but the entire value of the loan? 

Mr JOYCE: Yes, it is the amount of money that is advanced. 

Mr COLES: That is right; it is the cost of the land and the house package. 

Mr JOYCE: Keystart i~ about 100 per cent lending. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Presumably people are paying off those loans. How do you fund those loans? 

Mr JOYCE: We go out and borrow through the private,capital market and then lend the money to the individual at 
the rate that we paid for the money. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: I thought your expenditure was the expense you undertake in securing and administering 
the loan. It seems odd to include in your expense what is basically someone else's debt. It is not your debt, is it? 

-
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Mr JOYCE: We borrowed the money in the first place and then advanced it to the individual. 

Hon A.J.G. MacTIERNAN: So the individual's mortgage is not with you? 

MrJOYCE: Yes. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: It is with Homeswest? 

MrJOYCE: Yes. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: Can you give the value of the mortgages advanced? Presumably some of those people 
would have been borrowing from credit unions, if not from the Government. Is that correct? It is a funny accounting 
system. 

Mr COLES: The system fits in with the accounting standards. Banks show mortgages on the balance sheet as an 
asset. 

Hon A.J.G. MacTIERNAN: You have them as an expenditure. 

Mr COLES: They are both. It is an expenditure in the sense that you have a source of funds, which is the money 
we raise. We classify that part of the home loan program as expenditure; that is, we give the money out to the 
borrower with which they can buy the house and land. I will explain how Keystart works. A need arose under the 
previous Government. People could not get a loan from credit unions or banks because they required a 10 per cent 
deposit. Although people could afford the home loan payments, they could not afford a deposit and therefore 
Keystart came in as a low deposit scheme. When people in the scheme reach a stage where they have substantial 
equity and feel that they can transfer the loan to a bank or credit union, they may do so. This acts as a useful conduit 
for people moving from rental to home ownership and they then may move on to a bank. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Why would they do that? 

Mr COLES: Some of the banks have discounted interest rates well below the market level. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: What is yours? 

Mr COLES: At the moment it is 9.5 per cent. 

Hon MAX EVANS: There is a small margin with what they borrow. 

Mr JOYCE: That is right. Our concern is that a bank may offer 1 per cent below the market rate for 12 months and 
then when the honeymoon is over put it up to the market rate. We have been careful to counsel people about that and 
to tell them that they are probably better off staying in our scheme. The people who tend to discharge out are those 
who have been in the scheme for some time. It has been going since 1989. They may have developed 10 per cent 
equity and their income level has greatly improved and therefore they can afford to have a bank loan. 

The CHAIRMAN: If that is the case with people having borrowed from you, which is really what they are doing, 
instead of their transferring to a bank, are they able to stay with you for the whole period of the loan? Do you review 
that loan at any time relating to interest rates, noting that you would have borrowed money on probably a shorter term 
than the payout period for the loan? 

Mr COLES: We do not review and advise them that they should transfer out of the schem~. They can stay with the 
scheme for the whole period of the loan. It is their choice. We fund the scheme by matching their repayment cycle 
with the investors from whom we have borrowed the money. If someone discharges the loan after three years, that 
clears out our bond as well. The prepayment cycle of the borrower and investor is perfectly matched. It is called 
a Keystart bond. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Can we put on notice the question about the Keystart advances and how many you have made 
available over that period of seven years? 

The CHAIRMAN: The question is taken on notice. 
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Hon A.J.G. MacTIERNAN: Over the same period could we have the moneys expended on the construction of 
Homeswest's properties? 

The CHAIRMAN: That question is also taken on notice. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: This question is probably not strictly within the terms of what we are doing here. We have 
had advice that the waiting list has reduced from 17000 to 12000. Could we have some indulgence and have 
explained why this has happened? The issue of home ownership has been presented to us. Quite clearly that is not 
the only issue. What are the other issues? 

Mr JOYCE: There are several aspects to it. Home ownership is a major issue. We have tended to put our money 
into schemes like Realstart and Keystart, and philosophically we have pushed moving people from rental housing 
into home ownership. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: How many people have gone into your home ownership scheme from that waiting list? 

Mr JOYCE: I do not have the figure in my head, but certainly it could be worked out and would be extensive. We 
have managed more tightly and thoroughly our rental waiting list and changed the rules of a person's entitlement. 
For instance, people are now zoned according to the area of choice and restricted in the amount of choice to nine 
zones. People were getting too much choice. We have also said that a person does not have as of right, the right of 
transfer. It is a combination of the better management of the rental waiting lists and an emphasis on home ownership 
that has reduced the number on the list. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: What is the difference between the average family paying rent versus the average family 
paying off a Keystart loan? 

Mr JOYCE: Generally speaking, 90 percent of our clients are on social security benefits. As a rule, they pay 22.5 per 
cent of their income and that moves to a maximum of 25 per cent of their income. Most tenants pay 22.5 per cent 
but come up to 25 per cent. Under Keystart, no-one pays more than 27 per cent and under Realstart no-one pays 
more than 25 per cent. People in home ownership pay more than people renting, but all those scales are accepted 
by the conventions, the banks, and the Henderson and OECD poverty scales. We believe that we have the correct 
percentage of income for both rental and home ownership. Obviously, the test for home ownership always is not to 
put people into housing poverty. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: The hidden factor in that is the other costs. Normally, Homeswest, as the owner of the 
property, would be paying those costs, but as home owners those people are paying land rates and water rates -
$1 000 per year in each case. 

Mr JOYCE: Yes. However, a survey done about five years showed that 95 per cent of us want to own our own 
home. As at 1991, only 67.5 per cent of us do own our home or are paying it off. The truth is that people will kill 
to pay their mortgage. We believe we must service that right of an individual to get into his or her own home. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: I have some concerns about the techniques used to achieve the reduction in the number 
of people on the waiting list. Decentralisation of lists has created a problem. We have families circumnavigating 
Perth to find an office where they might get a home, and often those people do not have transport. We have people 
arriving at our office in Armadale having been sent there from Midland to see whether anything can be done. Much 
of the decentralisation has been very undesirable, particularly for those looking for emergency housing. 

There is a perception that Homeswest is getting much tougher on tenants and that many people have been getting the 
bullet from Homeswest properties. Of course, those people are then ineligible to get back on the waiting list because 
they have a bad record. The impression is that Homeswest is purging itself of some of the more intractable tenants 
who will never go into the private housing market. 

Mr JOYCE: First, Homeswest believes it is very fair in the way it manages tenancies. We ask tenants to do three 
things: To pay their rent, and we are always reasonable about that; to live in harmony with their neighbours; and to 
look after the property - it is a government asset. They are three simple rules. I instruct my managers to manage 
those rules diligently. They are not to discriminate but should be reasonable and look indulgently at family situations, 
particularly were children are involved, to try to salvage the tenancy. We are a lot softer than the private sector. 
Aboriginal groups often say that I am too hard. However, the arrears for Aboriginal tenants is seven times higher 
than that of non-Aboriginals. I believe that we have our policy settings right and that our interpretation of our policy 

-
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has been fair. The only criticism I get is from the extreme community groups. Generally speaking, there is an 
expectation, and I am sure that 99 per cent of the public accept that we are managing those 38000 tenants fairly. In 
relation to being too tough with the waiting list -

Hon A.J.G. MacTIERNAN: No, I said that decentralisation was a problem. People must wander around Perth. 

Mr JOYCE: Again, I would argue with that. I believe that we have the balance right. We have split the metropolitan 
area into 24 zones and there is ade,c)uate scope within those zones for a person to make a reasonable choice. Prior 
to that, people picked and chose, we had many turnovers and declines of properties and the vacancy period was 
extensive. Generally, there was looseness in the way we managed our rental lists. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: This is an area of concern in relation to the decentralisation of emergency housing. I 
do not understand how it gives a person greater choice. The issue is that people must present at all the different 
offices around the Perth metropolitan area to get some emergency housing. That cannot be rational. It has nothing 
to do with people being too picky - they are looking for anything they can get. Because Homeswest has done away 
with the centralised bank of emergency housing people must hawk themselves from suburb to suburb. 

Mr JOYCE: People put their names down for the area of their choice within the zone of their choice. They then get 
an allocation when their turn comes up. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: I am talking about emergency housing. 

Mr JOYCE: I can assist any family today on a priority basis if they are not selective and they do not have a previous 
negative history with Homeswest, including debt. If they have a debt and a previous history of antisocial behaviour 
and if they are selective, that is a problem. However, no-one need sleep out in Western Australia tonight and I can 
house anyone at very short notice. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: I understand Homeswest's problems; I am not unsympathetic to how it deals with those 
problem tenants and I understand perfectly well that they can create problems for rest of the neighbourhood. 
However, the difficulty we see is that these people come to see us with newborn babies and young kids. What is the 
solution? They do have huge rent arrears and they do not fit in with the general milieu of even a working class 
community. What are we to do with them? 

Mr JOYCE: Surely the member would not expect me to house people who have massive debts to the organisation. 

Hon AJ.G. MacTIERNAN: I am not talking about you personally. What do we do as a Government or Parliament 
to come to terms with this sort of problem - should we have more Cullacabardees? 

Mr JOYCE: First, there is the commonwealth program called CAP, which the member knows well and which 
provides crisis accommodation for the individual who sleeps out tonight for a variety of reasons, including domestic 
violence. I argue that the Cullacabardees, and there are two other villages in Perth, have had their day; they are 
mistakes. Cullacabardee is half vacant and there has been extensive damage. I have great difficulty getting people 
to go there and, once they go there, to stay there. That is not the proper way to do it. Another reasonably successful 
approach has been to buy "specials" and give people a bit of space in rural areas. Again, I am thoroughly criticised 
because of the lack of education and shopping facilities. However, that model seems to work reasonably well. 

[6.50 pm] 

The main answer is that people must change. Perhaps I will be criticised for saying this, but we have created a 
dependency regime over the past 40 to 50 years. We must break that and tell people that if they want public housing 
they must follow the three simple rules. I believe, because we have been managing that over the past four our five 
years, people are changing and now respect public housing. I will continue with that ethos. I know I have the support 
of the Government. I will continue to do that, so ultimately people will respect public housing and will appreciate 
it. 

Hon JOHN HALDEN: Those same rules applied to work houses. 

Committee adjourned at 6.51 pm 
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SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

Note: Infonnation which is publicly available is not included in the Supplementary Infonnation. 

Division: Aboriginal Affairs Department 

Question: Hon John Halden asked what the revenue will be from the revocation of the wholesale tax exemption 
for executive motor vehicle parts on the department. 

Answer: Additional expense of approximately $33 000 per annum will be incurred by the department due to the 
revocation of the commonwealth sales tax exemption for executive motor vehicles. 

Question: Hon John Halden asked what are some implications to Western Australia from cuts to the federal 
government departments from the cuts in the Budget. 

What programs will be cut or reduced. and by how much? 

What programs have been identified by the Federal Government to have reduced in 1997-98? 

What are they? 

What. if any programs have been identified to be cut or reduced in 1997-98? 

What are they? How much? 

Answer: This question was answered during proceedings and further information provided as Exhibit A. [Item 3 -
Commonwealth Budget Decisions - Aboriginal and Torres Strait Island Affairs - Implications for Member 
Jurisdictions. ] 

Question: Hon John Halden asked: Have you absorbed any of the 1.4 per cent across the board cuts from what 
might be described as fat and what increased efficiencies has your department instituted to absorb these cuts. if 
any? 

Answer: The department expects to reduce expenditure by $336 000, which .is 1.4 per cent of total agency 
expenditure, by a series of measures to restrict meeting costs, staff travel and other overhead type costs. 

Question: Hon Tom Stephens asked -

BroadcastingfTraining: Now that Federal Government ATSIC funds for community training programs have been 
abandoned. Ahoriginal hroadcast training programsfor the Aboriginal broadcasters of the Kimberley region have 
been slashed. lHu'n comhined with ABC cuts from the broadcast recurrent grants. Aboriginal broadcasting in the 
Kimberley and ('/wlI"here is placed at risk offolding. What steps is the State Government taking to support this 
important infrastructure to the Aboriginal community of Western Australia in the current budget? 

Answer: The department is monitoring the situation but cannot see a role for itself to intervene. 

Question: Hon Kim Chance asked how the 1.4 per cent reduction will be met. 

Answer: The department expects to reduce expenditure by $336 000, which is 1.4 per cent of total agency 
expenditure, by a series of measures to restrict meeting costs, staff travel and other overhead type costs. 

Division: Health 

Question: Hon John Halden asked: The consolidated fund lays out specific purpose grants to which we have 
referred and the amount of money proposed for them at the time of the preparation of this year's state Budget. Will 
the department provide us with its best estimate of what it will get in each area? I think there are up to 27 of them. 
Hospital funding grants were estimated to be $503.33m. It is the most significant specific purpose grant in this 
State. 

Answer: The estimates for the specific purpose grants are provided in the attached table. [Tabled.] 
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HEALTH DEPARTMENT OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA - COMMONWEALTH PROGRAMS - REVIEW OF 
COMMONWEALTH PROGRAMS FUNDING 1996-97 

(a) Blood Transfusion Service: Estimated $643 000 of revenue budget and $1 286000 of expenditure budget 
relates to purchase of recombinant factor VIII shown below. 

(b) Blood Transfusion Service.: Expected commonwealth funding of $4535000 is only a provisional figure. 
Australian States have ben requested to submit revised bids on a prioritised basis. 

(c) Childhood Immunisation: $471000 of expenditure budget relates to the State's contribution to the national 
childhood immunisation register. 

(d) Hospital Funding Grant - Other Adjustments: Expected commonwealth funding reduction of $7324000 
includes a negative adjustment of $6.8m for perceived cost shifting in Western Australia. This adjustment 
has the greatest effect on the likely impact on the State. Negotiations are taking place with the 
Commonwealth to ensure that the State does not incur this penalty. 

(e) Mental Health Reforms and National Mental Health: The figures for the individual line items need to be 
considered in aggregate. It indicates expected funding of $5 667 000 compared to the revenue budget of 
$4598000. 

(f) National Campaign Against Drug Abuse: Expected commonwealth funding of $1 946 000 includes 
approximately $148 000 relating to the Police Department of W A. Likewise, expected Expenditure 
contains an amount of approximately $296 000 for that agency. 

Division: Homeswest 

Question: 

(i) HonA.J.G. MacTiernan asked: Will you table that table of the seven years' figures? 

(ii) Hon John Halden asked: Can we put on notice the question about the Keystart advances and how many 
you have made available over that period of seven years? 

(iii) Hon A.J.G. MacTiernan asked: Over the same period could we have the moneys expenced on the 
construction of Homeswest' s properties? 

Answer: See attached schedule. [See appendix A at page 869.] 

Question: Hon John Halden asked: How many executive motor vehicles does the department have and what is the 
likely impact this financial year of the Federal Government's decision to revoke the wholesale tax exemption? 

Answer: Homeswest has 36 executive motor vehicles and the likely impact this financial year of the decision to 
revoke the wholesale tax exemption is estimated at $94 800. 

Division 12: Department of Commerce and Trade 

Question: Hon John Halden asked how many executive vehicles the department has. 

Answer: There are 11 executive vehicles in the Department of Commerce and Trade. 

Question: Hon John Halden: Once you have told us that figure, what is the dollar implication of the revocation 
of the wholesale sales tax rebate on cars? 

Answer: In the 1996-97 financial year, the estimate for wholesale sales tax is $50 000. 

Division 26: Education Department of Western Australlia 

Question: Hon John Halden asked: What is the bottom line for 1996-97? 
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Answer: The estimated cash flow requirement for 1996-97 was -

1996 program 
1997 program 
TOTAL 

$71320 
$58165 

$129485 

Historically, program expenditure is higher in the July to December period. 

Question: Hon Bob Thomas stated that note 34 provides detail of school cash receipts for the year ending 1996. 
The 1994 generalfund closing balance for primary schools was $8.688541m, and the 1995 general fund opening 
balance for primary schools was $8.8287m. Why is there a difference between the opening and closing balances? 

Answer: As outlined in note 7 of the Notes to the School Cash Receipts and Payments for School Year ended 1995, 
the discrepancies between the 1994 closing balance and 1995 opening balance were due to closure of schools, 
change of school status or amalgamation of schools. Accordingly, a reconciliation is attached below showing how 
the opening balances for district high schools, primary schools, education support centres and agricultural schools 
have been adjusted -

Reconciliation of 1994 closing and 1995 opening balances -

District High Schools -

1994 closing balance 
Now Laverton Primary School - previously under 
Laverton District High School 
Morawa District High School - previously under 
agricultural schools 

1995 opening balance 

Primary Schools -

1994 closing balance 
Moorine Rock Primary School - no return for 1994 due to fire 
Ogilvie Primary School - closed 
Rawlinna Primary School - closed 
Laverton Primary School - previously under district high school 
Tuart Hill Junior Primary School- amalgamation 
Riverside Primary School - new 

1995 opening balance 

Education Support Centres -

1994 closing balance 
Iris Litis School - closed 
Narrogin Education Support Centre - closed 

1995 opening balance 

Agricultural Schools -

$ 
1762351 

(55275) 

15423 
$1722499 

$ 
8688541 

4249 
(5859) 
(4290) 
55275 

(23095) 
113 967 

$8828788 

$ 
1384648 

(5350) 
(8503) 

$1370795 

$ 
1994 closing balance 232 140 

Cunderdin Agricultural School 48 145 
Denmark Agricultural School 95 270 
Gnowangerup Agricultural School 73 245 
Harvey Agricultural School 59 856 
Narrogin Agricultural School 53 110 
Morawa Agricultural School 38 203 
(All above schools previously included with central office's consolidated fund accounts; now reported 
separately under this category.) 
Morawa Agricultural District High School- reclassed to district (15423) 
high school 

-
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1995 opening balance $584546 

Question: Hon Bob Thomas referred to the unaudited financial statements Summary of Consolidated Fund 
Appropriations and Revenue Estimates, which show the 1995-96 estimate balance for departmental revenue is 
$21.73m. The same item appearing on page 126 of the 1995-96 estimates for expenditure - that is, Budget Paper 
No 2 - shows a balance of$21.337m. Why is there a difference? 

Answer: The estimated departmental revenue of $21.727m - not $21.73m as stated by Hon Bob Thomas - as shown 
in the statement of summary of consolidated fund appropriations and revenue estimates, was made up of the 
departmental revenue of $21.337m and the capital, governmental revenue, of $0.39m. These two amounts were 
shown separately in Budget Paper No 2. Due to the size of the capital - governmental revenue - it was considered 
prudent to include it in the departmental revenue in the annual financial report. 

Division 31: Department of Agriculture 

Question: Hon Kim Chance asked: Will the department be able to provide in dollar terms the cost of the revocation 
of the wholesale tax concessions on motor vehicles? 

Answer: The department actually has 18 vehicles that are affected by the new sales tax on senior executive service 
vehicles. The impost for 1996-97 is applied to seven motor vehicles at an estimated cost of $36 839. The estimated 
cost for 1997-98 is $55 351 for the remaining 1 1 motor vehicles. 

Question: Hon Kim Chance stated the Minister had indicated that there had been a 25 per cent cut in the 
department's budget in the years prior to 1993. Which years? Over a lO-year period? 

Answer: The information requested requires considerabl..; research of agency files. A response will be provided to 
the member in writing. 

Question: Hon John Halden asked why there is a discrepancy in the allocations of commonwealth funds. 

Answer: Explanation of variation between commonwealth estimates of expenditure of $13 243 000 as detailed in 
1996-97 Program Statements and $8 290 000 volume 1 Budget Paper No 6. 

Program 

B. T. Eradication 
National Landcare 
Agriculture Projects 

1996-97 Estimated Expenditure 
$ 

3647000 
5410000 
4195000 

$13 243 000 

1996-97 Revenue 
$ 

2694000 
5596000 

$8290000 

Bovine Brucellos and Eradication Program - the revenue estimate is based on the existing agreement between the 
Commonwealth and State, that Western Australia will be recouped 70 per cent of total expenditure. This is a tied 
arrangement and the total is brought into the estimates as commonwealth project. The difference between national 
landcare estimates revenue and estimated expenditure is the oncost component for superannuation, workers 
compensation and others which is processed to the consolidated fund. Agriculture Projects of $4 195 000 have been 
brought to account in the Agency Net Appropriation Estimates as mentioned in Note (a), page 20, volume 1, Budget 
Paper No 6. This amount is for the Australian Quarantine Inspection Program, Jobskills programs, and other minor 
commonwealth projects. 

Division 34: Fisheries Department 

Question: Hon John Halden asked: I have two questions, the first relating to the wholesale sales tax exemption on 
motor vehicles. What is the implication of that revocation on this department and how many cars are involved? 

Hon Kim Chance then added: We need to know the number of vehicles and the number of dollars on those. 

Answer: As at 21 October 1996 the department has eight vehicles which will be impacted by the revocation of the 
sales tax exemption on government vehicles. All of the vehicles involved are leased by the department. The leasing 
company has advised that the sales tax component will not be factored into the lease rate calculation and that the 
additional sales tax component will need to be paid in a lump sum on the delivery of a new vehicle. The sales tax 
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which will be payable by the department on the replacement of these vehicles, based on the information which is 
currently available will range from $4 000 to $5 000 depending on the make and model of the vehicle being replaced. 

Division 36: Main Roads Western Australia 

Question: Hon A.J.G. MacTieman asked: Has Main Roads lost many professional staffin the lastfour years? 

Answer: The following table, which is an extract from the 1995-96 annual report, shows the changes in employee 
numbers by category forMain Roads Western Australia since 1990-

w==i'mployee Numbers 1990 1991 1992 1993 1994 1995 1996 

Senior Executive 10 10 10 10 10 6 6 

Professional 356 355 360 357 348 346 341 

Administrative and Clerical 367 383 397 411 411 395 371 

Technical and General 193 204 206 210 229 191 180 

Cadets and Trainees 27 29 32 32 21 16 25 

Forepersons 91 82 83 97 74 243 235 

Tradespeople 222 218 160 158 152 126 110 

Construction and 834 795 862 797 708 455 392 
maintenance 

Apprentices 42 45 43 40 35 32 25 

Other categories 45 37 28 29 28 23 24 

Total 2187 2158 2181 2141 2016 1833 1 709 

Source: Main Roads Western Australia, 1995-96 Annual Report 

Question: Hon John Halden asked whether another $2.2m of untied road grants was being taken out. 

Answer: In 1993-94 the Commonwealth Government ceased all forms of direct road funding other than for the 
national highways network. Funds previously provided for arterial roads were placed by untied road funds but at 
a significantly lower level, with $35Om being provided Australia wide. These funds will be absorbed into the federal 
assistance grants by 1997-98 and as a result Western Australia's share is being reduced towards the percentage share 
it receives under the federal assistance grants. 

With regard to the untied road funds, in 1994-95 Western Australia's share was 12.4 per cent or $43.4m, while in 
1995-96 it was 12.3 per cent or $43m, and for 1996-97, 11.7 per cent or $41m. These funds have been committed 
to roads by this Government. 

Division 37: Western Australian Department of Training 

Question: Hon Kim Chance asked: I understand that ANTAfunding comprises largely industry contributions and 
matching funds. From where does ANTA source itsfunding? 

Answer: The Federal Government. 

Question: Hon Kim Chance asked: Is there no industry contribution at all? 

Answer: No. ANTA is the Australian National Training Authority. It is a statutory authority set up under the 
ANT A legislation, which is federal legislation. It is a body that makes decisions about funding to the States from 
the Commonwealth. It makes decisions about federal funding. 

Question: Hon Kim Chance asked: I understood that ANTA received industry funds from the R&D Corporation. 
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Answer: Discussions with ANT A have confirmed that no funds are received from the R&D Corporation. 
Therefore, the answer given at the Estimates Committee hearing is correct. 

Question: Hon John Halden asked what were the implications of the revocation of the wholesale sales tax 
exemption on executive motor vehicles in the Department of Training and how many vehicles were involved. 

Answer: The estimated additional cost in 1996-97 is $61 000. The department has 25 vehicles for which the 
revocation of the wholesale sales tax exemption will apply. 

Division 43: Family and Children's Services • 

Question: Hon John Halden asked whether any specific purpose grants from the Commonwealth Government had 
been increased and, if so, by how much and what they were. 

Answer: 

Payment Type 

Children's services program 
Family Court counselling service 
Supported accommodation assistance program 

(including Youth Social Justice strategy) 
Unattached refugee children 

Estimates 
1996-97 

$000 
831 

1026 

10549 
22 

Estimates 
1997-98 

$000 
839 

1274 

10669 
24 

Question: Hon John Halden asked: How much will the revenue from the revocation of the wholesale tax exemption 
for executive motor vehicles impact on your department, and how many cars are involved? 

Answer: The following additional costs are expected to be incurred by this department: 1996-97 - $34 354; 1997-98 
- $13 690. Eleven cars are involved. 

Question: Hon John Halden asked what are some implications to Western Australia from cuts to the federal 
government departments from the cuts in the Budget. 

What pro grams will be cut or reduced, and by how much? 

What programs have been identified by the Federal Government to have reduced in 1997-98? 

What are they? 

What, if any programs have been identified to be cut or reduced in 1997-98? 

What are they? How much? 

Answer: Federal government departments are the responsibility of another Government. 

Question: Hon John Halden asked: Have you absorbed any of the 1.4 per cent across the board cuts from what 
might be described as fat and what increased efficiencies has your department instituted to absorb these cuts, if 
any? 

Answer: Family and Children's Services is continually reviewing its practices with a view to increasing efficiency 
in the delivery of its services. 
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